GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Executive Oversight Committee
Agenda
June 14, 2018
8:00 a.m.
Meeting will be held at the Glenbard Wastewater Plant
945 Bemis Rd, Glen Ellyn, IL

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment

Consent Agenda — The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive
Oversight Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below:

Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for the
Month of April and May 2018 totaling $1,521,815.17 (Trustee Enright).

5.1

5.2

53

Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes:
April 12,2018 EOC Meeting

Vouchers Previously Reviewed by:
April and May 2018 — Trustee Enright

Approval of 4” Trash Pump Purchase

On May 31, 2018 the Authority received and publicly opened bids for a new 4”
portable trash pump purchase. The bid had been publicly advertised in the Daily
Herold and was budgeted for replacement this year. The Village of Glen Ellyn’s
Fleet Maintenance inspected the Authority’s existing 2001 4” pump and is in
agreement that due to its age and number of running hours, it is in need of
replacement. The low bidder was Mersino in the amount of $32,730.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Mersino the 4 pump purchase in
the amount of $32,730. This amount will be taken out of the designated amount in
CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 Vehicle and Equipment Replacement, which is
currently budgeted at $23,962.



Approval of Televising Contract

In April 2018 Authority staff worked with the Village of Lombard, who developed and
sent out a request for qualifications and technical proposals for Large Diameter Sewer
Inspection/Assessment. The due date for the proposals was April 17, 2018.

The Authority received three sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to
the RFP that was sent out, along with prices. Attached is a spreadsheet containing the bid
prices. The apparent low bidder is Red Zone Robotics. The proposed bid and contract
were reviewed by the TAC. All references were checked and are satisfactory.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Red Zone Robotics the 2018 Large
Diameter Sewer Inspection/Assessment Contract in the amount not to exceed
$135,912.50. This amount will be taken out of the designated amount in CY2018 Approved
Budget, Fund 40 580150 Plant Equipment Rehabilitation, which is currently budgeted at
$100,000.

CY2017 Audit Report

Attached is the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority for the fiscal year that ended December 31, 2017. Financial highlights for the
Authority’s fiscal year 2017 (FY2017) are presented on pages MD&A2 and MD&A3 of
the report. A complete narrative summary of the Authority’s operations and financial
position is found in Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages MD&A1 through
9. T will present highlights of the financial report during the EOC meeting and our audit
partner, Jamie Wilkey, will present the auditor’s opinion.

Motion to accept the Audited Financial Statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 and to forward the audit report to the full
Authority Board for final approval at the next annual meeting.

Motion to distribute the operating surplus of $159,394 in a manner determined by the
Executive Oversight Committee.

Approval of Administration Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design

In February 2018 Authority staff developed and sent out a request for qualifications and
technical proposals to our six shortlisted professional consulting firms for the 2018
Administration Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design. The due date for the proposals
was April 6, 2018. The existing control system is pneumatic and requires manual
intervention for seasonal changes with no external alarming or control. Qutside of the
chiller package and duct heater, which were replaced in 1994, the remainder of the
equipment has been in operation since the 1977 plant improvement. Any potential
incentives or grant funding related to the project shall be explored as well, as it is
suspected many are available.



10.

The Authority received two sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to
the RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which point staff performed reviews of the proposals
and selected Strand Associates, Inc. to perform the work. After the selection was made a
cost proposal was submitted for $125,000 which staff was able to negotiate down to a not
to exceed price of $99,000.

During a TAC meeting the Village of Lombard raised concerns about the high cost of
design and mentioned other routes that could be taken, such as considering the other
proposal that was received, or going a different direction and utilizing an architect or
HVAC contractor for design. Typically, GWA needs to work with a design engineering
consulting firm for these types of design projects due a consultant’s ability to assist with
not just design, but also researching technology options, writing specifications,
researching manufacturers, SCADA integration, automation, bidding requirements, and
other items that we at the Authority have limited resources and staff for. After further
discussion, it was still recommended to bring forward this proposal for EOC approval.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Strand Associates, Inc. the 2018
Administration Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design in the amount not to exceed
$99,000. This amount will be taken out of the designated amount in CY2018 Approved
Budget, Fund 40 580150 Plant Equipment Rehabilitation, which is currently budgeted at
$75,000.

Request to Declare Surplus Equipment — Cryogenic Plant and Associated Equipment

In April 2017 the Authority shut down it’s 40-year old cryogenic generation plant and
switched to using liquid oxygen created off site. The plant was costly to operate and
maintain, and lower costs were able to be utilized by hauling in the liquid oxygen.

Although the Authority has not reached any agreements to sell the equipment, or have it
taken off site, the Authority requests the EOC declare the Cryogenic Plant and Associated
Equipment as surplus equipment, which would allow it to be sold or auctioned off to the
highest bidder.

Approve Contract for new SCADA Server, LAN Server, and Firewall

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority presently employs and is heavily dependent on the
operation of two distinct computer networks/systems to accomplish its” mission, the
SCADA System and the business Local Area Network (LAN).

The SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) System is a computerized
network used to monitor and control plant processes and equipment, provide real-time
and historical data, and provide local/remote alarm notification to staff. This system
affords Glenbard the ability to operate the facility with manned personnel during one
shift per day as opposed to the round the clock coverage which was once the normal
practice prior to the SCADA System installation.

The business LAN is the other computer network used to provide typical business
functionality such as e-mail, data storage, word processing, spreadsheet creation/data

3



11.

12.

13.

analysis, CMMS (Computerized Maintenance Management System), SCADA historical
data archiving, WIMS & Ops Works, a wastewater process database and reporting
system, web-based equipment research and purchasing, access of VGE accounting
software for accounts payables, and electronic IEPA Discharge Monitoring Reports.

We are recommending utilizing the firm of Concentric Integration, as a sole source
provider, and seeking a Waiver of Bids, in the total amount of $58,585. Funds for this
replacement were included in the FY-2018 Budget Fund 40-580140 Infrastructure
Improvement-SCADA & LAN Server, Firewall Replacement line item in the amount
of $80,000.

Formalize TAC Resolution

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was formed based off a request made by the
Village Managers in order to provide recommendations to the Executive Oversight
Committee on matters pertaining to projects, budgets, operations and other duties
assigned by the Executive Oversight Committee. The TAC consists of three members;
the Directors of Public Works from each Village and the Executive Director of the
Authority and meets on a monthly basis or more frequently as required.

Due to the TAC’s role in recommending items being brought forward to the EOC, the
Authority’s legal consul recommended formalizing a resolution establishing the TAC.
Therefore, attached is a formal resolution prepared by the TAC, and reviewed by the
Authority’s legal consul.

It is recommended the EOC adopt the resolution formalizing the TAC to make
recommendations to the EOC on the operations of GWA.

Discussion

12.1 Facility Improvement Project Update
12.2  Pretreatment Ordinance Status Update
12.3  Personnel Update

Other Business
13.1 Technical Advisory Committee Updates
13.2 Pending Agenda Items

Next EOC Meeting — The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday,
July 12, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. in the Conference Room at the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority, 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137.



}1Joday S103103.1Q
- 8T0T MV




SRDOIES S T2 L 2L S8E'T 6V 197 T m_ﬂm

8t'L9 ¥2'29 6ZTE9 6719 1179 €0'65  ¥T°Z9
(A4S TAVAS TLL9E  TL'SE €T'LE L6'0F 98°L€
LI-AON  /T-0  £T-des  /T1-8ny  /T-nf LT-unf  /T-Aen  £T-ady

8T-uer LT-NON JARLELS yasdlily LT-AeN

Wyueyssisss- . T 0 e e — T \ ———————

uosuedwo) 3ujjjig moj4 810¢/LT0¢

% PJlequio’| e

% UA[|3 UD|D comms

T

Z10T ‘27 3sn8ny y3noayl 6007 ‘TT AInf sAeq opTT 0T0T ‘0T jMdv — £00T ‘8 Ensmam.mm m.@‘m@%

:p40334 Sunesado 9844 UOISINIXS JUBLINYD :pJo23. Sujiesado 33.4 UOISINIXS SN d
‘ ot . S £ il
8T0Z ‘T€ AeA YSnouyl 810z ‘ST |Mdy sheq £y 8107 ‘T€ ABW y3nouuyy €107 ‘v Aenigay sheq ev6T

:A31204 131DMULIOIS P4023Y JU34in),. :3uD|d PIDQUIID

810C £10¢ 910¢

131EMULIO)S emfmen
PIEqUI|D eiliem

suone|oiA Hwudd S3AdN

»

. 1 IR S



_ |_. e =il 11O se mwwr_ﬂum_m_ cﬁwm_.“_p_m_“_wm_ jelol m )
X vIozA |
z
v
9
8
o1
4
1
810¢ ‘o€ |udy

JO se sayauj ui jjejuiey |e3ol

8T0Z ‘0€ |udy Jo se

621 0¢T Il €7 et Jea) Jad peireal) suojes uoljjig M|

8T0OCAD

LT0CAD 9T0CAD STOCZAD ¥T0CAd

000
oco
ovo
090
080
00°T
0’1t
or't
091

8102 ‘0€ |udy
"—O Se Jeo) J9d —umumw._._. m:o__mw E_o___S_J,_m

a




[ uonesynon Auadoid m|

Suneq m

SSION /%
sjuiejdwo) JopO =

001 C 0 O | ‘o W
L © 0 0 0 ©

810Z LT0Z 9T0C STOC ¥10C
uosisedwo) Juiejdwor) jenuuy

syulejdwo)
SuineH 3SION Jamoy |10 Jopo

. ., w1’
1 z 810z /107 9102

€

Tsoues W 14

S

9

L

8

6

0T

ﬂumacu_ pooyJloqysiaN pue Ayajes Suipieday sioiedipu) mucmEuotmm A3y Aiuoyiny ayy

Car ||



%LIVL  %9L'EE %¥6'8 %t6'TT %TT'ST %ST LT %SL ST %LSVE  %ST'ZE jusds pe
%EE %EE %EE %EE %EE %EE %EE %EE %EE 8TOZAD 40 %
GTE'08S 9E€L'60TS  PL96TS 0T Ees vL96TS £VS0LS ¢8'88% S8Y'STZS  YTEBTSS aeq
0} 4e3 Juads
00S°SCES 000'STES  000°0ZCS 006'64Z$  00E'6TTS 00V TTYS 006‘7YES 00v‘€Z9$  000°2T9'TS 193pnasTozZAY
18410 uagAxp [BAOWISY  SOUBUSJUIRIAl S994 PESYIDAQ  dJUBINSU| S92IAIDS EETR[H g |suuosiad
pinbi a8pn|s 19e4u0)
_ . STE'08$ 005's7€$ | 1BYIO
* ¥29'6TS 000°0ZCs ‘ | |enowsay 98pn|g
| 0ZP'EES 006'6£2$ . 3ouBUAURN 1
vL9°6TS 00£'62TS $994 peaysaag M
EPS'0LS 00V TTYS aoueinsu| |
¥28'88$ 006'VVES $8IIAISS 1e1U0) A
S8Y'STZS 00v€79%  ssmmnm
vZERTSS 000'CT9TS [duuossad |
a1eQ 0} Jea, juads 198pNagTOZAD Io!
i q 000°00T
000°002
00000€
000°00%
000005
000009
000'00£
000008
000°006
= 000'000°T
= 000°00T°T
== 000°002°T
— 000'00€'T
000°00%'T
- — 00000ST
000°009°T

3uiuoday ¢ asuadx3 WO judy




%LI ¥T %9. €€
%00°€EE %00° €€
usgAxo
19
Wi pinbr

%Y6'8

%V6'TT

%CCST

%ST°LT

%L'8

%SL°ST

%LGVE

%ST'CE

uads %

%00°EE

%00°tE

%00°€E

%00°€E

%00°€€

%00°€E

%00°€E

%00'EE

8TOCAD JO % B

[eAoway
a8pnjs

a0ueualuiep

sa94
pesyiano

aauesnsu|

s|eanway)

SIIAIDS
Peue)

sa1nn

[2Uu0s19d

3unuoday % asuadx3y RO |udy

%0

%S

%01
%ST
%0¢
%SC
%0¢€
%SE

%0¥




 sTe'9ts | 1488 | sze'zys |
~ 000°0v2$ 000°00v$ 000'6TTS
= uoneyiqeyay =
jueld [E}dED | .
T
sajepdn 19loud 8T0Z

judy




=] : i 1
i J o.. 1
e _ - = (Pe128pNnq 3052ZS) 8T0T ‘O 14dy ySnoayy 0$ 00S'S¥TS
L
(P2198pNnq MOSTS) 8TOT ‘O€ IMdy ySnoayy 0s 00£'88S
8T0Z ‘0€ |dy ysnouyy 0S 000'vES %0015 Buljjoy
8107 ‘0¢ IMdv ySnoayy S1691S 000°0t¢S ainjonisesu
8T0Z ‘Og IMdy ydnouyy 1/8$ 000°00tS uolleljigeyay Juawdinb3 jue|d
8T0T ‘0€ |11dy ySnoay STLTYS 000'61TS s103fo.d |enide) jjews
«IN0 pled e 10N 4 S06'S0E'8S ¥25°009°2LTS Uo12NIISU0) did
19%9ed D03 3y} ul Loday 133(0.d dId palepdn 23S 8€8'VZ9S 000'904$ SupiaauiBu3 UOINASUOD did

saiepdn judy

ajeq o0} Juads

junowy

123png 123loug

uondiiasaq



\y %
> ¥ &
QD & & 2° 2
& 04. & & o&ﬁ
> ik R Nl A\ KX
/v@/v 40/7 /WJ. A/&& owvo /70
%) o o& &£ os oa
| _}
0 I asejday/aeday
0 ¢ aJjueuajuieiAl
- - 93Jeyasia/Hwiad
. payliuapj suonejoin
- - panss| sHW.Iad
9 T pa33o1/pamalnay sisajiuely]
- - pamalndy siioday |elasnpu)
7 6 suonay dn mojjo4 194y1Q
0 o $493197 EmE.m.hpMM :
0 1 SMaINDY ue|d
0 o
T0A 3DA 10A
TVYIHLSNANI 904
8T-4dvy

=

SNOILOV HOLVYNIQHOO0D 304NOSIH IVLNIANOHY




"palIeIsal SaLIBAI[ap 198 03 s1oryddns MSH dlqissod payoeiuoy

'[e1YJO SuIp[ing ay 10§ TOA ul ssaugord wesdosd noy Surpredal uonewniojur payduwioy o
‘sisA[eue ajdures wo.y aeredas sysajiuewr Suipy Jo $$920.1d JUALIND PayIILIsay e
'Vdd/vdd] 01 paniwqns pue 1odas Juawneanaad [erasnpur [enuue pajaduoy) e
‘Buturen 4s| papusny e
'30U.I9JUO7) S[BUOISSIJ0.1{ JOJEMIISEA) SIOUI][] Y} PIPUSNY o

‘weagoad Juauneasiaad ay) ur uorsnput fo/pue suonoadsul adnng

o[qissod J1oj pue a3ep 03 dn aseq eep daay 03 9 10j suonedrjdde uonensigal ssauisng ayy
Jo [[e pue 70A ut suoneosrjdde Aouednodo jo ayesynted pue suonedrdde JuLiad [[e pamatasy e

:SJUOUINIOY)

m@wL NOSaY |eluaWl CH@E

=z e == b



|l 4 =B
BLELYS 000042 007589 000°0£Z 000 0zL 08'z€ ozL 0z'0 qudy =t ﬂr |

% _ iy = iy
’6'6EES  000'6LT 00°2€9'Y 000°64¢ 0012t L 0£°2T 478 0E'T yuew .m.ﬂm__
<
€0'0ELS  000'ZST 00'T6E 000'2SC 00'8£0°0T w9 [44 o9 ov'9v henigay
PE'BEVS  000'6LT 00°0T 000'6T 00°252'9 w7t 000 oL 08°0€ Ajenuer
P3AESS UMY [lBAY Z# 3uidul Ym) Z# duiBul Y |1eay T# 2uiSul Ym TH# swiSu3 sJH jleny zg auiBul  sIH z# owiSul  SIH |leay T# awiSug siy T# ouiSu3
UMN/L0'0$ = 8TOZ uoi3dnNpoid dHI Ajyuo
UMD T QUIBUT mmmmmm  YARY] T BUIBUT SIH z#ouISuU] e SUH T# 2UISU3 .
uonaINpoid dHD A|yluo
48quiazeg JaquisaonN 4o Jaqueldas  isngny Alnp aunr Ay |udy yalen Adenuge4 Aenuef
000 00°0
ol 00'S
00°000'C 00°0T
~ f
S 00000 00'ST m
s 000 ©.
o ¥) =)
= 000009 00'se 3
- =5
8 2 - \ 7 00'0€ 2
I 2008 N P 00'se @
00°000°0T 00°0¥
00'Sy
00°000'ZT 00°0S

0137 19N 03 peoy

poday uoionpold Jamod 9 JesH pauiquon




68'TTS'STS

Sde1aay

B,

79'/ST20€$
v T90°LES |L6'THETS
v T90°LES |09°0€9°ES
v T90°LES |0£°£TE'SS
i T90°LES [88'64€°9%
i T90'LES |2S°9LT'ETS
Y TO0LES [99°06T'LES
8E'6I9'0T TP T90LES 128°089°/SS
60°€SZ‘S P TI90°LES |ESVIETHS
Z8'008°S ¥ TS0LES |9T°298'SHS
(SSpE'L i T90°LES |68°9TL'6TS
[SE B0 R vb'TO0LES |6STSBETS
9/°1€8°C ' T90°LES |0Z'€68°6ES
NPIYIS - 10 + D3O}
uswhnday
SSIN

AD3X

88193

03 136i0]

(EGEET¥E) €6°EETVES
(£6°€ET ¥E) €6°EETVES
(€6 €ETPE) £€6°CETVES
(E6'€€TvE) €6°EETVES
(E6°€ETvE) €6°EETVES
(E6°EETVE) €6°EETVES
(E6°EETVE) €6°EETVES
(e6°€€TvE) £€6°EETPES
(ST'vS9‘es) €6'EETVES
(t0'v6L‘cE) £6°EET'VES
(06°€0t'cE) €6°CETVES
(65°569°¢£) €6'CETVES
3[npayss
uawAvday
SSHAI 40 + 31H DAL
8°'8 193W
03 326401
(ov'ss6’08S)  (SSOVE'LTS)
00°568% 00°0$
00°0S 00'0$
(Ev'0s6'TS)  00'0$
(00°568S) 00°0%
(00'00s‘TES)  00°0%
(00'€02'6TS)  00'0%
(ovvvv'TS)  00°0$
(rr'01L8) (00'zrses)
(00°566%) (FT°TE0ES)
(8¥'sTOLS)  (0S'€Er TS)
(95'€5€°9TS)  (S9°648%)
(sT'egz'ts)  (92'8St'LS)
$31SOD YIUOIN SID3L
S2UDURUIDIN snoinaid
dwo)
s150) ON
ouonIPpPY,

£0°886'TS
00°0$
00°0$
00°0S
00°0S
00°0%
00°0S
00°0s
000$
8L°6LVS
76°6€ES
€0°0ELS
VE'BEYS

40+ [D]O]

8V T62'LETS ST'79T'89TS
£69Y0°TS 00°05
09°0£9°€$ 00°0$
€1°89C°L$ 00°0$
8B VLT LS 00°0S
C2EV6L0TS 0T'Z86'ces
9¢°90v ‘LTS ov'L8t'6eS
CE'ETS0ES 06°1T09'8ZS
21’866 7TS GG'89S'ETS
SL°06T2ES S9°/69°LTS
LE6YB'ETS 0S°9TE‘STS
05°981'9TS 0€°566°STS
96°TZT 'SES S9ZISETS
YMy/60°08 soad
@ painpoid Buiddil ssH
ABaauz 2213

fe%

uopdaduj adzuls mem><l /S°ESRLETS

00°0%
00°0S
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
0005
00'0$
00'0%
0008
00'0%
00°0$
00°0$

S1S0D  YMI/60°08
SJUDUIUIDIN @ PaINpold
ABaauz 233

£0°886'T$
00°0$
00°0%
0008
00°0$
00°0$
00°0%
00°0$
00°0%
87°6L1$
76°6EE$
€0°0EL$
YEBEYS

00°0%
00°0$
00°0S
00°0$
00°03$
00°0$
00°0%
00°0$
00°0%
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$
00°0$

$394
butddis msH

Z8°ZVSV09'ES

OO O0OO0OO0OO0O0OO0O0O0C O OO0

Paniaday
suonH
904/MSH

LT

£107 40 WNS e 79 LSTL0ES

EVZE9E'E
0

0

0

0
vro'6LY
87/ ‘685
8E02LS
TLETLY
£56°E9E
OEE‘90E
906°61E
£€52°0LT

Pan{airay
suoynD
D04/MSH

0S'06€°LTSS

0S°ZV0‘88ES
00°8VE‘6ZTS

423231/03>a

Buipuny junio

TS'B89'ET6'ES

laquisoeg
19GWIAON
13010 =
Jaquaidag
Isn3ny
Alnr
aunr
Aepy
judy
youe
Aenugay
Alenuer
8TI0Z 4034 40pUB O3

SIDIA Uf JUIWIISIAU] UO UINIBY JUILIND
IUBLUISIAU] UO YIDGAD [DNUUY
2upbg WAoday
s|pol [pnuuy
Jaquiadaq
JDQUIBAON
42qo1Q
1aquisndas
1sn3ny
Alnr
aunf
Aenl
|udy
yoiewy
Asenugaq
Arenuer
LTOZ 193 10pUS133

umopyealg AJe}auojy JUsSW]SaAU| UO Ulnjay



SECTION 5.0

CONSENT AGENDA



SECTION 5.1

MINUTES FROM THE
APRIL 12, 2018
MEETING



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Executive Oversight Committee
Minutes
April 12,2018
Meeting held at the Glenbard Wastewater Plant
945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL

Members Present:

Others Present:

Diane McGinley President, Village of Glen Ellyn

Keith Giagnorio President, Village of Lombard

Bill Enright Trustee, Village of Glen Ellyn

Mark Franz Village Manager, Village of Glen Ellyn
Julius Hansen Public Works Director, Village of Glen Ellyn
Carl Goldsmith Public Works Director, Village of Lombard
Matthew Streicher Executive Director, GWA

Rick Freeman Electrical Superintendent, GWA

David Goodalis Operations Superintendent, GWA

Jon Braga Interim Maintenance Superintendent, GWA
Laurie Frieders Environmental Resources Coordinator, GWA
Christina Coyle Finance Director, Village of Glen Ellyn
Gayle Lendabarker Administrative Secretary, GWA

Call to Order at 8:03 a.m.

Roll Call: President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee Enright, Mr. Franz, Mr.
Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen answered “Present”. Trustee Fugiel and Mr. Nichaus were
excused.

Pledge of Allegiance
Public Comment

Consent Agenda - The following items are considered to be routine by the Executive
Oversight Committee and will be approved with a single vote in the form listed below:

Motion the EOC to approve the following items including Payroll and Vouchers for the
Month of March 2018 totaling $396,184.08 (Trustee Enright).

Mr. Franz motioned and Mr. Goldsmith seconded the MOTION that the following
items on the Consent Agenda be approved. President Giagnorio, President McGinley,
Trustee Enright, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during
a roll vote. The motion carried.



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

5.1 Executive Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes:
o March 8, 2018 EOC Meeting

5.2 Vouchers previously reviewed by Trustee Enright
o March 2018

6. Approval 2018 Facility Plan Agreement

In November 2017 Authority staff developed and sent out a request for qualifications and
technical proposals to our six shortlisted professional consulting firms for the 2018
Facility Plan. The due date for the proposals was February 28, 2018. The development
of a new 10-year Facility Plan provides the opportunity to take a comprehensive look at
the current and future needs of the Authority’s treatment facilities.

The Authority received five sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to
the RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which point staff performed an initial review, and
narrowed it down to two firms to invite for formal interviews. A member of the TAC, as
well as Authority staff, participated in the interviews, and after a process of evaluation
and elimination selected Trotter & Associates, Inc. to perform the work. It is
recommended the EOC award Trotter & Associates, Inc. the 2018 Facility Plan Services
in the amount not to exceed $88,300. This amount will be taken out of the designated
amount in CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 Capital, for the Facility Plan, which is
currently budgeted at $150,000.

President McGinley motioned and Mr. Goldsmith seconded the motion to award the
2018 Facility Plan Services contract to Trotter & Associates, Inc. of St. Charles
Illinois, in the amount not to exceed 388,300 to be charged to the approved CY2018
Approved Budget 40-580180. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee
Enright, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll
vote. The motion carried.

Mpr. Streicher summarized the process used to request proposals for the 2018 Facility
Plan which is an evaluation done to help GWA plan for future capital projects. Mr. Franz
asked what the time frame for completion was. Mr. Streicher advised that the report
should be completed by the end of 2018 and will need to be submitted to the IEPA for
review, place in a file and reference back to in the event GWA decides to pursue SRF
Junding through them for any projects, they will be able to see that it was something that
had been highlighted as a future project.

Trustee Enright asked if this facility plan would become a document for future
equipment/process planning. Mr. Streicher confirmed that the plan will be used to
develop future capital projects, especially at the CSO plant since the equipment is
outdated and help prioritize them.



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

Trustee Enright asked if the CSO facility operates in the same manner as the main plant.
Mr. Streicher advised that the process is somewhat similar but not nearly as involved and
that chemicals are only used for disinfection purposes.

Mpr. Goldsmith asked if there were any factors that would preclude Trotter & Associates
Jrom submitting engineering proposals on any projects that may result from the facility
plan. Mr. Streicher advised there were not and in fact it puts them in a better position
since they would have more knowledge.

Mr. Franz asked of odor reductions would be something that Trotter looked as well. Mr.
Streicher indicated that they would be evaluating odor control projects and not
eliminating odors from the process and do to these more as of an overview of options as
some odor control projects can be millions of dollars just for the benefit of a small
number of residents. Mr. Streicher added that they will be looking at a range of small
scale to large scale projects that would help in controlling or eliminating the odors.

Mpr. Hansen reminded the Committee that Trotter & Associates was the firm that stepped
quickly to assist with the air quality testing during the odor issues last August.

7. Approval of Facility Improvement Project Change Order No. 004

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) reviewed the documents and along with the
Authority’s legal consul, recommends approval of the proposed Facility Improvements
Project Change Order No. 004 in the not to exceed amount of a $294,571.47 being
presented to the EOC. Due to the higher cost of this proposed change order, the Authority
performed due diligence in vetting the costs, and ensuring they are accurate and justified.
In addition to the Authority and its consultants investigating the costs, additional layers of
support were utilized for this review, including a contract negotiator (Roger McCarron)
and the Authority’s legal consul. This change order is a request in which the majority of
the equipment substantially affects the critical path of the project as identified in
comments in the attached memo. The FIP project change order request is addressing a
multitude of issues relative to mostly electrical aspects of the project. The change order
will increase the overall project cost from $17,500,573.66 to $17,795,145.13.

President McGinley motioned and Mr. Franz seconded the motion to approve Change
Order 004 to the Facilities Improvement Project for an amount not to exceed
$294,571.47 increasing the overall contract price from $17,500,573.66 to
$17,795,145.13. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Trustee Enright, Mr. Franz,
Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll vote. The motion
carried.



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

Mpr. Streicher indicated that the amount of the change order is the worse-case scenario
and has already been reduced by approximately 340,000 since the EOC Packet was
distributed and negotiations are ongoing by all parties to reduce the amount as much as
possible. Mr. Streicher indicated that bullet points number two (2) and three (3) are still
being negotiated as well as some of the items are time sensitive and require decisions
before May I** in order to avoid any additional price escalations.

Mpr. Franz asked Mr. Streicher if he confident this was going to be the last change order
for the project. Mr. Streicher advised there he was confident that there would be more
since the contractor had not even started work on the other part of the project. Mr.
Streicher also reminded the EOC Committee that other than the large $1.3 million
change order that was approved, this change order was actually their first change asking
for an increase as change orders #1 and #2 were both reductions in costs.

Trustee Enright asked which bullet points saw reductions. Mr. Streicher indicated that
bullet points #2 and #3 were reduced as the contractor agreed to pay half of the costs
associated with those items. Mr. Streicher indicated that he had countered offered that
Boller pay 100% of the costs on item #2 and GWA pay 100% of the costs for item #3, but
he is waiting for a response on this offer which would reduce the change order by
approximately another $20,000. Mr. Enright asked why the price increases from 2016 to
2018. Mr. Streicher indicated that the on some the items cannot be pre-made and
therefore as a result of various project delays, the material and labor costs have
increased from the time of the original proposal to the time of the planned actual
production. Mr. Streicher indicated that all parties are making an effort to keep things
Jrom escalating like the ERS system did which resulted in a third-party coming in to help
negotiate.

Mpr. Goldsmith indicated that some of the items appears to be oversights or errors by the
design engineering firm and asked if any thought had been given to going back to them
and asking them to help offset or cover some of the costs. Mr. Streicher indicated that he
had thought about, but the mentality became if these had been designed properly to begin
with, we would be paying these costs anyway minus all of the price escalations. Mr.
Goldsmith indicated these issues certainly needs to be kept in the back of everyone’s
mind if and when Black & Veatch comes back with a change order for construction
oversight services. Mr. Streicher indicated that he fully anticipates a change order from
them and has highlighted these issues to them.

Mr. Goldsmith asked if the IPEA loan will cover the change orders. Mr. Streicher
indicated that the loan only covers $16,725,000. Mr. Goldsmith asked if GWA's budget
can handle the current anticipated overage. Mr. Streicher indicated it could and that
GWA could seek an increase on the loan amount from the IEPA; however, the process
would involve repeating all of the loan application steps that GWA did when applying for
the loan originally. Mr. Streicher indicated that while the capital plan can absorb the
additional costs, the plan will need to be reviewed and re-evaluate to determine which

4



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

projects can be moved to later years and not have a negative impact on the plant
operations.

8. Discussion

8.1 Facility Improvement Project Update
Mr. Streicher advised that the last of the new disc filters were
installed and the April I*' operation date was met; however, there
are some loose ends that need to be wrapped up but they are
installed and operating. Mr. Streicher indicated that the ERS was
supposed to have broken ground the previous week but he is
optimistic that by the next EOC Committee progress will be visible.

Mpr. Streicher added that the Boller has been aggressive in
submitting proposals as per the terms of Change order 003, and as
an act of good faith agreed to authorize payment for several
changes orders equal to approximately 50% of nearly the $1
million dollars currently being held, so they could pay their
contractors and not have to worry about a work stoppage by their
sub-contractors.

Mpr. Hansen asked Mr. Streicher to elaborate on the what was
Jound in the digester when it was cleaned. Mr. Streicher advised
that the old sand filter beds would need to be backwashed to help
keep them cleaned as a result a large of the sand would be washed
out of the beds, dumped back into the head of the plant process and
would eventually settle in the digesters and in 2016 when digester
number one was cleaned there was six feet of sand ringing the
inside perimeter of the digester and the number which was just
cleaned at six to eight feet of sand on the inside perimeter and in
the future as a result of the new disc filters, sand will no longer be
getting into the digester which will free up operational volume in
all of the digesters and enhance the performance of the process
and less wear and tear on equipment.

Mpr. Franz encouraged Mr. Streicher to keep the contractor moving
in the right direction and get the disc filter system closed out.
8.2  Pretreatment Ordinance Status Update

Mr. Streicher advised that the US EPA is still reviewing the Village
of Lombard’s Pretreatment ordinance and GWA has not received
the Village of Glen Ellyn’s entire Pretreatment ordinance but the
goal and hope is that it is a mirror of the one submitted by the
Village of Lombard, therefore, any comments, recommendations
or changes needed would be applied to the Village of Glen Ellyn’s



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

10.

as well and once revised they would need to be adopted by each
village and the submitted to the US EPA.

Mr. Goldsmith advised that Wheaton Sanitary District will need to
comply with the ordinance as well since part of Glen Ellyn is
serviced by them. Mr. Franz indicated he will need to have
discussions with DuPage County
8.3  Project Engineer Status Update

Mpr. Streicher indicated that there had been two candidates
interviewed however there was one last minute submission and as
the person has acceptable experience and credentials the decision
was made to bring him in for a combination first and second
interview later in the day and was hopeful that by the next EOC
Committee meeting the would be able to announce that who the
new hire is.

Mpr. Franz asked how the intake of FOG was going. Mr. Streicher indicated that with the
digester cleaning, it was not feasible to bring in trucks. Ms. Frieders indicated that she is
still pursuing vendors. Mr. Hansen asked if May I** was a more feasible date. Ms.
Frieders advised that she was hoping at least that date if not before.

Other Business

9.1 Technical Advisory Committee Updates
9.2  Pending Agenda Items

Next EOC Meeting — The next regularly scheduled EOC Meeting is set for Thursday,
May 10, 2018 at 8:00 a.m. in the Conference Room at the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority, 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, Illinois.

Mr. Franz asked a May meeting would be necessary. Mr. Streicher indicated that the
proposals for the Administration Building HVAC system were due to be received and will
most likely exceed the $20,000 limit as well as the results of the line televising bids that
GWA was having done in conjunction with the Village of Lombard. Mr. Goldsmith
advised that the bid opening was early May thereby unlikely it would be included on the
May EOC Committee agenda.

Trustee Enright highlighted GWA's non-permit violation record and was impressed that
the count was 1,882 days. Mr. Streicher advised that each NACWA awards bronze,
Silver, Gold and Platinum Awards for plant performance and that GWA is closing in on
it’s fifth (5*) year and fifth Gold Award, without any violations and should be eligible for
the Platinum Award in 2019.



EOC Meeting/April 2018
Minutes

President McGinley moved to adjourn the April 12, 2018 EOC Meeting and Mr.
Goldsmith seconded the MOTION. President Giagnorio, President McGinley, Mr.
Enright, Mr. Franz, Mr. Goldsmith, and Mr. Hansen responded “Aye” during a roll
vote. The motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 8:45 a.m.

Submitted by:

Gayle A. Lendabarker
GWA Administrative Secretary



SECTION 5.2

VOUCHERS
APRIL AND MAY 2018



LT'STSTTSTIS

pue suoinquiuod ueld gz| % /G ‘sBuiployulm Xe} se yons suononpap pajoalp eafojdwe
J3YJo pue sanp uoun 'soueInsul yjeay ‘suolsuad JO} SUCNQUIUOD apnjoul Suolanpap aaAoldws ,

TVLOL ANVHD

0S°SISPIT §

$ T6T9L9S § 6SSSLLS $ VIUPEK'LS $ 6LITS9S  § Iioaked [ejo]

LY96T LOF TS

€TELSES ¥8°1€9°¢$ 19°619°¢$ 99°095°¢$
88 THH VS 19°095V$ €C 1P P$ 6€° €0V PS
ZI'10T91$ TL'LOS9TS 79°1ST91$ SL'090°91$
89°SPSTE $ P SSOEES 89 TOT°SE $ 6696V°CES

STOT ST ABIN  STOT IT AR 810 "LZIdY  QTOT “€T dy

[EIOL JUBLIBAN  £9°96T°LOY'TS
OV 9ET VLS 810T/TE/S
¥8°S60VLT$ 810T/L1/S
LO'ESY 61 8107/0¢/y
9¢" 18t°606$ 8102/0T/¥

uoipod Jafojduwg - playulipA XB1 2Je2Ipan/AlluNgas [B100S
uonnquiuog JaAojldwg - JYINI

LSuononpag asfo|dwg

ISUONINPI( [[01AeJ JPAojduny 2 dAojdury]

$YI3Y)) (oA dLojdury JoN

SHANLIANTIIXT TIOYAVd

7-8150 ueLR A S[qeARd SIUNOIIY
[-81S0 JuBLIBA\ S[qRAR{ SUNOJIY
7-$1$0 UBLIRA) S[qRAR{ SIUN0IIY
[-810 JuBLR A\ S[qBARJ SIUNOOOY

Jjunowy preg 93 YD

10T AUnf ul SUaaw Y]} A0,

SYHHINOA H0 'TVAOULdV
ALRIOHLAV JALVMIALSVM MAVANATD

SSTANLIANAIXH



21 8L

88 LTT'T

88 LTT'T

00" %91

00" ¥%9T

6L°%81°908

€9°LZ6'¥6T
9T LSZT'TTIS

087 LS

057 LS

00°s0¢

00°50¢€

08 %4T

08" ¥ST

T0 9€g’9T

Zv 1L68'8
€L E¥8’9
98 %65 0T

S/INWAIN0T QHALYIHI ALHIVS

aIv¥d dLX ¥9°0L%’S

SNOILVYDINONWODHTAL

arvd dLA 00 €0€

STYOINHHD

dI¥d dLX 6L°¥81'908

NVId INHWNIAOIJWI ALITIDVA LOOPT 08TO8S

NY'Id INAWAAOYIWI ALITIOVL L00PT 08TO8S

arvd dLX 0S°LS

ONIYHINTIONHE NDISHA

dIvd diX 00°80€°’T

THSNNOD TYIEANAD - TYOIT

aIvd LA 8% S0€'T

0O - SHDIAYES TYNOISSHAOId

aivd dLX TS 89¢€'¥%ST

NIDAXO aI1ndIiT
NEDAXO aINdIT
NEDAXO aINdIT

81/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T/0T/%0

8T/6T/%0
8T/61/%0

8T/02/%0

8T1/02/%0

8T/02/%0

8T1/02/%0
8T/02/%0
81/02/%0

T82LS6

THDTOANT

082L96

THEOIOANT

6LTLSE

TIOIOANT

6T¢tC
8Tt¢C

TIDTIOANI

8LTLS6

TIOTOANT

LLTLSE

TIDTIOANT

9LCLSE

QHOIOANT

SLTLS6E
SLTLS6
SLCLSE

CY6LTC HDIOANT
81/20/%0 T6L8T
II soHvd

ALk ¥9°0L%'S STYICL JOANIA
68L8T :HEDIOANI
8T/4T/%0 6848T
SNOILYDINAKWOD QHIIINA

dLX 00°€0¢€ STYIOL JOANHA
LLETPNY  HDIOANT

81/9¢/€0 BELST

"L ‘ODTHD

dlX 6L %¥8T°'908 STYIOL JOANHA

S INAWAVd :EDIOANT

L000LTOZ L1/T€/0T LELBT
¥ INIWAYd HEDIOANT

L0O00LTOT LT/0€/60 9€L8T

ONI ‘0D NOILOAWISNOD ¥HTIION

ALk 0S°LS STYIOL JOANdA
LS¥96T :EDIOANT

LI/%T/2T ¥E€L8T

"ONI ‘NYWAOOM % ¥EIXVH

QiX 00°80€’T STYLOL JOANIA
09€¥60C :HOIOANI
8T/€2/¢€0 SEL8T
dT7 DANENAOHL *® SHNIYL
QLix 8% S0€°T STVIOL YOANHA
L992¢€ HDIOANT
8T/TE/€0 €€L8T
"ONI "HDIAYHES THNNOSIHd WANNVE

dLX 25°89¢€'¥%ST STYLOL ¥OANHA

4%

618

€t

TCCT

856

69TT

880T

NOILAIYOSHA INNODDY D

8T0Z/TE€/TT OL 8T0T/T0/TO $0/8T0Z TYISIA OL

Txempdde
T d

SCZ0€ES 0LC
S6TTCS oLE
0rp0ES aLe
0%

(457

9180¢CS oLT
00L0¢sS oLe
SS0TZS oLe
£EvvotEs 0LT
€rvocs oLe
£¥¥0ES 0LZ
LNOQOJOY 1D

dLV¥d 2HD

ON XDHEHD

9TZSS¥00S6  *HDIOANI
8T1/TE/€0 TELBT
€T0SS570056  HDIOANI
8T/%¥2/€0 TEL8T
LTI8%SF00S6  *HDIOANT
8T/LT/€0 0€L8T
IONI ‘'SVYDdIVY
0d ¥AHDAOA HIVA ANTI INFWNDO0T
AWNYN

JOANHN

T-8T¥%0 :*INVIIYM

LI0dHY LNVIIVM dIVd
SATT W¥MD

IAIeUW

8T:CT 8T0T/T0/90



8% Z¥8°¢
TT 0%
ZLTTITIT'S
I8 6TV 'v¥

LY 86T

L¥°86T

L9°gLT’s

LT ¥T%
S6°L0Y
SS ¥S¥ L

657202

65°20C

00°T6T

00" T6T

88°98¢

88°98¢

6€°06T

687061

Z1°8L

JIMOd OIFLOHTH
THMOd DI¥ELOATH
JIMOd OIULOHTH
dHMOd OTYELOATH

JI¥d dLA 69°86¢

SEHSNEJIXH HOIAL0

aIvd dlLX 00°€S€’Z¥

SYD NAD-4TdS
SYD TYINILYN
5D TYANLYN

JIvd dix

SNOILVOINNWWODHTHL

arvd dix

VAINOD SANNOYD B DNIATING

dIivda dix

S/INWAINOE TEIVIHY ALHAVS

aIvd dik

VELNOD SANNO¥D » DNIATING

aIvd drix

8T/0T/%0
81/02/%0
8T/02/%0
81/02/%0

81/02C/%0

81/02/%0
8T/0T/%0
81/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T/02/%0

[T 2 VI A T a1

88T¢LS6 8T1/22/¢€0 98L8T
SSE6ETPE006408T :EDIOANT
88TLS6 81/02/€0 S8L8T
€9E6ETFE006L08T IDIOANT
882LS6 81/0Z/€0 78481
L6PETEFEC00Z0T8T HDIOANT
88CLS6 8T/2T/%0 €8L8T

"ONI ‘ONILEMYVA XDUENH IDHEIIA
TIOIOANI dLA 69°86¢ STYLOL ¥OANHA

T60TE HDIOANI
L8TLS6 8T/0€/€0 9%L8T

"ONI SOIHAVIDOIITI SACOHI SSOUD

JHOIOANI QLX 00°€S€’'Ch STYIOL JOONIA
686822 :EDIOANI

98CLS6 8T/0T/%0 S%L8T
6876822 HDIOANI

98ZLG6 8T/0T/%0 S¥L8T
68%6822 HEDIOANTI

982LS6 8T/0T/%0 SHL8T

ONI SHOIAYIS ADYANH NOIIVITHISNOD

QIDIOANTI QLK S6°CTO0'T STYIOL JOONIA
€PLBT HEDIOANT

G82ZLS6 8T1/52/¢€0 €¥L8T

07T ‘SNOILYIINNKWOD HTIIYD ISYONWOD

TIOTIOANT QLX 00°08T'T STYIOL JOANHA
9260LT EDIOANI

$82LG6 8T/T0/%0 I¥L8T

"0D WOIYAHATH XITIOD

AIDTIOANI QLA 98°L0%'T STYIOL JOaNIA
86.909¢0%8 IDIOANI

€82LS6 8T/90/%0 0%LBT

ALAAYS 3 JIV ISYId SYINID

AIDIOANI dIX S6°TS6 STYLOL JYOANTA

98696¢€69L *HOIOANT
Z8CLS6 8T/LT/€0 6€LBT

V66

186

8€TT

06¥%

81¢CT

89L

LY

NOIZATIOSHA INNODDOY TD

8T0Z/T1€/2T OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z TYDSIA OL

xxempdde
4 d

TOCTCS 2-0LC
T0C1CS oLe
TOCTES T-0LC
TOCTZS oLZ
00TO0ES 0LT
AdARAT oLe
€0CTcCcs T-0L2
c0ZTICS 0LZ
S6°CI0'T
S6TTCS 0LZ
00°08T'T
TL60CS 0LZT
98°L0F ‘T
SR AARR 0LZ
S6°TS6
TL60CS oLz
09°€LC

LNNOJOY 1D

HLYA XHD

69L# NOILVIOJYOD SVINID

JIDIOANT ALX 09°€LZ STYLOL JOANHA
ON XOdHO Od dHHONOA dIVd ANT INHWNDO0d
HNEN

JOANHA

T-8T%0 :LNVIIYM

LIOdHY LNTIIYM dIVd

IAIew

SATT ¥YMD 8T:CT 8T0Z/10/90



08" %S¢ TYALOVIINOD - SNOILVIAJO 1660CS oLe
88 8%¥ arvd diX LS 0gS’‘S
SE£°09 SOINOWILDATH - HONYNALNIVIA 08602S 0LZ
0€°S¢ SOINOYLOETH - HONYNIINT VI 086025 0LZ
69 °FTT SOINOAILDITH - HONYNI LN I VI 086025 oLe
957 €02 ININI TN0OT - HONYNI LN IV S.602TS T-0LT
86 ¥ INFN IN0H - FONYNIINIVIN SL602CS 0LZ
GE£°98G5°T dIvd QLA S€°98S°T
S€°989'T TYNLOYILNOD SOINOYIOETH T8602S 0LZ
S8°L6T'T dIvd dIX 86 06Z'8L
66°LLT'T JALUM €02T2CS 0Lz
9861 AALYM €0212S 0LT
00°96% AIvd dLX 00 96%
00°96% YIINOD SANNOAD ¥ ONIAIING TL60ZS 0Lz
00°00% dIvd dix 00°00%
00°00% TYALOVALNOD SOINOIIDHTH 186025 0Le
¥8°88L°€S aIvd dLX 69°8€8°'€S
PO 6FET YIMOd DIALDHTH T0TTEZS €-0LZ
89°G¢ dAMOd DIAILDITH T0212S Z-0LT
NOIIATIEDSHA INNODOY 1D INOODDVY 1D

8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8T0Z/TO/T0 S0/8T0Z TIY¥OSIA OL

xxempdde
€ d

8T/02Z/%0

8T/0T/%0
81/02/%0
8T/02/%0
8T/02/%0
8T/02/%0

8T/0T/%0

8T/0Z/%0
8T/0T/%0

8T/02/%0

8T1/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T/02/%0

JIVa MHD

A A A A

988TLST :HDIOANT
¥6CLSE 8T/10/%0 ?SL8T
ONTI ‘ILOO¥D £hL
QHOIOANI dLA LS 0€S°S STYLOL JOANIA
€92188TVL6  *EIIOANT
€62LS6 8T/8¢/¢€0 €SL8T
SHTLOZTHLE SDTOANT
£62L56 81/82/¢€0 ZSL8T
288CSEYPL6  HDIOANI
€62LS6 81/0¢€/¢€0 TSL8T
186880%¥%L6 :HDIOANT
€62LG6 8T/0€/€0 0SL8T
TLYSOVLYLE HOTOANT
£62LS6 8T/%0/%0 6%L8T
“ONI ‘YHONIVID "M™M L6T
QEDIOANTI dLA S€°98S°'T STYIOL JOUNHA
68L0L9SS HEDIOANI
T62TLS6 8T/€2/€0 PHL8T
ONI ‘NOILDHENNODAOD 8LTT
JHEDIOANI dLX 86°06Z'8L STYIOL JOANTA
6LL8T :HEDIOANI
T62LS6 8T1/T0/%0 6LL8BT
8LL8T HDIOANI
162TLS6 81/T0/%0 8LL8T
NATIE NIIO 40 IAOVTIIA £6¢
IDIOANI QLA 00°96% STYIOL JOANIA
8Z€Z8T :HOIOANTI
062L56 8T/S0/%0 8¥L8T
ANVAWOD INAWAINOE HIIJL NASMTIIAHEA 0SZT
THADTOANI dILA 00°00% STYLOL JOANHA
9EZZHPE6  HDIOANI
68TLS6 81/20/%0 L¥LST
"ONI ‘HIALILSNI HOYIVISHY SWALSAS TYINIWNOIIANA T6TT
JEOIOANI dIX 69°8€8'¢€S STYILOL JOANIA
PSEEETVEO06408T HDIOANI
88ZLS6 81/0Z/€0 98L8T
6LETSOPE00ZL08T HDIOANI
88ZLS6 8T/€T/€0 L8LST
9€L09T¥E00T808T :HDIOANT
ON MDHHD Od ¥AHONOA HIVA ANTI INANNDOA
HNYN JOANIA
I-8T%0 :INVIIYM
IHOdAY INVIIYM dIvd IAxew

SATT ¥MD

8T:ZT 8T102/T0/90



00°s¢

0T 2LS

¥8 ¥¥9
9T Le

797 08T

¥9°08T

99 "TIT9’T

99°TT9'T

9% 88

9% 88

6% ECT

6% €CT

00°L88

00°L88

¥ 9ch

S¥°90¢
6L 6TT

08" %S¢

NOILYDNdH HHAOTIWH

aIvd

JHLYM
dHLYM

arvd

TENLOVELNOD - HONYNHLNT VI

arv¥d

SOINOYLOHTH -HONYNTLNTVIN

arvd

SHSNHIXH HDIA40

arvd

YT LYM

arvd

STYOTIWIHD

arvd

SOINOYLOHTH -HONYNHIINI YN
SOINOILOHTH -HONVYNEILNT VI

arIvd

dLA

[EAN

dLA

arLx

aLA

dLA

arix

8T/02/%0

81/02/%0
81/0%/%0

81/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T1/02/%0

8T/02/%0

8T/02/%0

8T/02/%0
8T/02/%0

[ARFAT

TIDIOANI

TO0ELSE
TOELSE

TIDIOANT

00€LS6

TIOTIOANT

66CLS6

TEDOTIOANT

86CLS6

TIDIOANT

L6ZLSE

TIOIOANT

96CLS6

TIDIOANT

S6TLS6
S6TLS6

IO TOANT

NOILATYOSHA LNOODDOY TID

810Z/T¢/ZT OL 810Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z TYISIA OL

xzxempdde
4 d

0co0cs 0Le
$Z°986°9¢C

€0CTCS T-0LC
€0CTCS oLe
¥9°08T

2L602S 0Le
80°CIZ’¢

086029 0LT
89°6T¢

00TO0¢ES 0Le
€L°0¢C9

€02TZCS €-0LC
00°L88

0vP0ES oLz
LL ¥8€E'9
0860¢CS oLe
0860¢CS oLe
LT 9L8'T
LNOODOY 1D

JILVa XHD

ON OHHD

8T/2T/%0 €LLBT
JAHDIAYLS MAHLIVIW H8TT
QLX ¥2°986'9C STYIOL JOaNIA
T8L8T :EDIOANI
8T/20/%0 T8L8T
08481 DIOANT
81/T0/%0 08L8T
@IYEWNOT A0 IOVTIIA S6¢
dLX %9 08T STYIOL YOANIA
L€98%S HDIOANT
8T/LT/E0 19481
“d¥0D XAINIM-EAJIT LTS
aLX 80°CIT’E STYIOL JOANHA
8%080TISd :HDIOANT
8T/L2/€0 09L8T
"OD INEWNIISNI NVWSHT 8ST
QLA 89°6T¢ STYIOL JOANHIA
9€59€%0006 HDIOANT
81/62/%0 65L8T
ONI SNOIINTOS SSANISNT VITONIW WOINOM S8T
dLX €.°029 STYIOL YOANIA
8G48T :HDIOANT
8T/82/¢€0 8SL8T
ANVAWOD ¥HIIYM NYOINHWY SIONITII LHTT
dLX 00°.88 STYLIOL YOANHIA
9686%ZF HEDIOANT
81/22/¢0 LSL8T
*ONI ‘SNIMMYH L9ZT
ALX LL H8E'9 STYIOL YOANIA
€070680T :*HDIOANT
8T/€T/€0 99L8T
69LE060T *IDIOANT
8T/€0/%0 SSL8T
ANVAWOD HOVH 6TT
QlX LZ°9L8'T STVIOL JOANHA
0d ¥HEHONOA HIV¥d ANI INIWAD0d
ANYN JOANIA
T-8T%0 :LNTIIYM
LIOdHY INYIIYM aIvd IA1ew

SATT UMD

8T:ZT 810Z/T0/90



"ONI ‘SHIJOIVMNOEVT NVYSNNdNS 8¢l

Z¥ 66T aivd dlX ZL %%E’T JIDIOANT dLX CL ¥FE’T STYIOL JOANIA
$0909%%LEE  :HIDIOANI

6% LY SHSNAJIXH dDIAJ0 00T0ES 0LT 8T/02/%0 d 80€£LSE 8T/S0/%0 CTLLBT
9880€SELEE HDIOANI

LT L% SHSNHJAXH HADTAJ0 00T0ES 0LZ 8T/0C/%0 d 80£LS6 8T/LZ/€0 TLLST
¥880€SELEE THEDIOANT

85°6 SHASNHIXH dOIAJ0 00TO0ES 0LZ 8T/0Z/%0 d 80ELSGE 8T/LZ/€0 04LL8T
S880E€ESELEE  *HDIOANI

8T°§ SESNHAXH HDIJAO0 00TOES 0.Z 81/02/%0 d 80€LS6 8T/L2/€0 69L8T
Z880€SELEE “HDIOANT

00°06 SHSNHZIXH HOIJAJ0 00TOES 0,2 8T/02/%0 d 80%ELS6 8T/€2/€0 89L8T

TONI TYIDYINNOD X IDVIINOD SHTIAVIS 6€£6
98" %8 aIvd 4Lk €€°6LE JIDIOANT QLXK €€ 6LE STTVIOL JOaNIA

ZOE9T900T8A8T +HDIOANT
98°%8 SHSNHEJXH HIIAJO 00TOES 0LZ 8T/0Z/%0 d LOELSE 8T/¥0/%0 L9L8T
YOTYAWY HIMON S¥dLYM HTLSHN ZTH

00°0TCT aIvd diLA 00°QcC¥% THOIOANI QLA 00°0Z% STIYLOL ¥OANIA
S0SG0TT *HEDIOANT
00°0TC YALNCD SANNO¥D ¥ DNIATING TL602S 0LZ 8T/0Z/%0 d 90€£LS6 8T/0€/€0 99L8T
"ONT SHOIAY¥ES ONIJIING TUYNOISSHAOWd HNO WYIDOAd TS6
00°¥%0C dIvd dLA 00 80¥% TIOIOANT QLA 00°80F STYLOL ¥YOANHA
LI9LTBOCZOTE HDOIOANT
00" ¥%0¢ SHSNIJXH dDIL40 00TOES 0LZ 8T/0T/%0 d SO0€LSE 8T/T0/%0 99481
ONI 'SHMOY AHNLId 9.8
TL° 8¢ aIvd aiX 9T vE€ JIOIOANI ALA 9T ¥EE STYLOL ¥YOANIA
06L8T *HOIOANT

TL"8€ SHSNAJXH dDIAA0 00TO0ES 0.2 8T/0Z/%0 d ¥0ELSE 8T/50/%0 06L8T
ONI ‘MNVY SHMOD AHNII4A dHL €L8

00°6TL aIv¥d aQlX §9°5¢8 AIDOIOANI QLXK S9 G€8 STYIOL YOANTA
?Z268€T *HDIOANI

S9°91T gYT - SAITddNS ONILYIHJIO 90T0€S 0LZ 8T/02/%0 d €0€LG6 8T/20/%0 $9.8T
LS98ET :HDIOANI

S€°209 gY1 - SHITAdNS ONILVIHJIO 90T0ES 0.2 8T/02/%0 d €0€LG6 81/LT/€0 £€9L8T

"ONI ‘YAONHHd 900T
007592 dIvd 4LX 00°SCT TIOIOANT dIA 00°SCT STYLOL ¥YOaNIA
€LL8T HDIOANT

NOIIJI¥DSIA INNODIY 1D INNOJDOY IO TIVA MHD I ON MDEHD 0d YEHONOA TIVA ANT INIHND0A

HWYN JOANIA
8T0Z/T€/2T OL 8T0Z/T0/TO SO/8T0T 'T¥ISIA OL T-8T%0 °INVIIYM
xxempdde INOdHEY INVIIYM aIvd Thxew

S d SATT UMD 8T:ZT 8T0Z/T0/90



9¢e”
00°

00°

8% °

87"

0S8~

0s”

86"

86"

00~

6L°%8T1°908 4

LS°96T°'¢€0T 6¢
wmoowe INOOD
I8% ‘606 STYIOL LI0dHA
S¢9 aivd dia
Sz9 S/INWAINOH TEHIVIZY ALHAYS
S¢c arvd dix
x4 SNOILYOINNWWNODHTHL
S9% arvd dia
S9¥ DNTITEANTIONT NOISHA
8% arv¥d ddLi
87 TVNILOVILNOD - GONYNILNI YW
629 dIivd dLa
‘629 GYI-SHOIATIS TYNOISSHAOUd

SYHASNVAL d¥IM TYIOL
SMDOHEHD THINIYE TYIOL

81/02/%0

8T/0Z/%0

81/02/%0

81/02/%0

8T/0Z/%0

THDIOANT

ETELSE

THOTIOANT

CTELSE

THDTIOANT

TTELSE

TIOTOANT

0TELSE

TIDIOANT

60€LS6

aix

dLA

dra

aLA

aLA

00°0sz’T STYLOL JOONHA

¥88G99 HDIOANI
8T/%0/%0 Z8L8BT
ONI ONIMOL SNOS % ISHM

TLOLS'€E STYLOL JOONIA

9Z.595%086 EDIOANI
81/T0/%0 LLLST
DT SADIANAS SSHTHIIM NOZIVHA

TP vL6'L STYLOL JOANHA

06E€FT *HDIOANI
8T/TE/€0 9LL8T
"ONI 'SELVIDOSSY aNV JIIIOUL

0L 66% SIVYLOL ¥OANHA

059986 HDIOANI
8T/TE/€0 SLLS8T
ANVAWOD XTddNS HOVHIHL

670T

886

TOOT

LT

NOILLAT¥DSHA INQODOY 1D

8T02/T€/2T Ol 8T0Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z I¥YDSIA OL

zxempdde

9

d

00°082°T

§ZZ0ES oLe

TL 0LS €

S6TTIZS oLe

TP PLE L

918025 oLe

0L 66F

9L602S 0LZ

00°000°TT

908029 0LT
INNODOY 1D

JIL¥d 3HD

ON MDHHD

00°000'TT SIVLOL ¥OANIA
EPTPST THOIOANT

8T/S0/%0 VLLBT

Od YHHONOA HIVA ANT LNINOQDO0a

HINTN

JOANHA

T-8T%0 *INVIIUM

LI0dHYE INVIIVM dIVd

TAxew

SATT YMD 8T:ZT 8T02/T0/90



8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0E/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

2R R R R E 2B X

[ 44 SHSNEJAXH HDTIA40 00TOES 0Le
9% 85T SNOILVDINNWHNODITAL S6TTCS 0LZ
00° 0% SHSNHdXH HDIAAO 00TOES 0Le
00°0CT NOILVYONdH HHAOTAWA 0Z90¢2¢s 0Le
067 CtT SESNHXH HDIAAO 00TO€ES oLe
00°00¢€- NOILVDNdH HHAOTIWH 0290¢S oLe
00°S9T ODNILSHL NV ONILINIDHFI ST90¢S 0LT
00" €6% NOIL¥ONdd HIAOTIWH 0¢€90¢s oLe
¥9°LSC NOILYONdd HIAXOTIWH 0290¢s 0Le
00°0cC NOILVDNIH HAXOTIWA 0T90¢S oLe
00°%T NOILVYONdd HHAOTIWH 0Z90¢es oLt
S6°6T dI¥d dlX €9°992'T
S6°6T SOINOYLOHTH - HONYNHINIVIN 086025 oLe
007522 aIi¥d dIX 00°08T'T
00°5c2 YILNOD SANNOYD 3 DNIAIINd TL60CS aLe
00°ST8’8 dI¥d dlx 00°S91°'6
00°9T8’8 SHAVIODIN JANILONVLSVIANT 0vT1089 (0574
1876299 dI¥d dILX 2S5 89¢’'¥PST
00°00S'T STYLINAY ¥YOZTIOAYA OXJD ¥O0OLT 08TO8S 0%
8708 SOINOYLOHETH-HONYNEINI VA 0860CS 0Le
00°6L0°S NIFDAXO dqIndIt evv0ces oLe
NOILATY¥OSHEd LNNODOY 1D INOODODY 1D

8T0Z/TE€/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0O/T0 S0/8T0Z TYDSIA OL

axempdde
L d

HLYQ XHO

9T8T-YMD :HDIOANT
zeee 8T/LZ/€0 LT88T
ST8T-¥MD :HDOIOANI
T€€T 8T/LT/€0 92881
PIST-¥MD :EDIOANTI
0cee 8T/LT/€0 52881
€T8T-¥MD :HDIOANT
62¢C 8T/LZ/€0 $Z881
CI8T-¥YMD :HDIOANI
8CEC 8T/L2/c0 €Z88T
TI8T-¥YMD :EDIOANI
LTET 81/Lc/€0 TT88T
0T8T-¥YMO :HDIOANI
92Z¢€T 8T1/LZ/€0 0288T
608T-YMD :HEDIOANT
SZET 8T/LT/€0 6T88T
808T-YMD *HEDIOANT
vzee 81/L2/c0 8T88T
LOBT-YMD EDIOANT
€TET 81/L2/¢€0 LT188T
908T-¥MD :HEDIOANT
zzee 81/L2/¢€0 9T88T
JMNVE QUIHL HIATIA LZL
QEDIOANI dLX €9°992°T STYIOL YOUNHA
ZL¥Z80I :HDIOANT
LTELSE 8T/0T/%0 L6L8T
ONI SYOIOW OIVIDHTHE AMATISIHIA %L
QIDIOANI JLX 00°08T’T STYLCL ¥OANIA
€89TLT  *EDIOANT
9T1ELSE 8T/0€/€0 96L8T
*0D YOLYAHTHE AHTIOD BIZT
JIOIOANT LA 00°S9T'6 STYIOL YOANHA
88€LZT :HDIOANI
STELSE 8T/2T/%0 S6L8T
ONI ‘Id 06 SYANIYVd XMNDYHAW 946
JIDIOANT QLA 25°89€'%ST STYIOL dOANIAA
LLB6YTFLO6  EDIOANT
¥1€LS6 ¥0008T0Z 8T/T€/c0 Y6481
8086€TCS66 HDIOANT
PTELSE 8T/L0/%0 €6L8T
TL86S%00S6 HDIOANT
¥1€LS6 8T/%0/%0 T6L8T
ONI ‘SYHMIY 188
ON DHEHD Od ¥HHONOA HIVA ANI INIWNND0A
ANYN JOANHA
Z-8TH0 : INVIIYM
IJ0dad INYIUIYM aIvd IATew

SATT U¥MD

8T:2ZT 8T0Z/T0/90



8L°0¢C SHITddNS - SNOILVIHJO

6L°F SHITdANS - SNOIIVIZAO
00°2€9’Z¢

00°2€9°2¢ SIDALO¥d TYLIAYD TIVHS
0Z°68%

L8°Z6T SOINOILOETH - HONYNALINI YN
L6°8LE SHITIANS - SNOILVIHJO
9€° LT INANI INOH - HONYNIINI VI
§8°T€2

G8°T€T 0 3 ONITIING-TONYNIINIVH
08°66%

00°20T TASNOOD TTIANID-TYOHT
08" L6¢E THSNOOD TYIANID-TYOHT
LT 68L ET

L9°9T0'¢ TYAIDVALNOD - HONYNLLNT YW
0S°CTLL'OT SHHA TYAHIAAO
G9°L0S'T

€6°92 NOILVONdH HAHAOTIWH
00°G6LT qd DAI-SNOTIITIDSINS -SINd
00°T8 YD ¥ ONIATING-TINYNITLNIYI

066025 0Le
066025 oLz

dIvd dLA 00°zg9’zeE

0CTO08S (084

dIv¥d dIA €% TeT'E

086025 oLT
0660CS oLe
546025 oLe

dI¥d 4LX LS°0ES’S

0L602S oLz

arvd aQlLX 00 LTI9’'€ET

00L02s 0LZ
00L0CS 0LT

dIvd dlX 86°06T’8L

9L60¢CS oLe
0ETTCS 0LZ

dIvd dLX S¥°606°CT

8T/0¢€/%0
8T/0€/%0

8T/0E/%0

8T/0g/%0
81/0€/%0
81/0€/%0

81/0¢€/%0

8T/0€/%0
81/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0
81/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

[AANAT
(AANAT

QIDIOANI dLX 00°2g9’eE
TTELSE 8T00LTOC

QEOIOANI dIX €b TET’C

0CELSE
0ZeLS6
0ZELS6

AIDOTOANTI QLX LS 0ES’S

6TELSE

QEOIOANT QLA 00 LT9'ET

8TELS6
8TELS6

81/50/%0 ¥088T
¥p6€8 HDIOANT
8T/€0/%0 €088T

"ONI ‘HIVMOTIVYH HOVY S,NAT

STYLOL JOONHA

S09TE :*HDIOANT
8T/TT/¥%0 20881
SHSTIJIHLNT ATH

STYLOL JOONHA

T088T :HDIOANT
8T/€T/%0 1088T
TO88T :HDIOANT
8T/€1/%0 T088T
T088T :HDIOANT
8T/€1/%0 T088T

ONI ‘¥S0 IOdEd HWOH
STNIOL JOANHA

£498%809L6 THOIOANT
8T/8T/%0 0088T
TONI ‘YEONIVED "M'M

STYLOL ¥OANHA

¥ZS0PT  HDIOANTI

8T/60/%0 66L8T
€ZS0%T *HEDIOANT

8T/60/%0 86L8T

"L J40H ANV DIEWEN ‘NYISSAY ‘INZAOYMS ‘ENILSTIOD

JIADIOANI ALE 86°06Z'8L

0zee
0Z¢cee

QEIDIOANI dIA S¥ 606°CT

STYLOL JOaNIA

C9T-LAT :*HOIOANT
8T/0€/%0 ESTETOT
Z9T-44T *HEDIOANT
81/0€/%0 ESTETOT

NATTH NATO 40 dEDVITIA
STYLOL JOdNHA

LST

¥vel

vet

L6T

ZL0T

£6c

NOILATIYOSHT INNODJOY IO

8T02/TE€/ZT OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0T TY¥DSIA OL

axempdde
8 d

0gsoezs 0Lz
0090¢s 0LT
0L60¢CS 0Le

INNODOY T2

HIYQ AHO

SO08T-¥YMD  dDIOANT
TZeET 8T/LZ/€0 €ET-UYMD
8T8T~-YMD :HOIOANT
veee 81/LZ/€0 6C88T
LTB8T-¥YMD :HDOIOANTI
£eee 8T/LC/€0 87881
ON DHHO Od ¥dHONOA HIVA ANT LNHNQD0d
HINEN

JOONHEA

Z2-8TF0 - INVIIUM

LI0dHYE INVIIVYM dIVd

SATT UMD

IAxew

8T:2T 8T0Z/T0/90



60° TPV

veE"69¢C

VETTICT
00°8ET

6T°229'T

6T°229'T

SL°Z0S'08

S.°205°08

00°020'T

00°020'T

S9°9TT

997911

S0°T¢E

S0°T¢E

LS SC

66" GT-
66°ST

81/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0

8T/0€/%0
8T/0€/%0

6CELSE

TIDIOANT

8TELSE
8CELS6

TIOTOANT

LZELSGE

THIOTIOANT

9¢¢eLS6

TIHOIOANT

SCELSE

THOIOANT

vZeLse

TIOIOANT

€CELS6

HDIOANT

cTELSE
22eLS6

aLA 89°8TS

QLA €2°2C¢9

40008102

aLA T8°6¢t¢

90008T0C

dLx 00°00T

LA $9°5¢8

LA 8L7616

LR 8T L9T

2069095086 :EDIOANI
8T/8T/%0 ¥T88T
OTT SHDOIAMHS SSHISNIM NOZIYHA 886

SNOTLYDINQWRODITIAL S6TTCS oLz
arvd alx 89°81G
TYNLOVAINOD SOINOILOHATH 186025 0LZ
TYALOVEINOD SOINOILOATA T860¢S oLz
arvd alX €2°2Z9°8T
SKS dILISIA DAS JIYLDATHA TO08T 08T08S oF
dI¥d dLX I8 6€£E€’0€T
IITIGVHAY INIWIINOT INVId 051085 ob
QIv¥d QLX 00°00T°S
VEINOD SANNO¥D 3 ONIATIING TL60ZS 0L
aIvd QLX S9°S¢€8
g1 - SEITJdNS ONIIVIAJO 90TOES 0Lz
QIvd QLX 8L°6T6°'T
INFING TNOH - TONYNIINT VI SLE60TS 0LZ
QI¥d QLA 8T°L9T
5HITddNS - SNOILVIAJO 066029 0LZ
SEITAANS - SNOILVIIAO 066029 0LZ
NOILAI¥DSHA LNNODDOY TD INNODOY 1D

8T0Z/TE€/2T OL 8TO0T/TO/TO0 S0/8T0T TYDSIA OL

axempdde
6 d

dIVA HO

ON DHHD

od

Ld0d

STYIOL JOANTA
80L0L£0€ :HDIOANI
8T/L0/%0 €T88T
0TLOLEOE :*HDIOANI
8T/L0/%0 ZT88T

ONI ‘' INAWHDYNYIN HANOLSAHEN 0%6

‘8T STYIOL ¥OANHA

PSTLET HDIOANI
8T/ZT/%0 TI88T
"ONI ‘SHIVIDOSSY ANVILS #9%
‘0€T STYLOL ¥OANIA
€66TT HEDIOANT
81/62/€0 0188T
"ONI 'ONIQVHddS IYYMALS LGL
‘g STIVIOL JOONHA
6088T :HDIOANI
8T1/8T/%0 6088T
ANYANOD ONINVATD O¥ 9Z2T
STVIOL YOANIA
LLTEET  HEDIOANT
8T/TT/%0 8088T
"ONT ‘YAONHHA 900T

'z STYIOL JOANHA
S92ZL809 :HDTIOANT
8T/ZT/%0 £.088T

‘0D A1ddOS YUVD-¥ALSYWOKW TLT
STYIOL JOANZA
9L0%8 HIIOANT
8T/0T/%0 9088T
690%8 :EDIOANI
8T/0T/%0 S088T
z00%¥8 :HEDIOANI
YEHONOA HIVA ANT INTWNDOa

HNYN JOaNIA
C-8T¥0 *INVIIYM

aAxiew
8T:2T 8T10Z/T0/90

dY INVIIYM dIVd
SATT UMD



LO”
Q0-

00"

60°

NOILATIOSHd INNODDY TH

810Z/T€/CT OL

Z8°962'ST ST SUHASNYIL dIIM TYIOL

ST 98T ¥%ET LT SMDOEHD THINIYd TYIOL

LNNOWY LNOQOD
€8¥ ‘67T STYLOL LYOdHA
SZ9 dI¥d dLX 00°0SZ’'T QEDIOANT dLA 00°0SZT°T STY.LOL ¥OaNHA

$8859 :HOIOANI
S29 S/INWAINOT dIILVIHY ALEIVS SCC0¢€S 0LZ 8T/0€/%0 d 0€ELSE 8T/L0/%0 ST88T
ONI DNIMOL SNOS 3 ISHM 6%0T

vy aIivd dLX TL°0LS'E QHEDIOANT QLA TL 0LS’E STYLOL dOUNHIA

810Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0C

axempdde

0T

d

O0d Y¥HHONOA HING ANT INIWO1D00d
HNYN dOaNIA

LNAODJDVY 1D HIVA JHD I ON MDIHD

TYOSId OL Z2-8T¥0 - INVIIUM
IATeu

8T:2T 8T0T/T0/920

LI0dHE INVIIYM dIvd
SATT ¥MD



6% 0LC

6€°06T

687061

00 TLT

00°TLT

19791

19791

00°09

00709

S6°8%T'91

S6°8FT 9T

6z ev8’e

62 €E¥8’C

00°T€L'TT

¥T°286°9
€5°02T°L
€€°8Z9 'L

8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

81/LT/S0

8T/LT/SO
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0O

LEELSE

JdOTOANT

9¢eLS6

THOTOANT

SEELSE

TdOTOANT

veelLse

TIOIOANT

€EeLSE

THOTIOANT

SEEe

HDIONANT

TEELSH

TIDTIOANT

TEELSE
TEELSHE
TEELG6

S/INWAINOE QAIVIAY ALIIVS SEAAVER 0Le
II¥d diX S6°TS6
YILNOD SANNOYD ¥ DNIATING TL60CS 0Le
dI¥d dLA 00°CZL
TEALIOVILNOD SOINOILLIOATH T860¢CS 0Le
II¥d dLA TS 60%
SOINOULOHTE -HONYNHINIVN 086025 oLz
arid¥d dLXx 00°09
NOTIL¥ONdd HHAOTIWA 0zso0cs oLT
dI¥d dLA 86°69L°09
NY'Id INIWIAOIAWI XLITIOVA LOOFPT 08T08S (0074
dIvd dLX 6.°¢89'S
STYOIWHHD ov¥0€S T-0LC
aI¥d dLX ZS°89€'¥ST
NEHDAXO dInNdIT £EPP0ES 0Le
NHEDAXO dIN0DIT EFPF0ES oLe
NEDAXO aIndI £Ev¥0cES 0Le
NOILATYDSId INAODIOVY TID INOODOY IO

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8T0Z/TO/T0 S0/8T0Z TYISIA OL

xxempdde
TT d

HIVJ AHD

ON DdHD

T6PEFP9E0T8  EDIOANT
8T/%0/S0 Z¥88T
AIFAYS ¥ JIV LSYIA SYINID 89L
dLX S6°1G6 STYIOL JOANTA
8S¥ETP69L HDIOANT
81/%2/%0 €¥88T
69L# NOILYIOJHOD SVINID L¥
QLA 00°22L STYIOL ¥OANHA
ZLB8TBTOONI :HEDIOANT
8T/¥1/%0 T#88T
*0D NOILNIAHId HITd NYLITOJOYLIW ODVOIHD 09TT
drx 1S 60% STYLOL JOANIA
9CZHSAWW  :HDIOANI
8T1/%2/%0 0%88T
“ONI ‘ INHWNJIIAOD MAD LE
dLXx 00°09 STYIOL JOANHA
SE€88T *HEDIOANI
8T/80/50 S€88T
Yovdg NOL 999
QLX 86°69L°0% STYIOL YOANIA
¥.289ZT ADIOANI
0009102 8T/60/%0 ¥€£88T
NOILYIOdIOD HOIVHA ¥ MOVILd vTTT
ALK 6L°289°S STYIOL JOANHIA
L¥S8900TSTIS HDIOANT
81/€2/20 ££88T
NOILVIOJIOD TYIIWIHD JIAANYXHTY 6
QLK TS 89€'¥ST STVIOL dOANHA
§0G509%0056 *HDIOANI
81/82/%0 z€881
26009%0056 HDIOANI
8T/¥T/%0 T€88T
§6209%0056 :HDIOANT
8T/TC/%0 0€88T
ONI ‘S¥YDYIV 188
0d ¥HHONOA HIVA ANI INIRNDOd
HNYN JOANHA
T-8TS0 :INVIIYM
INOdHEY INVISYM aIvd akxew

SATT ¥MD

8T:ZT 8T10Z/10/90



0€°9589

9% 26
¥8°¢9¢C

08°¢8

08°¢8

09°¥CT

097 %CT

99 6TL'Y

L8°18¢
T8 LO¥
86°6T6'¢C

00°000°S

00°000°s

657202

69720C

00°16T

00°T6T

67" 0LT

arvdg

SOINOYLOHATH - HONYNI LN T YN
SOINOULOHETH - HONYNIINI YR

arvd

SHDILON TYDET

arvd

SHSNEdXHE HDIJ4A0

arvd

SYD NAD-JATHS
SYD TYUINLYN
S¥D TYINLEYN

arvd

TENLOYIINOD SOINOALIOATH

aTvd

SNOTLYOINAKWWNODHTIL

arvd

YIINOD SANAOED 3 DNIAIING

arvd

arLx

aLix

arLa

drLx

arLa

arLx

aQLA

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/SO

8T/LT/50

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/G0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0O

TIOIOANT

¥YrELSGE
AN

TIOIOANT

€VELSE

TIDIOANT

(AANAT

TIDIOANT

TveLS6
TveELSE
TvELSE

TIDIOANT

(O ANAT

TIDIOANT

6€ELS6

TIDTIOANT

8¢ELS6

THOTIOANT

dLAx

arLx

aLx

aLx

ara

arLA

arLx

NOILATYDSHA LNNODIY 1D

8T0Z/T1€/2T OL 8TOZ/TO/TO0 S0/8T0Z TI¥DSIA OL

zxempdde
L1 d

€9°992Z°1

0860¢CS 0LT
0860C9 0LZ
ST°9T¢t

05L02S 0LC
69°86¢
00TOES oLZ
00°€S€’Z¥%
y0cTCS oLz
(A} ARAT T-0L2
c0cTCsS 0LZ
00°000°S
86029 0LT
S6°CT0'T
S6TTCS oLe
00°08T'T
TL60CS oLe
98°LO%'T
LNNODOY "ID

dLYd XHD

ON XDHHD

€9°992°T STYIOL JOANIA
LZT¥E€80T HOIOANI
81/02/%0 2S88T
TZTEB0I :EDIOANI
8T/LT/%0 1688T
ONI S¥OILOW DIVIDETH IAATISIHIA %L
ST 9T¢E STYIOL JOANIA
85086FFL IDIOANI
81/91/%0 0588T
ONI ‘SNOIL¥DSITINd MD0ad¥d Z9
69°86¢€ STVIOL JOANIA
99%TE :HDIOANI
8T/¥2/%0 6%88T
"ONI SOIHAVIDOIdHY SHJOHI SSOUD 186
00-€s€’'ey STYILOL JOONIA
85080€T HDTIOANI
8T/%0/50 LY¥88T
85080€Z HDIOANI
8T/%0/S0 L¥88T
85080¢2 TOIOANT
8T/%0/S0 L¥88T
ONI SHDIAYHS ADYHNH NOILVIIHLSNOD 8¢TT
00°000°’S STYIOL JOaNIA
¥8%86T :HDIOANT
8T/61T/%0 8¥88T
OTT NOIIVIEDIINI SWALSAS TOUINOD M3d 8%ZT
S6°CTI0'T STYIOL JOONIA
S¥88T :HDIOANT
8T/S2/%0 S¥88T
JTT ‘SNOILVDINAWWOD dTd¥D ISYDWOD 06%
00°08T'T STYIOL JOONIA
L96TLT :ADIOANI
8T1/1T0/50 ?¥88T
*OD YOLYAHTH ARITIOD 8TCT
98" L0%'T STYIOL JOANHAA
Od WHHDNOA HI¥d ANT INIWNND0Q
ANYN JOANHA
T-8TS0 *INVIIUM
LAOdHY INVIIVM dIvd Thxeu

SATT UMD

8T:ZT 8T0Z/T0/90



00°9¢€ INEWd T00F - EONYNZLNI VI
L0 ¥LZ

Lo wLT TVNLOVILNOD -~ SNOILVYIHJO
80°LPT'T

82°S0¥% SOINOALOETH - HONYNHLNIVA
997 9%T SOINOYLOHTH -HONYNEINIVI
¥Z° 5685 INEWNd IN0H - ZIONYNHINIVIN
ZE TEC

CE'TE SHSNJIdXH dDIHJL0
00°00¢T g4 DHI-SNOILII¥DSHNS - SHNA
86 zLE'T

98°6T ddIYM
Zr-gsz’e dHILYM
[4AR 44

zTrece SOINOULOHTH ~HONYNHILNIVIH
ST°0L

6L° €S LNIWd IN0H - EONYNILNTVIW
8€°8 SOINOYALOHTH - HONVNHLNTI VI
86°L SOINOULOHTH - HONVNHLNT VN

§5L60¢CS 0LT

dIvd LA LT 9L8'T

1660¢9 0LT

dIvd dLX LS5°0£S’S

08602CS 0Le
0860¢CS 0Le
SL60¢CS oLT

divd dLA € TET

00TOES oLe
0090¢sS oLT

daIvd dLX 86°06Z°8L

£€0ZTTS oLe
£02TCS oLe

dI¥d dIX 8T L6S'T

0860¢S oLe

dINd dLA 22 78

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/tT/S0
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0Q

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

L¥E THDIOANTI
8T/TE/E0 T988T
TOVIVYD SNIHLSTOH

TS€ELS6

QIDIOANI QLA LZ 9L8'T STYILOL dOaNHA

PSPTSLT HOIOANI
05€LS6 8T/T0/S0 0988T
ONI ‘I00dD

QHOIOANT dLA LS°0€S’S STVLOL dOONHA

0EH0LEELLE *HDIOANT
6%€LG6 81/10/50 6588T
S6TL90TLLE  HDIOANT
6VELSE 8T/LZ/%0 8588T
1¥$9298LL6 *ADIOANI
6V ELSE 8T/%0/50 LS88T

‘ONI "YHEONIVED "M°M

TIOIOANT QLA T& TET STYLOL ¥OANIA

T0-8T0Z :HDIOANI

8% £LS6 8T1/60/90 8.488T
T0-8T0Z :*HDIOANI

8%€LSE 8T/60/90 8.88T

ALTIOHINV YHIVMALSYM JIVENETD

JHDOIOANT LA 86°06Z'8L STIVIOL JOaNHA

7068T ‘HDIOANI
LYELSE 8T/T0/S0 7068T

£068T *HOIOANT
LYeLS6 8T/T0/S0 €068T

NATTH NAHTD 40 HOVITIA

QIDIOANT QLX 8Z L6S'T STYIOL ¥OANIA
0%46€8 *HDIOANI
8T/20/%0 S068T
ONI NOIINIYISIA O0DSHEM A0 NOISIAIA ¥ ‘0D0SHA

9veLG6

TIDIOANT dLX 2T %8 STYLOL JOdNHA

986

eVl

L6T

828

£6T

98

NOILATEDSHEA INNODIY 1D

8T0Z/1€/2T OL 8T10Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z TYDSIA OL

xxempdde
€T d

SL60CS 0Le
0860¢S oLe
0860¢CS oLe

INOODOY TD

dLYT XHO

88€EY HDIOANT
SYELSE 8T/80/€0 §688T
Z8E€EY HDIOANT
SYELSE 8T/80/¢€0 $588T
T8E€EY HDIOANI
S¥ELS6 8T/80/€0 £S88T
*ONI ‘SNOILATOS ALIVNDAS #OYANG
ON MDHEHD 0d ¥AEHDONOA HIVA ANT INIWND0J
TNYN

FOANHA

T-8TS0 *INVIEYM

LI0dHE INVIIVM dIVd
2ATT UMD

JAxeuw

8T:ZT 8T10Z/T0/90



00°8L

297 0L

21765
0S°TT

00°00T’6

00°00T’6

00709

00709

€L LY

€L LY

20 9LL

207 9LL

00°0TC

00°0TC

vE78¢CT

¥e 821

00°s¢

LITIEVHAY INIWAINOH INVId

arvd

SHITAdNS - SNOILYJYHdO
SHITddNS - SNOILVIHJO
arvd

HOIAY¥HES A0¥d - SHHA IIdNY
arvd

NOILYONdH HIAOTIWH

aIvd

SHSNAIXH dADIAJ0

arvd

INHNI TN0H - HONYNZLNI VI

arvd

SESNHIXH d2IJJ0

arvd

AHILIM

arvd

NOILATI¥OSHd LNAODOY TO

8T0Z/TE/ZT OL 8TOZ/TO/TO SO/8T0T TYISIA OL

axempdde
7T d

arLx

arLx

ara

[ERWN

aLx

dLA

dLA

0STO08S (037

8T°L9C

066029 0LT

066029 0Le

00°00T'6

9280CS 0LZ

00°S8

0290¢es 0Le

89°6T¢t

00T0ES oLe

20" 9LL

GL602S Z-0Le

00°0T¢

00T0ES aLe

£L°029

€0CTCS £-0LT

00°LcC
HZDOUUﬂ.mWI

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/G0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/SO

8T/LT/S0

HIVYA XHD

65€LG6

TIOTOANT

85tLS6
8G¢ELS6

JHOTIOANT

LSELSGSE

TIOIOANT

99¢%L56

TIJ3IOANT

G9ELSE

THOTOANT

PSELS6

THOIOANT

£9€ELSE

TIOIOANT

TSELSE

IO IOANT

ON DHEHD

NI-09%C. *HIDIOANTI
8T/61/%0 0.88T
"ONI ‘INAWAINDH SSHEO0Id AIIFAIT

QLA 8T L9T STYLOL YOANHA
€ETFS
8T/0C/%0
STZ%8 :HDIOANI
8T/6T/%0 8988T
"ONI ‘HIVYMTIVH S0V S,NAT

FHOIOANT
6988T

aLXx 00°00T‘6 STYIOL ¥OANIA
0T08Z :HDIOANTI
81/€2/%0 L988T
dTT ‘NEWY ¥ HOVEIEIOYT
dLX 00°G8 STYIOL JOUNIA
95981 HEDIOANI
8T/80/50 96881
SAAAITIL HIINYI
ALX 89°6T1¢ STYIOL MOANIA
PLPOESH006  HEDIOANI
8T/S2/%0 9988T
ONI SNOILNTOS SSANISND VITONIW ¥OINOM
ALk 2O 9LL STYIOL JOANIA
S96L% HDIOANT
8T/21/%0 ¥888T
ANVAWOD TIO NOSNHOL "H ¥
aLx 00°0TZ STYIOL VOANIA
6GF00TT :HDIOANI
8T/T0/S0O %9881
DT ‘ONINIOMIAN IOVAWI
ali €L°0T9 STYIOL JOANHA
€988T :HDIOANT
8T/02/%0 €988T
ANYAWOD YIIYM NYDINIWY SIONITII

dLA 00°LZCZC STVLOL ¥OaNIA

Od ¥HHONOA HIVA ANT LNHNOD0A

HWVN
T-8T1S0

LUOdHY INVIIYM dIVd
SATT UMD

SETT

LST

€ETT

SYIT

S8T

¥SL

PICT

LYTT

JOANHA

* LNYIIYM

IAhIew

8T:2T 8T02/T0/90



S2°5¢9

e ¢o

(A

00°seCT

00°S2T

S$8°v9¢

S8° %92

P 8LS

¥¥ 8LS

00" 9TO0 ‘67T

00°9T0'P¥T
00°000°S

SLTP9

£ ve
257 0%

00709

00°09

00°8L

INIWd IN0H - HONYNHINT VI

arvd

ININd INOH -HONYNIINIVIN

arvd

NOILYDNOd HHAOTIWH

arvd

ININd IN0H -TONYNILNT VI

arvd

SOINOYLOETH -HONVNIINIV

ary¥d

HONVINSNI ALITIGVIT
40 3 DNIATING-HONVYNHINIVW

arvd

SOINOALOETH -HONVNLINIVI
SOINOQYLOHETH -HONVNIINIVIN

arvd

NOILVONTH HHAAOTJIWA

arvd

[ANPN

arLx

dLA

dra

dLAx

aLi

arLx

8T/LT/SO

8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

89¢€LS6

TIDTIOANT

LI9ELSE

QIDTIOANT

99¢€L96

TIOIOANT

S99€LS6

TIDIOANT

vocLSe

THDIOANT

Z9€ELS6
€9¢L86

TIOTIOANT

T9ELSE
TOELSGE

TIOIOANT

09€LS6

TIDIOANT

dLk

dLA

dLA

dLA

dLA

arx

arx

0s

00°

S8-°

LY"

00°

8L’

00"

NOILATEDSEd LNNODIOY 1D

8T0Z/T€/2T OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z TYDSIA OL

axempdde
ST d

SL60CS aLe
0S°2Z8% 0T
SL60¢CS oLe
00°SCT
0290¢S LT
S8 ¥%9¢
§.60¢CS oLz
LY LTT'T
0860¢€S oLz
00" 9TO0 ‘67T
G880¢CS 0LT
0L60¢CS oLe
8L 6T6°C
086025 oLz
0860¢S 0Lc
00°59¢2T
0C90¢s oLe
00°TLS

LNNOJOY 1D

HIYA XHD

ON DHHD

AATT ¥MD

8T/%¥0/S0 0888T
‘ONI WAATOILAd NMOL-QIW- ANACYIHI 08T
*Z8% 0T STYIOL ¥OANIA
00-SSE8ELTT *HDIOANI
8T1/%0/S0 6L88T
00 ATddNs ANV JdId dFI¥Od 92T
SeT STYIOL JOANHA
LL88T HDIOANT
8T/0T/S0O LL488T
YISOMYd MHIANY 9€8
$92 STYLOL JOANHA
CETZ06206 HITOANI
8T/8T/%0 9.88T
TONI ‘0D KIAAYS MNAHHINON 6S¢
LIZ'2 STYLOL HOANIA
ZT80%0¢€ EDIOANI
8T/92/%0 G.88T
"ONI ‘ODNEN 66T
9T0‘6%T STYIOL JOANHA
$488T *HOIOANI
8T/T0/S0 ¥L88T
€488T HDTIOANI
BT/6T/%0 €L88T
ADNHADV HAIIVIAJOOD SNI TVAIDINAW LOF
6T6'C STVIOL JOANHA
6%6926T9 *HDIOANT
8T/92/%0 ZL88T
S8%6TI8T9 :EDIOANT
8T/5C/%0 TL88T
0D ATdANS VAYD-YALSYWOW TLT
SeT STYIOL JOANIA
86881 :*HDIOANI
8T/21/%0 8688T
JAHOIHILS MIHLLVW ¥8TT
TL8 STYIOL JOONHA
Od ¥HEHONOA HIVd ANI ININND0A
HNYN JOANIA
T-8TS0 *INYIIYM
LI0ddyd INVIIVM dIVd IATeUW

81:2T 8T0Z/T0/90



8T/LT/SO
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/L1/S0

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0O
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0O

8T/LT/S0

A A A A

0S°0LE Y T-SHDIAYAS TYNOISSHAONA 908029 0LZ
05°0LE Y T-SHIIAYHS TYNOISSHAOUL 90802S 0LT
00°0S€ dYI-SHDIAIES TYNOISSTIOEd 9080¢S 0LZ
00" Q€T gYT-SHOIAYEAS TUYNOISSHAOUA 908029 0Lz
00°€91°0¢€ dI¥d QLA T8°6EE€’'0ET
00°€9170€ ANV - T¥S0dSId d@oants 0STTCS oLz
00°0L aIvd dLA 00704
00°0L TYNLOYVILNOD - HONYNILNI VK 9L602S 0LZ
67081 dIvd dLX 2L HPE’T
926611 SASNAJXA HOTIALO0 00T0€S 0LZ
€8°09 SHSNAJXH HDIAL0 00T0€S 042
00°862°22 aIvd dLX 00°S¥Z’TS
00°000'¢ SHAVIDIN HINLONTLSVIANT 0¥T08S 0%
00°6%9'6 TYNLOVEINOD SOINCILOATH 186025 0Leg
00°6%9'6 TYNLOYIINOD SOINCELOATH 186029 0LE
SL°02 aIvd dLX 8S5°99
S.°0C SOINOILOATH - ADNYNILNTI VN 086025 0LT
S9°2Z8%'T aIvd dIX S¥ SIv’¢€
0%" LS8 INAIWd INOH - HONYNILNT YW SL602S 0LZ
NOILAI¥DSHA INNODDY 19D INQODDY fID

8T0C/T1€/2T QL 8T0Z/TO0/T0 S0/8T0Z I¥DSIA OL

xxempdde
ST d

dI¥d JTHOD

0€9%ST *HEDIOANI
SLELSE 81/9Z/%0 €688T
879%9T MOTOANT
SLELSE 8T/92/%0 Z688T
TL9BST TDIOANT
SLELSE 8T/LZ/%0 1688T
066%ST ADIOANT
SLELSE 8T/0£/%0 0688T
*ONI ‘SHEIJOLYIOEVT NYRINGNS 8€L
TIDIOANT QLX T8 6E£€’0E€T STYIOL JOANIA
800ZT ‘EDIOANT
YLELSE 8T/52/%0 6888T
"ONI ‘ONIAVHIAS IUYMALS LSL
AIDTIOANI QLA 00°0L STYLOL JYOANHA
T0L¥6S6 *HDIOANI
€LELSE 8T/LT/%0 2988T
VHSYYW H¥Td HIYLIS HHL J0 HDIJ40 SIONITII LLL
AQIDIOANI QLA ZL°¥PE’T STYIOL JOANYIA
TE€866ELLEE  HDIOANT
TLELSE 8T/€0/50 L6881
€ZTEELSLEE HDOIOANT
TLELSE 8T/9T/%0 88881
TONI TYIDYAWHOD 3 IOVALNOD SHIAVIS 6€6
AIDTOANI QLA 00°S¥ZT’TS STYLOL JOANIA
ST0G0€d :HDIOANI
0LELSE 80008T0¢ 8T/50/%0 1.888T
ST0S0€  HEDIOANT
0LELSE z0008T0T 8T1/450/%0 9888T
9T050€ :*HDIOANTI
0LELSE Z0008T0T 81/20/S0 5888T
ONI ‘dno¥d NOY 2TZT
JIDIOANTI ALX 8S°99 STYIOL YOONHA
TO00 TE6L9GES *HDIOANT
69€L96 81/LT/%0 £€888T1
ATddAS JTYIDATE HIAAATI 0LOT
QIDIOANT TLA S¥ ST¥V’€ STYLOL YOANIA
NI-€0ZLITT :HDIOANI
89€L56 8T/€2/%0 Z2888T
NI-0T9ZZTT :HDIOANI
ON MDHHD 0d JYAHONOA ALY ANT INIWNDOd
HNYN MOANTA
T-8T1S0 :INTIIYM
Id0dad INVIIYM dIvd Threw

SATT ¥MD

8T:ZT 8T0Z/T0/90



$8°560'%LT
[7ASR-T44

¥G°G6¢c

ve 26

00°8%
ik 474
05 cee’'e

05°0LE
05°0LE
057 0LE

S6°8%T°'9T T SYHASNVAL d¥IM TYLOL
68°9%6'LST LY SAOEHD THINTAd TYLOL

SIYLOL LIOdHA
dIvd QLA TL 0LS'E

8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/S0

8T/LT/S0
8T/LT/SO
8T/LT/S0

QIDOIOANI QLR TL'0LS'€E STYLOL JOANHA

Z6EET¥9086 HOIOANI
LLELSE 8T/T0/S0 T068T
OTT SHOIAJES SSHTIIIM NOZIJEA 886

SNOTLLVOINAWWOOETHL S6TTCS oLz
dI¥d dLX 0L 66%

TYNLOVALNOD - IONYNHLNTVIN 9L602S 0LZ
TYNLOVILNOD - HINVNHLNTVIN 946025 0Le

dI¥d QLA 00°000°TT
Y I-SHOTAYES TYNOISSHIOdEd 908025 0Le
gGYT-SHOIATES TYNOISSHAOUAd 9080¢CS 0LT
Y I-SHOIAYHS TYNOISSHAOII 9080¢S 0LZ
NOILATIDSHd LNNODOY ID LNNOJDY IO

8T0Z/TE€/2T OL 8T0Z/TQ/TO0 S0/8T0Z TIYDSIA OL

Txempdde
LT d

HIL¥YA MHOD

TIOIOANI dLX 0L 66% STYLOL ¥OONHA
€C8L86 THDIOANT
9LELSE 8T/0€/%0 0068T
6455986 *HOIOANT
9LELSE 81/82/20 6688T
ANYdHWOO ATddNS HOVIYHL TLZ
EDOIOANT QLA 00°000°TT STYLOL JOANHA
S0EeST  HDIOANTI
SLELSE 8T/2T/€0 96881
L0EEST HDIOANT
SLELSE 8T/ZT/€0 9688T
629%ST -HOIOANI
SLELSE 8T/92/%0 76881
ON OHHD O0d dHHONOA HIVd ANT LNHWADO0A

HNYN JOANHA
T-8TS0 :INVIIUM

IIOdH INVIIVM dIYd IAIeW
SATT UMD 8T:2T 8T102/T0/90



0%°"8CT
PT°611

08 "TTIT'T

08 ITT'T

00°05¢

00°s2¥%
007005~

00°SC¥%

9L°92¢

9L°92¢

05°6€8°'C

05°6€8°'2

8L TLY9'PT

06°T2S'L
SO0 LY

00°00S'T
€87 €09°9

08-¢ec

08 ¢cce

8T/1€/50
8T/T€/S0

8T/T€/S0

8T/T€/S0
8T/TE/SO
8T/TE/SO

8T/TE/S0

8T/T€/S0

8T/T€/S0
8T/TE/S0
8T/T€E/S0
8T/T€E/S0

8T/TE/S0

SOINCELOETH -HONVNI INT VA 0860¢S oLe
SOINOILOATH -HONVNIILNIVIH 0860¢CS 0Le
dI¥d dLX ¥9°0L¥%'S
SNOLLVYDINNWNODHTHAL S6TTCS 0LZ
dIv¥d diX 00°S91°'6
SOINOALOHTH ~HONYNILNIT YN 086025 0LT
SHAYIDAN HINLONALSYIANT 0%T08S 74
SOINOILOHETH ~HONYNIINT YW 0860¢€9 0Lz
arvd diX 9L°9TZ
INAWI INOH - ADNVYNIINIVIN SL602S 0Le
dIvd diX 6L°T89°S
STYOINWHHD 0v¥0€S T-0LT
arvd dLX 2S5 89€'¥%ST
NEOAXO aqIndIT E¥F0€ES oLz
SOINOYLOETH - HONYNALNTYIN 086029 oLz
STYINHY JOZIYOJVA OR¥D ¥00LT 08T0O8S 0%
NEDAXO dINdIT ev¥0cES oLe
II¥d dLA 80°LOE
INIWG IN0H - ADONYNTINTI VI SL60<CS oLe
NOILLATEDSHA INNODIOVY 1D LNNODDY 1O

8T0Z/T€/2T OL 8T0Z/TO0/T0 S0O/8T0Z TT¥YISII OL

zxempdde
8T d

dL¥d MHD

SO09TPID EDIOANI
¥8ELSE 8T/TZ/€0 LT68T
96FTHTD EDIOANI
¥8€LS6 8T/ST/€0 9168T
"ONI ‘SHIOLS IJY ® SSVID ‘INIVd NOSTIVD 00TT
QIDIOANTI dIX ¥9°0L%’S STYIOL JYOANIA
ST68T :HIDIOANT
£8€L56 8T/ST/S0 ST168T
SNOILUVDINAWNOD CHLINN 6T8
QAIOIOANI QLA 00°S9T'6 STYIOL YOANHA
1848217 HDIOANI
28€L596 8T/¥T/S0 ?168T
9%S82T *HDIOANI
28€LS6E 8T/80/50 6€88T
L2282T :IEDIOANT
Z8ELS6 81/0€/%0 8€88T
ONI ‘I9 06 SYANLIVd RINDIHW 9L6
QIDIOANT dIX 9L°92¢ STYIOL JOANIA
0%99208L2 :HDIOANT
T8€LS6 8T/91/50 8068T
ONI TYAVT VATY 0¢TT
QIDIOANI dLX 6L°T89°S STYLOL JOANZA
€660L00TSTS  :HEDIOANT
08€LS6 8T/%1/50 ZT68T
NOILYEOdd0D TYOIWHHD JHAANVXATY 6
AADTOANT IIA 29 89¢ '¥ST STYIOL JOANHA
LO¥S9%0056  HDIOANI
6LELSE 8T/21/50 ve68T
L88EEBTSH6 THDIOANI
6LELSE 8T/S0/50 8T168T
8LSGTLYSL06 HDIOANI
6LELSE ¥0008T0C 8T/0¢/%0 TTI68T
2919990096 :HDIOANI
6LELSE 8T/50/S0 6068T
ONI ‘S¥DdIV 188
QEDIOANI QLA 80 LOE STYIOL JOANIA
PS9TTY  HDIOANI
8LELSE 8T/¥T/S0 9068T
ANYANOD SHIIANHS ¥IV #96
ON MDHHO 0d ¥FHONOA HIVA AN INAKNDOJ
NN JOANIA
Z-8TS0 :INVINYM
ILI04HT INVIIYM aIvd IAzew

SATT ¥YMD

8T:CT 8102/10/90



65°02T
66°0CT
88°0TT
C6°STT
05709
[ 44
v0° 6%
96 ¢€LT
00°029
BT TS
67 8LT

8L PET

00°9
8€°8CT

0T 6¢€

0T°6¢

8 %01

18°¥0T

00" 96¥%

00°S6¥

VS LYC

SOINOALOATH - HONYNILNI VN
SOINOYLOHTH - HONVYNIINI YN
NOILYONAH dHAQTIWNA
SHSNIIXd d0IdAA0
SHSNAIXH dO5IAA0
SHSNHdAXH dOIA40
SHSNHdIXH d0IA40
SNOILVOINNWWODETHL
NOILVONOH HHAQTIWH

dd DEI-SNOILLAIIDSHAS -SaNd
NOILVONdH HEAOTAWH

arvd

SOINOYTLOHTH - HONVYNILNI VI
SOINOILOHTH -HONYNHLNTVIN

aIivd

SHOILON TV¥DHT

arvd

ININd IN0H - HONYNIINT VI

arvd

NOILYONdHE HHAOTAWH

aIvd

NOILAI¥OSHd ILNNODOVY IO

8T0Z/TE/CT OL 8T0Z/TO/TO S0/8T0Z TYISIA OL

xaxempdde |
6T d|

arLa

aLx

aLx

arx

0860¢CS 0LT
0860¢CS 0LZ
0co0cs 0Lc
00TOES oLz
00TO€ES 0LZ
00T0ES oLT
00TOES oLe
S6TTCS oLT
0¢o0cs 0LZ
0090¢s 0LZ
0co0zs 0LZ
€9°99¢’1
0860¢CS oLz
086029 oLe
SZ°9T¢
05L0¢CS 0LZ
6T°19¢
SL602CS 0LT
00" 96¥%
0290¢s 0LZ
¥STL¥C
LNOODOY 1D

8T/0€/50
8T/0€/50
8T/0€/50
8T/0€/G0
8T/0€/50
8T/0€/50
8T/0€/50
81/0¢€/50
81/0€/50
81/0€/50
81/0¢€/50

8T/TE/S0
81/T€/S0

8T/T€E/S0

81/T€/S0

81/0€/50

HIYd MHO

I O - A O A - A

8v¢ec
L¥EC
ovee
Svec
vvee
£evee
eree
vee
ovee
6€ET
8€ET

THOTOANT

LBELSE
L8ELS6

QHEOTOANT

98¢€LSG6E

THDOTOANT

S8ELS6E

HOTOANT

[A°E X4

QEDOTOANT

ON MJHHO

aLXx

[EAN

arx

[EAWN

€9

sg”

6T"

00"

"99Z°'T

91¢

19¢

S67%

Od ¥HHONOA dIVd ANT

8T/LZ/%0 L968T
6TBT-YMD :EDIOANI
8T/LZ/%0 9968T
8C8T-YMD :EDIOANI
8T/LT/%0 S968T
LTBT-UYMD :EDIOANI
8T/LZ/%0 ¥968T
9Z8T-¥YMD :EDIOQOANI
81/LT/%0 €968T
SZT8T-YMD :HDIOANI
8T/LZ/%0 T968T
$Z8T-¥MD  HDIOANI
8T/LZ/%0 T968T
€Z8T-UMD :HEDIOANI
81/LZ/%0 0968T
TZ8T-YMD HDIOANI
81/L2/%0 6568T
TZ8T-YMD HDIOANT
81/LZ/%0 8968T
0Z8T-¥MD :EDIOANI
81/LZ/%0 LS68T
MNVE QYIHL HIJAIA LZL
STYIOL JOANHA
6L6G80I :HEDIOANI
8T/LT/S0 £268T
€90580T :HDIOANI
81/80/50 ZT68T
ONI SYOIOW OTdIDATH IANIISIHAA ¥4
STYLOL YOANHA
69€66%PL HDIOANI
81/Z0/S0 0T68T
'SNOIIYOITIENd MD0davd Z9
STYIOL JOANHA
952F8 HDIOANT
8T/0T/S0 61681
SINYDI¥ENT OTD $¥9
STYIOL JOANIA
T-HSVHD ADIOANT
8T/L0/S0O TLE8T
YN ASYHD NYDIOW AL 89ZT
STYLOL JOANIA
INTHNDOT
HWNYN JOdNIA
2-8TS0 :INVIIYM
xAIew

LIOdHY LNVIYVYM dIVd

SATT ¥MD

8T:2T 8T0T/T0/90



T€68T :HDIOANI
V6 67 SHITIINS - SNOLILYIAJO 0660CS 0LZ 8T/TE€/S0 d T6ELGE 8T1/€1/50 1€68T

ONI ‘¥SN I0dHd HWOH ¥ZT
00°LST divd dLX 00°LcT TIDOIOANI dLA 00°LCT STYLOL JOONHEA
¢6t  *HDIOANTI

00°LST INIWdIN0H - ZONYNTINIVIN SL60¢S 0LZ 8T/TE/S0 d T6ELSE 8T/0E/%0 0€68T
dDVIVD SNIHLSTOH S86

£€8°8¢€%’g aIvd QlX LL°%8€’9 QADIOANT ALX LL ¥8E'9 STVIOL JOONIA
59679607 ‘“HDIOANI

€8°0€T Y1 - SHEITAANS DNIIVIHAO 90T0ES 042 8T/TE/S0 d 06€£LG6 8T/0T/S0O 62681
9ETIF60T *HDIOANI

00°80€’'S TYALOYIINOD SOINOILIATH 186025 0.2 8T/TE/S0 d 06ELSE 8T/T0/50 8Z68T

ANVANOD HOVH 6TT

86°18¢ dIvd aLX LS 0€S’S QHDIOANI QLA LS°0€5°S SIVIOL JOONIA
8086T0T8LE HADIOANI

ALY A INFINd IN0H - IONYNIINIT YN SL602S 0,2 8T/TE/S0 d 68ELS6E 8T1/80/50 LT68T
¥LLS6FT6LE  TIDIOANT

98°GST SOINOILOITH - HONVNILNI Y 086025 0,2 8T/TE/S0 d 68ELS6E 8T/LT/S0 9Z68T

‘ONI ‘YHONIVED "M'M L6T
00" €99 aIi¥d dlX 00°LT9°CT JIOIOANI QLA 00°LT9’¢ET STYIOL JOaNdA
9LLOYT HDOIOANI

00°£99 NYId LNIWIAQIAWI ALITIOVA LOOFPT 08TO8S 0% 8T/TE/S0 d 88€LSE 8T/€0/S0 SC68T
‘LT 440H ANV DEWEN ‘NYISSQY ‘INZAOWAS ‘ENILSAIOD ZLO0T

LT°68LET dIvd aQLX 86°06Z°8L JHDOIOANI dIX 86°06C 8L STYILOL JOANHTA
£9T-14T HDIOANI
L9°9T0 € TYNLOVALNOD - HONYNI LN TV 946025 0LZ 8T/0€/50 M 9¢g¢T 8T/T1€/S0 PSTETOT
€9T-1JI *HEDIOANT
0S°ZLL'OT SHHA TYHEHEHAO 0€TITZS 0LZ 8TI/0E/50 M 9¢EC 8T/1£/S0 PSTETOT
NATTHE NHID A0 FAOVTIIA €6T
6% 802’2 dIv¥d dLX S¥ 606°CT AHEDIOANI dIX S¥%°606°TT STYLOL YOANHA
6T8T-YMD HDIOANI
€8°2¢¢ NOILVONAH HAAQTIWH 0z902S 0LZ 8T/0€/S0 M LEEX 8T/LZ/%0 YET-YMD
€E8T-YMD *HDIOANI
00°0ST SASNIIXH HOIJAO 00T0€S 0LZ 8T/0€/G0 M ISEC 8T1/LZ/%0 0.L68T
ZEBT-YMD EDIOANT
00°02T Hd DAY -SNOIIITIDSENS -SHNA 00902S 0LZ 8T/0€/S0 M 0S¢€C 8T/LZ/%0 6968T
TEST-YMD  :EDIOANI
66°68 TYALOVIINOD SOINOILDETH 186025 0LZ 8T/0€/S0 M 6¥%€C 8T/LZ/%0 8968T
0€8T-YMD HDIOANT
NOILAI¥OSHA INAOJDY 1D INNODOVY 1D AIVA ¥HD I ON MDHHD 0d ¥FHOAOA HIVA ANI INIHOD0d
HNYN JOANHTA
8T0C/T€/2T OL 8T0Z/T0/T0 S0/8T0Z TYOSIJ OL Z-8TS0 : INVIIYM
xxempdde IFOJHY INVINYM aI¥d TAxew

k4 d SATT UMD 8T:¢T 8T0Z/T0/90



60 PLT
<T L8T

0Z°LES

0Z°LeS

£EE 6T

£€€°6¢C

Sg SLe

e ¥ee
¥T°TS

69°9L

86°¢C
8LV
€6 LY

00°s¢

00°s¢

00° 09

SOINOYLOHTH - HONYNILNTIVIN 0860¢cS 0LT

SOINOALOATE - HONYNHLNI YN 0860¢S 0LT
dI¥d dLA 0T LES
VEINOD SANNOED T DNIATING 146029 0LT
aI¥d diX £©L°99
INHNI IN0H - HONYNHINIVIN SL60CS qLe
dI¥d dLX 8L°6T6’C

INIWI IN0H -HONYNEINI VI SL60CS oLT

INIWNd INOH -AINYNIINI VI 9L60CS oLz

aI¥d dLA 8T°L9¢C

SHITAdNS - SNOILVIHJO 066029 oLz
SHITIdNS - SNOILLVIHJO 0660cCS oLe
SHITddNS - SNOILYIdddO 0660¢S 0Le

aIvd aQLA 00°S8
NOILVONAH HAIAOTAWH 0g¢so0es oLz
dIv¥d dLX 00°00T
NOILYONAH dHAOTIWNA 0Z902s 0Le
aIvd QLX €% T€T’'E

INIRA IN0H - ZONYNILNI VN §5L602CS 0LC

81/T€/S0
8T/TE/S0

8T/TE/S0

81/1¢€/50

81/1€/50
8T/1€/50

8T/1€/50
8T/1€/S0
8T/1T€/G0

8T/TE€/S0

8T/TE/S0

8T/T€/S0

66ELS96
66€L96

THOIOANT

86ELSG6

TIOIOANT

L6ELSE

TdOIOANT

96¢€L596
96€LS6

TEOIOANT

S6ELSG6
S6EL56
S6¢€LG6

TEOIOANT

Y6ELS6

IO TIOANT

£6€L96

TIOIOANT

268196

8T1/80/50 €v68T
L990L0€ :HEDIOANI
8T/LT/SO Z¥681
"ONI ‘ODNEAN 66T
dlLX 0T LES STYIOL JOANHA
¥%-8102 HDIOANT
8T/02/S0 LE68T
DT ‘HATIVILINI IATOVHL dAND0I 9STT
dLXZ €.°99 STYIOL JOANHA
2ZZS00T *HIDIOANT
81/81/50 9¢68T
"ONI 'STVIAW OWD TIZT

alLX 8L'6T6°T

ZTTLY629
8T/0T/S0
29802%29
8T/£0/50

"00 A7Iddns

arLX 81°L9C

0L5¥%8
8T/TT/S0
¥55%8
8T/0T/S0
z99%8
8T/LT/S0O

STYLOL JO0NHA

THOIOANT
S€68T
THOTIOANT
€E68T
IO -THLSYHON TLT

STYLOL JOANHA

FHOTOANT
0%68T

THOIOANT
6£68T

THOIOANT
8€68T

‘ONI 'HYYMAQYVYH HDV S,NIT LST

arLx 00°498

72681
81/0¢€/%0

STYLOL JOANHA

THOIOANT
¥C68T

SYHHTIA HIYOVT SPTIT

alk 00°00T
SHET
8T/%T/S0
SHIONZOY YEIVMALSYM A0 ~
aix €% TET’E

TE68T
8T/€T/S0

STYLOL dOUNHA
THOTOANT
2e68T
NSSY SIONITII 9CT
STYLOL YOANIA

*HOIOANT
Te€68T

NOILLAIY¥UDSHA LNNOJDOVY fID LNOODDY 1D

8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8T0Z/TO/TO S0/8T0C TYDSIA OL

zxempdde
TZC d

HLVA MHD

ON XDHHD

Od YHHONOA HIVA ANT

LIOdHd INVIIVM dIVd
SATT ¥MD

LNHWOD0d
HNYN JOANHA
2-8TS0 *LNVIIVM

IAIeu
8T:2T 8T0Z/T0/90



$0°000 LT
€8°6¥%
£8° 6%

O " TET'T
00 %9¢
0% L9L
8899
88°99
00°020°T
00°020°T
LS TPV '
LS TPE'¥
59 8% ‘T
8T 9LY
2T LIS
ST T6Y
TZ 19¢

SAS dIHLSIA OAS OIYLDHATH TO08T 08T08S

aI¥d dQLX 84799

SOINOYLOHETH ~HONVNHINIVIN

arvd

INIWd INOH - ZONYNIINTIVIN

INHEWI IN0HE - ZONYNIINI VI

arvd

SHSNAJIXd HOIAAO

aIvd

VAINOD SANOUD T DNITIING

dIvd

STYOINIHD

arivd

gY1 - SHITddNS DNILVIHdO

gY1 - SHITddNS DNILYIAJO

g¥1 - SHITJ4NS DNILVIHJIO

aLA

aLx

aLAa

aLA

dLA

dIv¥d dIX L¥ LTIT'C

8T/TE/SO

8T/T€/S0

8T/1€/50
8T/1€/50

8T/T€/50

8T/T€/S0

81/1€/50

8T/TE/S0
8T/1€/S0
8T/T€/S0

20%LS6

QEDTOANT

S0¥LS6

TIDIOANT

vO¥LSE

¥0¥LS6

THOIOANT

€0vLG6

TIOTOANT

c0vLS6

TEDIOANT

TO0¥LS6

THOIOANT

00¥%LS6
00%LS6
Q0¥LS6

50008T0C
aLX 85799
dLR S¥°SIV’'€

aLx

aLx

arx

aLA

$9€8€T
8T/2T/S0
"ONI 'SHIVY

¢00°TE6L95¢ES

8T/0€/%0

FHOIOANT
£568T
IDOSSY ANVdLS

STYLOL JOANHA

FHOIOANT
2868T

ATddNS DIYELOATH dYHAHI

ZESSZTT
8T/91/50

L06ZTTT
8T/ST/S0

STYLOL JOONHA

THOIOANI
T468T

THDIOANT
0968T

"ONI WNHTOALAd NMOL-AINW- ANAQYIAI

£e6LE

Z0€9T900T8HST

8T/L0/S0

STYILOL dOaNdHA

THOTOANT
8¥68T

YOTHHEWY HIJON SYHIVM HTLSHN

00°00T’S

LS TI¥V 'Y

ceLe8’e

QADIOANI ALX L¥-LTZ’Z

67681
8T/LT/S0
ANVIWO

L960ZT
8T/0T/%0
ONT

0LLIOY
8T/ST/S0
00990%
8T/TT/S0
8TLY0T
8T/¥T/S0
ONI NIS

6€£0LS0E

STYLOL JOANHA

*HOIOANI
6%68T
D DNINVATO Od

STYLOL ¥OANHA

SHDIOANT
L768T
‘ATINEINTH SAd

STIYLOL JOANHA

*HOIOANT
97681
FHOTIOANT
a¥68T
*HOIOANT
P¥68T
NODSIM A0 TIDN

STYLOL JOANHA
THOIOANT

¥ov

0L0T

08T

[N

9cet

€ee

602

Od YHHONOA HLVYA ANT

NOILATIEDSH LNNODIY 1D

8T0Z/T€/2T OL 8T0Z/TO/TO S0/8T0% TYDSIA OL

Txempdde

G

d

(057
0860¢S oLz
SY STV ‘€
SL60¢€S oLT
846025 oLc
e 6LE
00TO€ES oLe
00°00T‘S
TL60CS oL
LS IV 'Y
0v%0€S T-0LC
ze Le8’e
90T0€ES oLe
9010€S oLe
90T10¢€S oLe
LNNODOY ID

HLVA XHO

ON DHHO

LIOdHY INTIIVM dIVd

SATT ¥MD

LNHNOOO0A
HINYN

Z2-8TS0

JOANHA

s LNVIIYM

TAxeu

8T: €T 8T0Z/T0/90



»» TITOURWOY AIeW Aq PoleISUSD - LJOJHI J0 ANH x»x

99°CZ6% 9T LT SYHASNVIL HIIM TVIOL
YLOEVLLS (43 SMOHHD dEINI¥d TYIOL
INOONWY LNNOD
0% 9€T'HL SIVLOL LI0ddd
zs°662°'C dIvd dLX TS 66T°T TEDIOANI dIX 2S°66Z°C STYLOL JOANHA

8PSTTV¥Y9SSE *HOIOANTI
296622 INIWG INOF - IONYNILNT VI SL602S 0LZ BT/TE€/S0 d 60¥LS6E 81/60/S0 $568T
"ONI ‘¥Sn SNOIINTOS JYIIYM WHTAX 086

TV L¥Y aI¥d dLX TL°0LS'E QEDIOANI dIX TL°0LS'E STYLOL ¥OUNHA
0£€097L086 HDIOANI
TV LYY SNOILVYOINNWNODHETHL S6T1CS 0LZ 8T/TE/S0 d 80FLS6 8T/81/S0 95681
OTT SHOIAYHS SSHTHIIM NOZIYHA 886
0§ GLL'T aIvd dlX T¥ vL6'L AHEDIOANT QLA T¥ ¥L6°L STY.IOL YOONHA
CLYFPT  *EDIOANI

05°SLL'T NV'Id LNIWIAOIAWI ALITIDOVA £008T 08T08S 0% 8T/TE€/S0 d LO¥LSE 0T008TOT 8T/0€/%0 75681
‘ONI ‘SHIVIDOSSY ONV ¥ALIONI T00T

$0°000°LT aIvd dii £€2°2Z9°S8T AQEDIOANI QLX €Z°229°8T STYIOL ¥OaNHA
NOILAI¥DSHEA INNODDY D INAODOY TD JIV¥A MHD L ON MOHHD Od WHHONOA HIVA ANTI INTNADOA
HWYN JOANTA
8T0Z/TE/TT OL 8T0Z/TO/TO S0/8T0T TYISIA OL Z-8T50 :INVMIUM
axempdde INOZTFI INVIIYM aIVd TAIew

€T d SATT UMD 8T:CT 8T02/T0/90



SECTION 5.3

PURCHASE APPROVAL -
4” TRASH PUMP



MEMORANDUM

TO: Matt Streicher, Executive Director
FROM: Jon Braga, Maintenance Superintendent

DATE: June 6,2018

RE: Vehicle Number 615
4” Trailer Mounted Pump

The Authority has budgeted for the replacement of the 2001 4” Trailer Mounted Pump, Unit 615.
Attached to this memo are the documents for the public bidding of the replacement 4” Trailer
Mounted Pump.

The bidding procedure consisted of:

1. Advertisement to bid posted in the Daily Herald On April 16, 2018.
2. Bid Opening at the Glenbard Wastewater Authority on Thursday, May 31, 2018.

Bid documents were requested and provided to the following companies:

Name Title Company

Garrett Mercer Business Development Metcer Technologies Firm
Ali Chathiwala Sales Representative Burhani Enterprises, Inc
Jacqueline Sessa Agency Relationship Specialist | Deltek

Dan Trocke Outside Sales Representattive | Xylem/Godwin Pump
Julie Belan Inside Sales Manager Tsurumi America
Damon Sholtey Sales Representative Wacker Corp.

Mickey Betnard Sales Representative Hydro-Kinetics Corp
Joshua Jones Sales Representative McCann Construction
Jetf Wright Sales Representative Griffin Midwest

Chuck Ramirez Project Manager Mersino

Bid pricing from the representatives that elected to bid the project is shown below:

Bidder 4” Trailer Mounted Trash Pump Unit Price | Lead Time
Mcann Tsurumi EPT4-100DPQKD $ 39,500.00 10 weeks
Construction
Xylem/ Godwin Godwinn CD100M Dri-Ptime $ 51,316.04 60 days
Mersino Global 4GST $ 32,730.00 56 days

Mersino is the apparent low bidder for the 4 Trailer Mounted Pump.




Vehicle Number 615 — 4” Trailer Mounted Pump June 6, 2018
Page 2

A condition evaluation of the current pump was preformed by the Village of Glen Ellyn
Equipment Services Division. This evaluation determined the current pump has reached the end
of its useful life and recommended replacement.

It is requested to provide Mersino with a notice to proceed in the amount of $32,730.00 billed to
40-570155 Rolling Stock — Vehicles to purchase the unit. Budgeted amount for replacement is
$23,962.00.

Please advise and Thank You.



SECTION 6.0

CONTRACT APPROVAL -
SEWER LINE TELEVISING



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE

DATE: June 14, 2018

RE: Request for Approval
2018 Televising Contract

In April 2018 Authority staff worked with the Village of Lombard, who developed and sent out a
request for qualifications and technical proposals for Large Diameter Sewer
Inspection/Assessment. The due date for the proposals was April 17, 2018.

The Authorities maintains roughly 6.24 miles of large diameter interceptor sewer, which ranges
from 18 inches to 66 inches. Per the Authority’s Capacity, Management, and Operation Plan
(CMOM - a requirement per our NPDES Permit), the Authority shall inspect the interceptors
roughly every 5 years to ensure they have ability to convey the sanitary sewer water. Typically,
the Authority has televised the sewers every 5 years using traditional televising methods instead
of any detailed analysis. Since the Authority has large diameter sewer that has not been
thoroughly inspected for structural integrity since it was constructed in the late 1970’s, this year
Authority staff requested proposals for a detailed analysis in conjunction with Lombard’s
request. This proposal only includes analysis of sewers 30 inches and larger, as those entail the
majority of GWA’s large diameter sewer and are most critical to conveying the wastewater flow.
The Authority will budget for traditional televising on the remaining sewers next calendar year.

The Authority received three sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to the
RFP that was sent out, along with prices. Attached is a spreadsheet containing the bid prices.
The apparent low bidder is Red Zone Robotics. The proposed bid and contract were reviewed by
the TAC. All references were checked and are satisfactory.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Red Zone Robotics the 2018 Large Diameter
Sewer Inspection/Assessment Contract in the amount not to exceed $135,912.50. This amount
will be taken out of the designated amount in CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 580150 Plant
Equipment Rehabilitation, which is currently budgeted at $100,000.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
CONTRACT
LARGE DIAMETER SEWER INPSECTION/ASSESMENT CONTRACT

This agreement is made this 14" day of June, 2018, between and shall be binding upon the
Glenbard Wastewater Authority, a Joint Authority between the Villages of Glen Ellyn and
Lombard (hereinafter referred to as the "Authority") and RedZone Robotics (hereinafter referred
to as the "Contractor") and their respective successors.

Witnessed, that in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties delineated in the Contract
Documents, the Contractor agrees to perform the services and the Authority agrees to pay for the
following services as set forth in the Contract Documents:

The proposed work is officially known as "Large Diameter Combined Sewer
Inspection/Assessment". The project consists of inspection and assessment for the as-built
condition of approximately 17,950 feet of 36-inch, 48-inch, 60-inch, and 66-inch diameter
combined sanitary sewers. The project will also include a preliminary assessment of severity for
defect and prioritization of needed repairs, including conceptual budgetary costs. The
approximate location of the sewer is shown in greater detail on Sewer Location & Layout Exhibit
(GWA). The project consists of inspect the sanitary sewers for the purpose of determining the
as-built conditions of the sewers, assessing severity for defects, and prioritizing needed repairs,
including conceptual budgetary costs. All of the above as well as other project details are further
described in the contract documents for the said work.

1. This contract shall embrace and include all of the applicable Contract Documents listed
below as if attached hereto or repeated herein:

a. Contract Document for LARGE DIAMETER SEWER
INSPECTION/ASSESSMENT, consisting of the following:

i) Cover Sheet

ii) Table of Contents

iii) Request for Bid Proposals

iv) General Provisions

V) Project Special Provisions

vi) Sewer Location and Layout Exhibit
vii)  Addendum #1 dated April 17, 2018
viii)) Addendum #2 dated April 19, 2018

b. The Contractor’s Bid Proposal Dated: April 23, 2018
c. Required Performance and Payment Bonds and Certificate(s) of Insurance
d. Executed Bidder’s Certification Form.

2. The Authority agrees to pay, and the Contractor agrees to accept as full payment the amount
as shown on the Contractor’s Bid Proposal, which is made a part hereof, subject to such
additions and deletions as agreed to by the parties hereto.



3. The Contractor shall commence work under this Contract upon written Notice to Proceed
from the Authority and shall complete work under this contract within 120 calendar days from
the date of the Notice to Proceed. Time is of the essence in regard to this Contract, and the
Contractor agrees to achieve completion within the time permitted by all proper and
appropriate means including working overtime without additional compensation.

4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 5 of the Mechanics' Lien Act of Illinois, prior to making
any payment to the Contractor under this Contract, the Authority demands that the Contractor
furnish a written statement of the names of all parties furnishing labor and/or materials under
this Contract and the amounts due or to become due each. This statement must be made under
oath or be verified by affidavit. The Authority shall not issue final payment nor shall any
retained percentage become due until releases and waivers of lien have been supplied as the
Authority designates.

5. This Contract represents the entire agreement between the parties and may not be modified
without the written approval of both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois, and the
Contractor have each hereunto caused this Contract to be executed by their respective duly
authorized representatives this 14% day of June 2018.

If an individual or partnership, the individual or all partners shall sign or, if a corporation, an
officer(s) duly authorized shall sign.

RedZone Robotics

Print Cornpany Name

Individual or Partnership Corporation _ X

Acceptedthis 1 dayof  June ,2018.

,%W ' Dan Yinest Chief Executive Officer
By Position/Title
By Position/Title

THE GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, ILLINOIS

Accepted this day of ,2018.

Keith Giagnorio, Chair Person

Attest:

Gayle Lendabarker, Authority
Administration



Bond No. 3235571

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

CONTRACT BOND

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we Red Zone Robotics, a company

organized under the laws of the State of Delaware and licensed to do business in the State of

Illinois as Principal and The Cincinnati Insurance Group, a corporation organized and existing

under the laws of the State of Ohio, with authority to do business in the State of Illinois. as
Surety, are now held and firmly bound unto the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, State of Illinois
in the penal sum of one hundred and thirtyfive thousand and nine hundred and twelve dollars and
fifty cents ($135.912.50) lawful money of the United States, well and truly to be paid unto said

Authority for the payment of which we bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly,
severally, and firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THE FOREGOING OBLIGATION IS SUCH that whereas the said
Principal has entered into a written contract with the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, acting
through the Executive Oversight Committee of the Authority, dated June 14, 2018, for the

construction of the work designated:

LARGE DIAMETER SEWER INSPECTION/ASSESSMENT
in Glen Ellyn and Lombard, Illinois, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part hereof

as if written herein at length, and whereby the said Principal has promised and agreed to perform
said work in accordance with the terms of said contract. and has promised to pay all sums of
money due for any labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery furnished to such
Principal for the purpose of performing such work, and has further agreed to guaranty and
maintain said work for a one (1) year period following final payment to such Principal, and
has further agreed to pay all direct and indirect damages to any person, firm, company, or
corporation suffered or sustained on account of the performance of such work during the
time thereof and until such work is completed and accepted; and has further agreed that this
bond shall inure to the benefit of any person, firm, company or corporation from whom any
such labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery was so furnished and that suit may be
maintained on such bond by any such person, firm, company or corporation for the recovery

of any such money.



NOW, THEREFORE, if the said Principal shall well and truly perform said work in

accordance with the terms of said contract and shall pay all sums of money due or to become due

for any labor, materials, apparatus, fixtures or machinery fumnished to him for the purpose of

constructing such work and shall commence and complete the work within the time prescribed in

said contract, and shall pay and discharge all damages, direct and indirect, that may be suffered

or sustained on account of such work during the time of the performance thereof and until the

said work shall have been accepted, and shall hold the Glenbard Wastewater Authority and its

officers, agents and employees, harmless on account of any such damages, and shall in all

respects fully and faithfully comply with all the provisions, conditions, and requirements of said

contract, then upon the final payment by the Authority to said Principal under said contract, the

amount of this bond will be terminated.

APPROVED this day of
duly 2018.

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

BY:

Keith Giagnorio, Chair Person

ATTEST:

Gayle Lendabarker, Administration

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, We have
executed the foregoing Obligation
this 1st_ day of June ,
2018

PRINCIPAL:

RedZone Robotics, Inc.

BY: 2o EE T

ATTEST:; m\ H UL

SURETY": The Cincinnati Insurance Company

BY: Qo —

Barbara A. Leeper, Attorney-in-Fac

Patti K. Lindsey, Witness




THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY
Fairfield, Ohio
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, a corporation organized under the laws of
the State of Ohio, and having its principal office in the City of Fairfield, Ohio, does hereby constitute and appoint

Alexandra Machnik, Wendy Bright, Brian Jeffe, Barbara Leeper, Patti Lindsey, Jay Black, Josephine Streyle, Brian Long,

of  Pittsburgh, PA its true and lawful Attorney(s)-in-Fact to sign, execute, seal
and deliver on its behalf as Surety, and as its act and deed, any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments, as follows:

Fifty Million Doilars and 00/100 ($50,000,000.00)

This appointment is made under and by authority of the following resolution passed by the Board of Directors of said Company
at ‘a meeting held in the principal office of the Company, a quorum being present and voting, on the 6" day of December, 1958, which
resolution is still in effect:

“RESOLVED, that the President or any Vice President be hereby authorized, and empowered to appoint Attomeys-in-
Fact of the Company to execute any and all bonds, policies, undertakings, or other like instruments on behalf of the
Corporation, and may authorize any officer or any such Attomey-in-Fact to affix the corporate seal; and may with or
without cause modify or revoke any such appointment or authority. Any such writings so executed by such Attorneys-in-
Fact shall be binding upon the Company as if they had been duly executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected
officers of the Company.”

This Power of Attorney is signed and sealed by facsimile under and by the authority of the following Resolution adopted by the
Board of Directors of the Company at a meeting duly called and held on the 7¢ day of December, 1973.

“RESOLVED, that the signature of the President or a Vice President and the seal of the Company may be affixed by
facsimile on any power of attorney granted, and the signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary and the seal of the
Company may be affixed by facsimile to any certificate of any such power and any such power of certificate bearing
such facsimile signature and seal shall be valid and binding on the Company. Any such power so executed and sealed
and certified by certificate so executed and sealed shall, with respect to any bond or undertaking to which it is attached,
continue to be valid and binding on the Company.”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be sealed with its corporate
seal, duly attested by its Vice President this 10* day of May, 2012,

THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY

Do A

Vice President

STATE OF OHIO ) ss:
COUNTY OF BUTLER )

On this 10" day of May, 2012, before me came the above-named Vice President of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY,
to me personally known to be the officer described herein, and acknowledged that the seal affixed to the preceding instrument is the corporate
seal of said Company and the corporate seal and the signature of the officer were duly affixed and subscribed to said instrument by the

authority and direction of said corporation.
Nt JHA

AeI0Iegy,
o e \AL K
[/ MARK J. HKLLER, Attorney at Law

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF OHIO
My commission has no expiralion
date. Section 147.03 Q.R.C.

I, the undersigned Secretary or Assistant Secretary of THE CINCINNATI INSURANCE COMPANY, hereby certify that the above
is a true and correct copy of the Original Power of Attorney issued by said Company, and do hereby further certify that the said Power of
Attomey is still in full force and effect.

GIVEN under my hand and seal of said Company at Fairfield, Ohio.

mis(s/— wyof JTyuwe Q018 . /{%#/Z gz

Assistant Secretary

BN-1005 (5/12)



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

CONTRACTOR'S CERTIFICATION

DanYingst, Chief Executive Officer, having been first duly sworn depose and states as follows:

(Officer or Owner of Company)

Red Zone Robotics , having submitted a proposal for:
(Name of Company)

LARGE DIAMETER COMBINED SEWER INSPECTION/ASSESSMENT to the Glenbard
Wastewater Authority, hereby certifies that said Contractor:

1. has a written sexual harassment policy in place in full compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)
.

2, is not delinquent in the payment of any tax administered by the Illinois Department of
Revenue, or if it is:
a. itis contesting its liability for the tax or the amount of tax in accordance with
procedures established by the appropriate revenue Act; or
b. it has entered into an agreement with the Department of Revenue for payment of
all taxes due and is currently in compliance with that agreement.

3. isin full compliance with the Federal Highway Administration Rules on Controlled
Substances and Alcohol Use and Testing, 49 CFR Parts 40 and 382 and that

all employee drivers
{Name of employee/driver or “all employee drivers™)

is/are currently participating in a drug and alcohol testing program pursuant to the

aforementioned rules.
By:

Authorized Agent of Contractor

Subscribed and swormn to
before mexthis

day of ,2018.
[4

ith of Pennsyivania - Notary Seal
Comrgoor;v;eaa(y Mitsch,yNotary Public
Allegheny County
My commissicn expires November 21,2021
Commission number 1113922
MEMBER, PENNSYLVANIAASSOCIATION OF NOTARIES

Notary Public .




00°0S£'5825
0000525

00'005'C$
00°000'0T$
00°000°0TS
00°0S6'21$
00°0S6'LTS
00'0S6'LTS
00°000'555
00°000°TOTS
0000521
00°000'TTS
00°000°2T$
00°000'5T$

uQIsuUdIX3

00'005'2$

00'sz$
00°000°0T$
00'000°0T$
00'1$
0o'1$
00'1$
00°0T%
00'0T$
00°0TS
00°0T$
00°000°2T$
00'000°5TS

304 MUN
dio3 Suippoy Jamod |euonen

28'168'02TS
00°005'2$

00°00£4'TYS
625928
ST'PSTS
05'T06°95$
0S'80E'TTS
00'0$
00°028°87%
00°v2675$
00°055'9%
00°v9L5$
0005
8T'EZSTTS

uo|sUIX3

0000528

00°L1¥$
6r759°TS
ST'¥S2$
Lres
£9°0%
0003
¥Z'ss
¥Z'5§
¥Z'5S
2413
00°0%
BT'EZSTTS

9id Wun
dnous ujide

0S'CI6'SETS
00°0052$

00'005°2$
00°000'T$
00°0052$
05'L8Y 7S
05°28v'%$
05°L80'Y$
00°529°TES
00'S20°855
00'052°9%
00°005's$
00°000°s$
00'005°2$

uolsUIXg

00'005'2$

00'62%
00°000'T$
00°005C$
ST'0$
ST0%
SZ'0$
SL°S$
S2°5%
00°'s$
00°'s$
00°000°5$
000057

@3ald pun
$2130qoYy BUoZpay

00'00S'2$
00'005'Z$  00°005'T$

00°0$

uolsusIg 3ad Wun  Aluenp
23kewns3 1esuidul

T

00t

05641
0S6LT
05641
0085
00T0T
(1743
0011

WaL

aAnd
s1
§1
41
el
41
1
Ell
4
41
51
sl

on

NOLLYHOLS3Y 3dVISTNYT

YIM3IS NI NOILONYLSEO 1ISO43Q B WWAOWIY
{QUYENTID) HIMIIA IIVMLIOS B IVLLINGNS L1HOATY
(QYVaNITD) DNISSIIOY/NOILDATIOD VLIvd SID
SISATYNV/ONISSAION YLIVA ¥ISV1/uvall
SISATYNV/DNISSID0Yd VLV YYNOS
SISATYNY/ONISSIDONd VLYQ ALID

NOLLITIOD V.LYA/NOLLDISINI Y3IMAS ,99
NOILLDATIOD V1VA/NOILDISANI 43IM3S ,09
NOILLDITI0D VLVQ/NOLLDIJSNI 43M3S .8Y
NOILD3TIOD YIVA/NOILDISANI 3IM3IS 98

AYIN3 LNIWISYI/NOILITLOYd ANV TOYLNOD Dld4VHL
(QYvaNTID) 3LIS 153r0¥d OL NOILYZITISOW-3a/NOILVZIIS0N

uandiasaq Way| apoD wisy|

9N 12

9102 02
96T 61
LT L1

9161 ST

OWT #1

DIET ET

266
o8 8
9L L
9949
or v
9zt

‘1230) pig aseg

Souemo| |y

pig aseg

way| auf] 3L UoRIAS

100 Y 00:0T BTOZ/¥Z/10

11 ‘piequuo jo ade|IA 1o
1 ‘paequion jo ade||Ip toump

{Z868595#) WUsUIssassy/uonoadsu| Jamas paulquo) Jayawelq adie]



SECTION 7.0

APPROVAL - 2017 AUDIT
REPORT



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Christina Coyle, Finance Director

DATE: May 31,2018

RE: 2017 Audited Financial Statements

2017 Audited Financial Statements
Attached is the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the Glenbard Wastewater Authority for the fiscal
year that ended December 31, 2017.

Financial highlights for the Authority’s fiscal year 2017 (FY2017) are presented on pages MD&A2 and
MD&AS3 of the report. A complete narrative summary of the Authority’s operations and financial position is
found in Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages MD&A1 through 9. T will present highlights of
the financial report during the EOC meeting and our audit partner, Jamie Wilkey, will ptesent the auditor’s
opinion.

‘The Authority again received an unmodified audit opinion from the auditing firm, Lauterbach & Amen LLP,
which is the highest and best opinion.

Operating Fund Surplus
The Operating Fund Surplus, before the long term pension adjustment, was $159,394. We annually adjust

the partners’ contributions to match expenses. Using this measure, the Village of Lombard is owed $96,441
and Glen Ellyn is owed $62,953 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2017, the Authority’s working cash was 29.7% of operating expenses, or $188,563 above
minimum 25% as set in the current intergovernmental agreement. A complete schedule detailing the working
cash calculation may be found in the notes to the financial statements (page 18-19). As the amount of
working cash over the minimum requirement is greater than the operating surplus for the year, we are able to
distribute the entire FY2017 surplus amount.

The operating surplus may be either rebated back to each community ot may be disttibuted to the Capital
Fund. In the past, the operating sutplus has been distributed to the Capital Fund and has been used for
either specific projects or to offset future Capital Fund rate increases to both Villages. The Executive
Oversight Committee directed staff to distribute the 2016 opetating surplus to the Capital Fund and to
restrict the funds to accelerate the repayment of the loan for the Facility Improvement Project. Accelerating
the repayment of this loan would reduce the amount of interest that would need to be paid on the loan.

Other Communications
Thete are two other communications that are included as attachments to this memo.

SAS114 Letter: This letter is a required communication between the auditors and those charged with
governance. It highlights certain areas that auditors are required to disclose each year to those charged with
governance.



2017 Audited Financial Statements May 31, 2018
Page 2

Management Letter: This letter only highlights forthcoming accounting standards for the coming year. There
are no internal control matters reported in the letter.

Proposed Action Items:
Motion to accept the Audited Financial Statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority for the fiscal year

ended December 31, 2017 and to forward the audit report to the full Authority Board for final approval at
the next annual meeting.

Motion to distribute the operating surplus of $159,394 in a manner determined by the Executive Oversight
Committee.



PHONE 630.393.1483 = FAX 630.393.2516
| CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCOUNTANTS wwwlauterbachamen.com

.I t Lauterb a Ch & Am en, LLP 668 N. RIVER ROAD » NAPERVILLE, IL 60563

April 18,2018

The Honorable Chairman
Members of the Board of Directors
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Glen Ellyn, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing
Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and
timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated April 18, 2013.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the Authority are described in the Note 1 to the financial statements. No new
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during the year
ended December 31, 2017. We noted no transactions entered into by the governmental unit during the
year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have
been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the business-type activities®
financial statements was:

Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense on capital assets is based on assumed useful
lives of the underlying capital assets. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the depreciation expense estimate in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.



Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois
April 18,2018
Page 2

Significant Audit Findings — Continued

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. There were no material misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated April 18, 2018.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Auditors

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. Ifa consultation involves application
of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a determination of the type of
auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Authority’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements
the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the RSI.



Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois
April 18,2018
Page 3

Other Matters — Continued

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual fund financial statements and budgetary
comparison schedules and supplemental schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not
RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and
evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information
complies with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method
of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in
relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary
information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the
financial statements themselves.

Restrictions on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management of the Authority
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We wish to express our gratitude to the Board of Directors and staff (in particular the Finance Department)
of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois for their valuable cooperation throughout the audit

engagement,
Frudinlnch + Chmoni P

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP



GLENBARD WASTEWATER
AUTHORITY GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT LETTER

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017




PHONE 630.393.1483  FAX 630.393.2516
www.lauterbachamen.com

.Iﬁ Lauterbach & Amen, LLP 668 N, RIVER ROAD » NAPERVILLE, IL 60563

CERTIFIED PUBLIGC ACCOUNTANTS
April 18,2018

The Honorable Chairman
Members of the Board of Directors
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Glen Ellyn, Olinois

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, we considered its internal control structure in order to determine
our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the internal control structure.

We do not intend to imply that our audit failed to disclose commendable aspects of your system and structure.
For your consideration we herein submit our comments and suggestions which are designed to assist in
effecting improvements in internal controls and procedures. Those less significant matters, if any, which arose
during the course of the audit, were reviewed with management as the audit field work progressed.

The accompanying comments and recommendations are intended solely for the information and use of the
Members of the Board of Directors, management, and others within the Glenbard Wastewater Authority.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed
many of these comments and suggestions with various Authority personnel. We would be pleased to discuss
our comments and suggestions in further detail with you at your convenience, to perform any additional study
of these matters, or to review the procedures necessary to bring about desirable changes.

We commend the finance department for the well prepared audit package and we appreciate the courtesy and
assistance given to us by the entire Authority staff.

W rdadmlép

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP



PRIOR RECOMMENDATIONS

1. GASB STATEMENT NO. 74 FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFIT PLANS OTHER THAN PENSION PLANS AND GASB STATEMENT NO. 75
ACCOUNTING _AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Comment

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 74,
Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which
applies to individual postemployment benefit plans, and Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which applies to the
state and local government employers that sponsor the plans. The Statements apply to the reporting
of other post-employment benefits, including medical, dental, life, vision and other insurance
coverages provided by the employer post-employment. The Statements establish standards for
measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of
resources, and expense/expenditures related to the other post-employment benefit plans, and
specifically identify the methods and assumptions that are to be used in calculating and disclosing
these OPEB accounts in the financial statements. The Statements also provide for additional note
disclosures and required supplementary information and are intended to improve information
provided by state and local government employers regarding financial support to their OPEB
plans. GASB Statement No. 75 applies to the employer’s reporting of other post-employment
benefit plans and is applicable to the Glenbard Wastewater Authority’s financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

Recommendation

We recommended that the Glenbard Wastewater Authority reach out to the private pension actuary
engaged to provide the OPEB actuarial calculations in order to confirm the timeline for
implementation and to review requested materials that will be required in order to implement the
provisions and requirements of the new Statements. Lauterbach & Amen, LLP will also work
directly with the Glenbard Wastewater Authority to assist in the implementation process, including
assistance in determining the implementation timeline with the Glenbard Wastewater Authority
and private actuary, providing all framework for the financial statements in order to complete the
implementation, and assist in answering any questions or concerns the Glenbard Wastewater
Authority might have related to the implementation process or requirements.

Status

This comment has not been implemented and will be implanted for the year ended December 31,
2018, as required.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017




GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Table of Contents
PAGE
FINANCIAL SECTION
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ...t stn vttt 1-2
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS ......ocooiieeeeeeeeeceeeeecee e MD&A 1-9
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement Of Net POSIHION ...........coviiiiiiiiii ettt es e enesens 3-4
Statement Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItION ...........c.ccooveveveeeeecceinees i 5
Statement 0f Cash FIOWS .........ccooiviiriiietcee ettt enens 6
Notes to Financial Statements...........cccocoocirviiiieririee i reese s s e s e e eeseneeaeanas 7-27
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Ilinois Municipal Retirement FUnd............ccccooeuiieiiieiiiicccce e 28
Schedule of Changes in the Employer’s Net Pension Liability
Illinois Municipal Retirement FUNd............ccoooeieiiiiiiiiiccceceeee e 29
SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
Combining Statement of Net POSIION ........ccocceeiieiieicic et 30-31
Combining Statement Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes i Net POSItION. ......coeeieeieieiiieiettitee ettt ettt ettt er e st s sessresressessnseeneseees 32
Combining Statement 0f Cash FIOWS .........c.ccrieiiiiinrinnni et saeea 33
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position — Budget and Actual — Operating Sub-Fund..........c..c.ccoovivieiiiiiiiice, 34-35
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position — Budget and Actual — Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund ............................. 36 - 37
Schedule of Comparative Flows (Unaudited)................ocvouieieeiieceeereeeeceeeeeeisee et 38

Schedule of Allocation Costs (Unaudited) ...........coceeveecieierirenineiserieiece st e 39 -



FINANCIAL SECTION



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT



668 N. RIVER ROAD & NAPERVILLE, IL. 60563

.Iﬂ \ LauterbaCh & Amen’ LLP PHONE 630.393,1483 » FAX 630.393.2516

GERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS www.lauterbachamen.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
April 18,2018

The Honorable Chairman
Members of the Board of Directors
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
Glen Ellyn, llinois

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, lllinois, as
of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial staternents based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois, as of December 31, 2017, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois
April 18,2018
Page 2

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis as listed in the table of contents and budgetary information reported in the required
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Illinois’ basic financial statements. The supplemental
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements.

The supplemental schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Schedule of Comparative Flows and the Schedule of Allocation of Costs have not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Prior-Year Comparative Information

We have previously audited Glenbard Wastewatre Authority’s 2016 financial statements, and we expressed
unmodified audit opinions on the respective financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information in our report dated May 12, 2017. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Frudinlch + Chmon!LP

LAUTERBACH & AMEN, LLP

2



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

This discussion and analysis of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (the “Authority™) is designed to provide
the reader an objective and easily readable analysis of the Authority’s financial activities for the fiscal year
2017 which began on January 1, 2017 and concluded on December 31, 2017. Also highlighted in this analysis
are significant financial transactions and issues, comparisons to prior year activities, any relevant trend
information, and changes in the Authority’s financial position.

This discussion and analysis is an integral part of the Authority’s financial statements and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements, which begin on page 3.

Backeround and Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority was established by an intergovernmental agreement dated November 28, 1977 between the
neighboring villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn, Illinois for the purpose of jointly treating and processing
wastewater. Prior to creation of the Authority, wastewater processing was decentralized. The Authority
processes wastewater for the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn as well as certain other areas in DuPage
County.

The four principal components of the Authority are the Glenbard Plant, the Lombard Combined Sewerage
Treatment Facility (ILCSTF) facility, the North Regional Interceptor (NRI) and the South Regional Interceptor
(SRI). The original construction cost of these facilities was approximately $43 million, with $32 million
contributed by a grant from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and the remaining
$11 million contributed by Lombard and Glen Ellyn.

The Board of Directors of the Authority consists of the Village President and six Trustees from each of the
Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn. The Executive Oversight Committee (EOC) is responsible for overseeing
the operational aspects of the Authority’s activities and is composed of both Village Presidents, both Village
Managers, one Trustee representative from each Village Board and one staff member, traditionally the Public
Works Director, of each Village. The Committee meets monthly and reviews operational and staff reports,
approves Authority expenditures, awards various contracts for services, reviews the financial statements,
reviews and recommends an annual budget to the full Authority Board and performs other functions as defined
in the intergovernmental agreement.

The Village of Glen Ellyn is identified by the intergovernmental agreement as the “operating” or lead agency
of the Authority. In its capacity as lead agency, Glen Ellyn performs operational supervision, accounting,
personnel and administrative services for the Authority on a contractual basis.

The Authority’s accounting and financial transactions are recorded in two separate funds — the Operating Fund
and the Equipment Replacement Fund.

The Operating Fund pays for the day-to-day operating costs of the Glenbard Plant, LCSTF, NRI and SRI and
includes costs such as staff salaries and benefits, contractual services, sludge removal, utilities, insurance and
related expenses. Operating costs are allocated between the Lombard and Glen Ellyn partners based on a five
year rolling average of the percentage of wastewater flow contributed by each community.

MD&A 1



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

Each Village contributes a monthly amount to the Authority based on the adopted Operating Fund budget for
the year. These contributions are adjusted two times per fiscal year based on actual wastewater flow share
between the parties. Also, an adjustment is made after the conclusion of the fiscal year so that total year-end
operating revenues are equivalent to total year-end operating expenses, excluding the adjustment for the IMRF
pension obligation.

The Equipment Replacement Fund was established to accumulate funds for the repair and replacement of plant
components as needed and was a required element for the initial grant assistance received from the Federal
EPA. The two partners contribute a budgeted amount to the Equipment Replacement Fund each year based the
wastewater flow split percentage of the Glenbard Plant and associated infrastructure.

Financial Highlights

1.

The Authority’s overall cash position at December 31, 2017 increased by $2.73 million or by 104%
compared to balances at the close of the prior fiscal year. The Operating Fund experienced an increase
in cash balance of $133,736, while the Equipment Replacement Fund’s cash balance increased by
$2.60 million. The Equipment Replacement Fund received loan proceeds from an Illinois
Environmental Protection Agency (IEPA) loan in the amount of $7.5 million and has incurred capital
costs of $9.9 million. The main project undertaken is the Facility Improvement Project (FIP), which
entails a series of updates to the facility. See page 33 for detailed cash flow information.

Total Operating Fund expenses for fiscal year 2017 were $4,107,986, a decrease of $129,738 or 3.1%
compared to the previous fiscal year. For additional information concerning changes in operating costs
compared to the prior fiscal year, see page 8 of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Total Operating Fund expenses were under the approved budget of $4,184,550 by $76,564 or 1.8%.
Savings were seen on maintenance costs (under budget by $177,293) and commodities (under budget
by $103,229). Additional budget comparison information is located on pages 34 - 35.

4. Amounts due from/(to) each of the Villages as of December 31, 2017, include following components:

Village of Village of
Lombard Glen Ellyn Total

Amounts Due from (to) Villages
Billing Adjustment for the Fiscal Year Ended on

December 31, 2017 $ (96,441 (62,953) (159,394)
Billing Adjustment - July 2017
to December 2017 109,906 (109,906) -
Miscellaneous Receivable (Payable) - 1,210 1,210
Cumulative Balance Due from (to) Villages 13,465 (171,649) (158,184)

MD&A 2



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

5. The percentage of wastewater flow contributed by each of the partners to the Glenbard Plant for 2017
compared to the previous three years is shown below:

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Lombard 54.75% 55.61% 57.35%
Glen Ellyn 45.25% 44.39% 42.65%

A history of annual flow data is presented on page 38.

6. The Authority has a minimum working cash policy for its Operating Fund equal to 25% of operating
expenses (see Note 3 on page 18 - 19). The Authority’s net working cash balance of $1,198,358 as of
December 31, 2017 is equivalent to a 29.7% reserve level, above the minimum 25% level by $188,563.

7. The Authority invested significantly in capital projects during 2017. The Authority embarked on the
Facility Improvement Project (FIP) in 2017. This project includes improvements to the raw sewage
pump building, improvements and modifications to the filter building, modification of the non-potable
water system, installation of a reclaimed water system, improvements to the natural gas system serving
the treatment facility and improvements to the final clarifiers. As of December 31, $8.1 million had
been expended on this project.

8. In2017, animbalance in the digesters caused a foul odor in the surrounding neighborhoods. To address
the imbalance, the Authority temporarily halted processing of fats, oils, and grease (FOG). The

Authority also incurred additional costs for chemicals and sludge removal to address the upset digester.

Authority’s Financial Analysis

Net Position

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Authority’s assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred
inflows and provides information about the nature and amount of investments in resources and the obligations
to creditors. This statement provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity
and financial flexibility of the Authority.

A summary of the Authority’s Statement of Net Position is presented on the next page.

MD&A 3



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Current and Other Assets $ 4,737,766 $ 2,848,307 $ 6,258,960
Deferred Outflows 518,751 400,244 239,180
Capital Assets 37,675,061 38,913,771 46,255,289
Total Assets & Deferred Outflows 42,931,578 42,162,322 52,753,429
Long Term Debt 4,850,739 4,331,782 11,348,756
Other Liabilities 3,080,999 1,854,562 3,167,456
Deferred Inflows - 51,668 925,256
Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows 7,931,738 6,238,012 15,441,468
Net Investment in Capital Assets 32,318,101 34,063,033 34,374,524
Restricted 2,681,739 1,861,277 2,937,437
Total Net Position $34,999,840 $35,924,310 $37,311,961

The total net position of the Authority increased $1,387,651 to $37,311,961, an increase of 3.9% from the prior
fiscal year, due to the contribution by the Villages of the previous year operating surplus to the Equipment
Replacement Fund as well as increases in other revenue streams such as connection fees, FOG (fats, oils, and

grease) revenue and grant revenue.

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position beginning on page 3.

MD&A 4



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

Activities

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net position provides an indication of the Authority’s
financial health. A summary of the Authority’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
is presented below.

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Operating Revenues $ 7,267,893 $ 7,455,808 $ 7,421,656
Non-Operating Revenues 680,880 868,299 1,286,271
Total Revenues 7,948,773 8,324,107 8,707,927
Depreciation Expense 2,525,016 2,624,572 2,549,513
Other Operating Expenses 4,416,232 4,649,616 4,658,182
Non-Operating Expenses 151,674 125,449 112,581
Total Expenses 7,092,922 7,399,637 7,320,276
Changes in Net Position 855,851 924,470 1,387,651
Net Position — Beginning of Year 34,143,989 34,999,840 35,924,310
Net Position — End of Year $34,999.840 $35.924,310 $37,311,961

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position on page
)

Revenues

Operating Fund Revenues

Operating Fund operating revenues consist of contributions made by the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn.
These contributions are initially based on the adopted Operating Fund budget for the year and are adjusted so
that total year-end operating revenues are equivalent to total year-end operating expenses, excluding
depreciation expense and IMRF GASB 68 pension adjustment. Amounts that are contributed by the partners
in excess of total year-end operating expenses are distributed based on each partner’s five-year rolling average
wastewater flow and are recorded in the Statement of Net Position as liabilities payable to the respective
Villages.

MD&A 5



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

A comparison of Operating Fund operating revenues from charges to the Villages for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2017 compared to the previous two years is shown in the table below.

$ Change from 2016 % Change from

Partner FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 to 2017 2016 to 2017

Village of Lombard $2,190,422  $2,294,324  $2,306,219 § 11,895 0.52%

Village of Glen Ellyn 1,810,471 1,831,484 1,715,437 (116,047) -6.34%
Total $4,000,893  $4,125,808 $4,021,656 $ (104,152) -2.52%

In 2017, the Combined Heat and Power system was operational and reduced utility costs from $1.0 million in
2016 to $646,000 in 2017. That was offset by increased costs in sludge removal and maintenance, and
commodities.

Equipment Replacement Fund Revenues

A comparison of Equipment Replacement Fund revenues for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017
compared to the previous two years is shown in the table below:

$ Change from % Change from

Revenue FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 2016 to 2017 2016 to 2017
Lombard’ $ 1,713,122 § 1,760,068 $ 1,826913 §$ 66,845 3.8%
Glen Ellyn1 1,553,878 1,569,932 1,573,087 3,155 0.2%
Excess Contributions’ 244 704 142,157 48,692 (93,465) -65.7%
Connection Fees® 145,130 67,124 290,110 222,986 332.2%
Leachate Revenue’ 133,389 166,863 156,100 (10,763) -6.5%
Cell Tower Revenue’ 26,651 27,179 52,616 25,437 93.6%
FOG Revenue® - 35,818 167,806 131,988 NA
Investment Income’ 10,918 6,260 11,936 5,676 90.7%
Grant Revenue® 57,000 383,000 517,390 134,390 NA
Other Income’ 53,871 41,472 24,097 (17,375) -41.9%

Total Revenues $ 3938663 $§ 4199873 § 4,668,747 § 468,874 11.2%

! Each partner contributes an annual amount to be allocated for reinvestment in plant infrastructure and
rehabilitation. Contributions are determined annually as a part of the budget preparation process and
are allocated based on the wastewater flows contributed by each partner at the Glenbard Plant.

2 As part of the closeout of the 2016 fiscal year, both Villages contributed their portion of the operating
surplus in the Operating Fund to the Equipment Replacement Fund.

MD&A 6



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

- New connections to the respective sanitary sewer systems of the partners are charged a fee which is
paid into the Equipment Replacement Fund. FY 2017 had greater fees than FY 2016 fees due to a few
larger development projects.

* Beginning in FY2012/13, the Authority began processing Leachate at the rate of two trucks per day.
In FY2013/14, the number of trucks increased to three per day. In April 2014, the number of trucks
was increased to a maximum of 6 per day.

- GWA has an agreement with AT&T to house a cell phone tower on its premises. Beginning in November
2016, Verizon also entered into an agreement with the Authority to house a cell tower on the premises of
the Glenbard plant.

- Starting in 2016, the Authority began collecting Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) revenue. The Authority
processes unwanted FOG from outside customers in the Authority’s treatment process. This is a new
revenue stream for the Authority. This process was halted at the end of FY17 as it caused an imbalance
in the digester, resulting in a foul odor which disturbed neighboring subdivisions. The Authority plans to
restart receiving FOG in 2018 once best practices are honed.

- During 2017, interest rates rose as well as the cash balance in the Equipment Replacement Fund.

- The Authority received state grants for its Combined Heat and Power capital project in 2016 and 2017.

* The Authority received revenue in 2015 and 2016 for the EnerNoc Demand Response Program, which
enables program participants to receive payment for being available to reduce or eliminate electricity

consumption when the reliability of the electric grid is in jeopardy. No revenue was received in
FY2017.

MD&A 7



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

Expenses

Operating Fund Expenses

A comparison of Operating Fund expenses for FY 2017 compared to the previous two years is shown in the table
below:

2017
Percentof § Change from % Change from
FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 Total 2016 to 2017 2016 to 2017

Personnel Services' $1,545,124 $1,592,611  $1,583,225 38.54% §$ (9,386) -0.6%
IMRF Pension Expense 178,077 113,490 68,806 1.67% (44,684) -39.4%
Contractual Services
Maintenance’ 444,683 451,733 478,057 11.64% 26,324 5.8%
Service Charge 126,500 128,372 128,372 3.12% 0 0.0%
Sludge Removal® 150,591 155,380 179,218 4.36% 23,838 15.3%
Utilities* 1,001,479 1,015,080 645,708 15.72% (369,372) -36.4%
Insurance 399,545 408,304 400,937 9.76% (7,367) -1.8%
Other’ 191,498 225,496 198,992 4.84% (26,504) -11.8%
Commodities® 150,690 147,258 424,671 10.35% 277,413 188.4%
Total $4,188,187 $4,237,724  $4,107,986 _ 100.00% ($129,738) -3.1%

I Personnel services include salaries for 17 full-time and 7 part-time/seasonal staff positions, overtime,
Social Security and Medicare employer costs, and required retirement contributions to the Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) for full-time employees. Costs of employee health plan benefits are
reflected in the “Insurance” category. In 2016, an Assistant Director/Engineer position was added.

2 The Combined Heat and Power system was operational in FY17, increasing maintenance costs as the
system requires annual maintenance of the systems.

3 In 2017, an imbalance of the digester caused a foul odor at the facility. Additional sludge hauling was
done to remove any solids which may be contributing to the odor.

4 The implementation of the Combined Heat and Power system reduced costs for utilities, mainly for electric
power. However, costs for natural gas were also decreased for FY17.

5 There was an approximate $21,500 reduction in design engineering expenses.

6 The Authority began purchasing liquid oxygen rather than producing it, raising commodity costs by
$236,854. Also, chemical costs increased by $20,000 trying to neutralize the odor that occurred in FY'17.

MD&A 8



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
December 31, 2017

Equipment Replacement Fund Expenses

The Authority invested over $9.9 million in the continued replacement and rehabilitation of various capital
equipment and plant upgrades during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017. The major projects undertaken
during the year were the UV System Upgrade and the Facility Improvement Plan.

Capital Assets

A schedule of the Authority’s capital asset balances is presented below.

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated $ 3,680,853 $ 1,757,788  $10,599,278
Capital Assets Being Depreciated 88,870,523 94,636,354 95,685,895
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (54,885,315) (57,480,371) (60,029,884)

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 33,985,208 37,155,983 35,656,011

Net Capital Assets $37,675,061  $38,913,771  $46,255,289

For more detailed information, see Note 3 on page 14.
Long-Term Debt

A schedule of the Authority’s State of Illinois EPA loan balances at December 31, 2017 is presented below.

Amount
Digester Project $ 4,331,782
Facility Improvement Project 7,548,983

$ 11,880,765

The Authority is in process of drawing down funds for the Facility Improvement Project and the total approved
loan amount is $16,333,300. A final repayment schedule will not be available until construction is complete
and final disbursements are reimbursed.

For more detailed information, see Note 3 on pages 15 - 16.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the users of these financial statements an overview of the Authority’s
operations and finances and to demonstrate accountability for the funds it receives. Questions concerning these
financial statements may be directed to the Authority at 945 Bemis Road, Glen Ellyn, IL 60137.

MD&A 9



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017
(with Comparative Information for December 31, 2016)

See Following Page



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017
(with Comparative Information for December 31, 2016)

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Investments
Working Cash Account $ 1,220,060 1,086,324
Equipment Replacement Account 4,130,035 1,532,712
Accounts Receivable - Net of Allowances
Accounts Receivable 42,987 47,323
Member Contributions 31,770 42395
Loans 385,126 -
Deposits - 33,682
Inventory and Prepaids 151,873 105,871
Total Current Assets 5,961,851 2,848,307
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable Capital Assets 10,599,278 1,757,788
Depreciable Capital Assets 95,685,895 94,636,354
Accumulated Depreciation (60,029,884) (57,480,371)
Total Capital Assets 46,255,289 38,913,771
Other Assets
Net Pension Asset - IMRF 297,109 -
Total Noncurrent Assets 46,552,398 38,913,771
Total Assets 52,514,249 41,762,078
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Items - IMRF 239,180 400,244
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 52,753,429 42,162,322

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
3



LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Unearned Rental Revenue
Members Payable
Accrued Payroll
Interest Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability - IMRF
FIP Loan Payable
Digester Loan Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Items - IMRF
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

4

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016
$ 2,177,347 298,084
22,144 21,297
189,954 79,352
70,623 76,124
45,613 51,078
557,962 547,249
3,063,643 1,073,184
103,813 113,172
- 668,206

7,548,983 -
3,799,773 4,331,782
11,452,569 5,113,160
14,516,212 6,186,344
925,256 51,668
15,441,468 6,238,012
34,374,524 34,063,033
2,937,437 1,861,277
37,311,961 35,924,310




GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

(with Comparative Information for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016)

Operating Revenues
Charges to Villages

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services
IMRF Pension Expense
Contractual Services

Maintenance

Service Charge

Sludge Removal

Utilities

Insurance

Other
Commodities

Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment

Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Surplus Contributions
Connection Fees
Leachate Revenues
Fats, Oil & Grease Waste Fees
Enernoc Demand Response
Cell Tower Revenues
Other Income
Sale of Capital Assets
Grant Revenue
Investment Income
Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

5

December 31,

December 31,

2017 2016

$ 7,421,656 7,455,808
1,648,081 1,669,810
69,337 128,868
478,057 451,733
128,372 128,372
179,218 155,380
645,708 1,015,080
404,506 411,909
198,992 225,496
424,671 147,258
481,240 315,710
2,549,513 2,624,572
7,207,695 7,274,188
213,961 181,620
48,692 142,157
290,110 67,124
156,100 166,863
167,806 35,818

- 25,112
52,616 27,179
15,638 515
13,374 12,365
517,390 383,000
24,545 8,166
(112,581) (125,449)
1,173,690 742,850
1,387,651 924,470
35,924,310 34,999,840
37,311,961 35,924,310




GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

(with Comparative Information for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Charges to Villages
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets
Disposal of Capital Assets
Issuance of Capital Related Debt
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Payment of Loans Principal

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment Income

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning

Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating

Income to Net Income to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Other Income
Other Expense
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

6

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
$ 8,164,852 8,274,429
(1,717,418) (1,669,810)
(767,335) (4,048,803)
5,680,099 2,555,816
(9,891,031) (3,863,528)
- 246
7,548,983
(112,581) (125,449)
(518,956) (506,222)
(2,973,585) (4,494,953)
24,545 8,166
2,731,059 (1,930,971)
2,619,036 4,550,007
5,350,095 2,619,036
213,961 181,620
2,549,513 2,624,572
1,261,726 860,133
- 128,868
(518,530) (41,512)
2,173,429 (1,197,865)
5,680,099 2,555,816




GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority, Glen Ellyn, Illinois, Illinois (the “Authority”) was created and
established by an agreement dated November 28, 1977, between the Villages of Lombard, Illinois and Glen
Ellyn, Illinois, for the purpose of jointly treating and processing wastewater. This agreement has been
amended since inception. The last amendment was April 17, 2014. The wastewater is treated in two plants,
known as the Glenbard Wastewater Authority and the Lombard Storm Water Facility.

Construction of the facilities was financed by monies appropriated by the Villages and by grants from the
U.S. Environmental Protection Authority. The Village of Glen Ellyn, as the designated lead Authority,
maintained the Glenbard Lead Authority Construction Fund, which included all transactions relating to
planning, design, and construction of the wastewater treatment facilities. The cost of the facilities, which
aggregated $43,297,682, was contributed to the Authority by the Glenbard Lead Authority Construction
Fund.

In accordance with the 1977 agreement, as amended in April 1998 and April 2014, the Village of Glen
Ellyn provides certain management services (administration, personnel, payroll, data processing, and
accounting services) to the Authority. The Village is reimbursed for such services and, therefore, receives
a service charge (overhead fee) pursuant to the agreement.

The government-wide financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for
establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and
Interpretations). The more significant of the Authority’s accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the Authority are described below.

REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating how to define the Authority for financial reporting purposes, management has considered all
potential component units. Criteria for including a component unit in the Authority’s reporting entity
principally consist of the potential component unit’s financial interdependency and accountability to the
Authority. Based on those criteria, there are no potential component units to be included in the reporting
entity. The Authority itself is not a component unit of another governmental entity, but rather is considered
to be a jointly governed organization.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In the Statement of Net Position, the Authority’s activities are reported on a full accrual, economic
resources basis, which recognizes all long-term assets/deferred outflows and receivables as well as long-
term obligations/deferred inflows.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued
BASIS OF PRESENTATION — Continued

The Authority uses funds to report on its financial position and the results of its operations. Fund accounting
is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating transactions
related to certain government functions or activities. A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-
balancing set of accounts.

The Authority utilizes a single proprietary fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for activities similar
to those found in the private sector, where the determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound
financial administration. Goods or services from such activities are provided to outside parties.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “which” transactions are recorded within the various
financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

All proprietary funds utilize an “economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting objectives of
this measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position, financial
position, and cash flows. All assets/deferred outflows and liabilities/deferred inflows (whether current or
noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is classified as net
position.

Basis of Accounting

The Authority’s basic financial statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred or economic asset used.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation and amortization on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET
POSITION OR EQUITY - Continued

Cash and Investments

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, the cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash
on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from
the date of purchase.

Investments are generally reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which
approximates fair value. For investments, the Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the
fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on
the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs. All of the Authority’s investments are in 2a7-like investment pools that
are measured at the net asset value per share determined by the pool.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Refer to the working cash account and equipment replacement account sections in the Net Position note
for details on assets restricted under intergovernmental and grant agreements.

Receivables

In the government-wide financial statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and
not yet received. There is no allowance for uncollectible since these amounts are expected to be fully
collectible. The Authority reports member contributions as its major receivable.

Prepaids/Inventories

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaids in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaids/inventories are valued at
cost, which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET
POSITION OR EQUITY - Continued

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. For
movable property, the Authority’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost of $20,000 or
more (depending on asset class) and an estimated useful life that is greater than one year. Renovations to
buildings and land improvements that significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the
structure are capitalized. Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in
which the expense was incurred. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated acquisition value at the
date of donation. Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives of the assets:

Vehicles 7 Years
Land Improvements 7 - 20 Years
Equipment 10 - 15 Years
Buildings and Improvements 10 - 45 Years
Sewer Lines 40 - 50 Years

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflow/inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future
period and therefore will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)/inflow of resources
(revenue) until that future time.

Compensated Absences

The Authority grants a specific number of annual leave hours bi-weekly with pay to its employees. Earned
annual leave and compensatory time may be accumulated and is payable to the employee upon termination
of employment and, therefore, is accrued through year-end. Long-term accumulated sick leave is not
reimbursable upon termination of employment and, therefore, is not accrued.

Long-Term Obligations
In the financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. Loan premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the

bonds using the effective interest method. Loans payable are reported net of the applicable loan premium
or discount. Loan issuance costs are reported as expenses at the time of issuance.

10



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Continued

ASSETS/DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES/DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND NET
POSITION OR EQUITY - Continued

Net Position

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in two
components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislations.

Unrestricted — All other net position balances that do not meet the definition
of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

The Authority considers restricted amounts to have been spent when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund position is available.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgeted amounts used for comparison in this report are obtained from the operating budget of the
Authority, approved by Glenbard Wastewater Authority Board of Directors, which is prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, except that depreciation expense is not part of
the operating budget, and note principal payments are budgeted as expenses. The budget amounts included
in the supplemental information are from the final adopted budget, including all amendments, which were
not significant. The budget lapses at the end of the fiscal year.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Permitted Deposits and Investments — Statutes authorize the Authority to make deposits/invest in
commercial banks, savings and loan institutions, obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies,
obligations of States and their political subdivisions, credit union shares, repurchase agreements,
commercial paper rated within the three highest classifications by at least two standard rating services,
and the Illinois Funds and Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund investment pools.

[llinois Funds is an investment pool management by the Illinois Public Treasurer’s Office, which allows
governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. Although not registered with the
SEC, Illinois Funds does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the investment company Act of
1940. Investments in Illinois Funds are valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could
be sold.

The Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund (IMET) is a non-for-profit investment trust formed pursuant
to the Illinois Municipal Code. IMET is managed by a Board of Trustees elected from the participating
members. IMET is not registered with the SEC as an Investment Company. Investments in IMET are
valued at the share price, the price for which the investment could be sold.

Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk

Deposits. At year-end, the carrying amount of the Authority’s deposits totaled $2,726,624 and the bank
balances totaled $2,764,641. The Authority also has $1,055,990 invested in the Illinois Funds and
$1,567,481 in IMET at year end.

Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The Authority’s investment policy states they will attempt to match its investments with
anticipated cash flows requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, the Authority will not directly
invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase. Any investment purchased with
a maturity longer than four years must be supported with written documentation explaining the reason for
the purchase and must be supported with written documentation explaining the reason for the purchase and
must be specifically approved by the Authority Board. The Authority’s investments in the Illinois Funds and
IMET have an average maturity of less than one year.

12



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — Continued
Interest Rate Risk, Credit Risk, Custodial Credit Risk and Concentration Risk — Continued

Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Authority may invest in any type of security authorized by the State of Illinois Public Funds
Investment Act (30 ILCS 235/) regarding the investment of public funds. The Authority’s investments in
the Illinois Funds is rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s and the Authority’s investment in IMET is not rated.

Custodial Credit Risk. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority’s policy requires that funds on deposit in excess of FDIC
limits be secured by some form of collateral. The Authority will accept government securities, obligations
of federal agencies, obligations of federal instrumentalities, and obligations of the State of Illinois. At year
end, the entire bank balance was covered by collateral, federal depository or equivalent insurance.

For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not
be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside
party. At December 31, 2017, the Authority’s investment in the Illinois Funds and IMET funds are not
subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of Credit Risk. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Authority’s
investment in a single issuer. At year-end, the Authority does not have any investments over 5 percent of
cash and investments (other than investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments).

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS

The Authority has entered into contracts for the construction or renovation of various facilities as follows:

Expended Remaining
Project to Date Commitment
Facility Improvement Plan $ 8,109,891 10,379,409

13



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of capital assets as of the date of this report:

Beginning Ending
Balances Additions Deletions Balances
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Land $ 466,788 - - 466,788
Construction in Progress 1,291,000 9,699,162 857,672 10,132,490
1,757,788 9,699,162 857,672 10,599,278
Depreciable Capital Assets
Glenbard Plant 66,448,925 1,049,541 67,498,466
Stormwater Plant 11,865,247 E 11,865,247
North Regional Interceptor 10,751,759 - 10,751,759
South Regional Interceptor 5,570,423 - - 5,570,423
94,636,354 1,049,541 - 95,685,895
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Glenbard Plant 39,036,324 1,751,747 - 40,788,071
Stormwater Plant 8,416,284 259,307 - 8,675,591
North Regional Interceptor 7,063,812 301,352 - 7,365,164
South Regional Interceptor 2,963,951 237,107 E 3,201,058
57,480,371 2,549,513 - 60,029,884
Total Net Depreciable Capital Assets 37,155,983 (1,499,972) - 35,656,011
Total Net Capital Assets 38,913,771 8,199,190 857,672 46,255,289
Depreciation was allocated to the members as follows:
Village of Lombard $ 1,368,451
Village of Glen Ellyn 1,181,062

14

2,549,513



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT
Loans Payable

The Authority has entered into loan agreements to provide low interest financing for capital
improvements. Loans currently outstanding are as follows:

Beginning Ending
Issue Balances Issuances  Retirements Balances (a)

Anaerobic Digester Loan Payable
dated October 10, 2007, due in
annual installments of $319,271,
including interest at 2.500%,
through July 31, 2024. $ 4,850,738 - 518,956 4,331,782 (b)

Facility Improvement Project Loan
Payable dated September 23, 2016,
due in annual installments of
$425,208, including interest at
1.750%, through October 10, 2039. - 7,548,983 - 7,548,983 (¢)

4,850,738 7,548,983 518,956 11,880,765

(a) Includes construction interest.

(b) Amounts disbursed as of the date of the audit report is $7,703,497. Total approved loan amount is
$7,700,000. The future debt service shown here has been calculated based on a preliminary
repayment schedule issued by the IEPA and adjusted for final disbursements reimbursed. As of
December 31, 2017, there were no additional loan requests outstanding. The original amount
exceeds the $7,700,000 due to estimated construction interest.

(c) Amounts disbursed as of the date of the audit report is $7,548,983. Total approved loan amount is

$16,333,300. The final repayment schedule for this loan will not be available until construction is
complete and final disbursements are reimbursed.

15



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
LONG-TERM DEBT - Continued
Long-Term Liability Activity

Changes in long-term liabilities during the fiscal year were as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due within
Type of Debt Balances Additions  Deductions Balances One Year
Compensated Absences $ 141465 11,699 23,398 129,766 25,953
Net Pension Liability/(Asset) - IMRF 668,206 - 965,315 (297,109) -
Loans Payable 4,850,738 7,548,983 518,956 11,880,765 532,009

5,660,409 7,560,682 1,507,669 11,713,422 557,962

Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, are as follows:

Loans
Fiscal Payable
Year Principal  Interest
2018 $ 532,009 104,990
2019 545,394 91,607
2020 559,115 77,887
2021 573,180 63,822
2022 587,599 49,402
2023 602,381 34,621
2024 617,534 19,467
2025 314,570 3,932

4,331,782 445,728

The Facility Improvement Project Loan Payable does not have final repayment schedule; therefore, is not
included in the debt service requirements to maturity above.

16



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued
NET POSITION
Net Position Classification

Net position consists of the following as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 34,374,524 34,063,033
Equipment Replacement Account (Restricted) 2,476,993 1,332,027
Working Cash Account (Restricted) 460,444 529,250
Total Net Position 37,311,961 35,924,310

Net investment in capital assets was comprised of the following as of December 31, 2017 and December
31, 2016:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 46,255,289 38,913,771
Less Capital Related Debt:
Loans Payable (11,880,765) (4,850,738)
Net Investment in Capital Assets 34,374,524 34,063,033

17



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

NET POSITION - Continued

Equipment Replacement Fund

The equipment replacement account is required under the grant agreement from the U.S. Environmental

Protection Agency and represents accumulated funds held for plan and equipment replacement. The
activities for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Beginning Balance $ 35,395,060 34,357,100
Revenue and Expense Results within
Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund 545,342 184,115
Surplus Contributions 48,692 142,157
Investment Income (Loss) 11,936 6,260
Service Fees Charged to Villages 3,400,000 3,330,000
Depreciation (2,549,513) (2,624,572)
36,851,517 35,395,060
Less: Net Investment in Capital Assets (34,374,524) (34,063,033)
Restricted for Future Plant
and Equipment Replacement 2,476,993 1,332,027

Working Cash Account

The agreement dated November 28, 1977 and all amended agreements as of March 31, 1987 between the
Villages were amended as of April 16, 1998. The purpose of the amendment was to provide the Authority
the ability to maintain a working cash account as of the end of the fiscal year at a level not less than 25%
of the annual operating and maintenance expenses exclusive of depreciation and equipment replacement.
Working cash is calculated as the total general ledger cash and short-term investment balances less all
current and prior open encumbrances (Operating Sub-Fund only). In the event the working cash balance
at the end of the fiscal year is less than 25% of the annual operating expenses exclusive of depreciation
and equipment replacement, each of the Villages will contribute an amount sufficient to adjust the working
cash balance to the minimum amount required. The required contribution by the Villages is based upon
their proportionate share of total operating expenses for the year. No additional funding is required by the
Villages in the event the minimum 25% of operating expense working cash requirement is satisfied as of
the end of the fiscal year. Additionally, the amendment also was designed to modify the payment process
with the Villages. The following is the calculation of the working cash account required:

18



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — Continued

NET POSITION — Continued

Working Cash Account — Continued

Village of Village of December 31, December 31,
Lombard Glen Ellyn 2017 2016
Operating Expenses (as Defined in
Intergovernmental Agreement) $ 2,316,268 1,722,912 4,039,180 4,124,234
Minimum Working Capital Balance
(25% of Operating Expenses) $ 579,067 430,728 1,009,795 1,031,059
Cash and Investments - Operating Sub-Fund $ 1,220,060 1,086,324
Less: Outstanding Encumbrances (21,702) (520)
Working Cash 1,198,358 1,085,804
Less: Required Working Cash (1,009,795) (1,031,059)
Working Cash over Minimum Requirement 188,563 54,746
Working cash balance computation:
Village of Village of
Lombard Glen Ellyn Totals
Amount Required $ (579,067) (430,728) (1,009,795)
Amount Available 666,407 531,951 1,198,358
Cash Reserve Excess 87,340 101,223 188,563

19



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 —- OTHER INFORMATION
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries to the Authority’s employees. These risks are covered
by commercial insurance. There has been no significant reduction in coverage in any program from coverage
in the prior year. For all programs, settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the past
three years.

Municipal Insurance Cooperative Association

Effective January 1, 2003, the Authority joined together with other local governments in Illinois in the
Municipal Insurance Cooperative Association (MICA). MICA is a public entity risk pool operating a
common risk management and insurance program for its member governments. The Authority pays an
annual premium to MICA based upon the Authority’s prior experience within the pool. Amounts paid into
the pool in excess of claims for any coverage year may be rebated back to members in subsequent periods.
The Authority is not aware of any additional premiums owed to MICA for the current or prior year claims.
The Authority pays the first $1,000 for property, liability and crime claims. MICA maintains selective
reinsurance contracts to cover potential claims to the total loss aggregate for all members of $11,750,000.
MICA also purchases excess coverage of $400,000,000 for property liability and $9,000,000 for other
liability.

Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency (IRMA)

Prior to joining MICA, the Authority participated in the Intergovernmental Risk Management Agency
(IRMA) through December 31, 2002. IRMA is an organization of municipalities and special districts in
Northeastern Illinois which have formed an association under the Illinois Intergovernmental
Cooperation’s Statute to pool its risk management needs. The agency administers a mix of self-insurance
and commercial insurance coverages; property/casualty and workers’ compensation claim
administration/litigation management services; unemployment claim administration; extensive risk
management/loss control consulting and training programs; and a risk information system and financial
reporting service for its members.

IRMA has actuarially calculated loss reserves for claims incurred while the Authority was an active
member. The Authority has continuing responsibilities to IRMA for any open claims that exceed the
reserved amounts. These claims are offset by the Authority’s $28,533 member reserve balance with
IRMA.

20



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued
Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC)

Risks for medical and death benefits for employees and retirees are provided for through the Authority’s
participation in the Intergovernmental Personnel Benefit Cooperative (IPBC) (through the Village of Glen
Ellyn). IPBC acts as an administrative agency to receive, process and pay such claims as may come within
the benefit program of each member. IPBC maintains specific reinsurance coverage for claims in excess
of $50,000 per individual employee participant. The Authority pays premiums to IPBC based upon current
employee participation and its prior experience factor with the pool. Current year overages or underages
for participation in the pool are adjusted into subsequent years’ experience factor for premiums.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Litigation

The Authority is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable, in the opinion of the Authority's attorney, the resolution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Authority.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF)

The Authority contributes to the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), through the Village of Glen
Ellyn’s, a defined benefit agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system that acts as a
common investment and administrative agent for local governments and school districts in Illinois. IMRF
provides retirement, disability, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for the plan as a whole, but not by individual employer. That report
may be obtained online at www.imrf.org. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions, and
employer contributions are governed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) and can only be amended by
the Illinois General Assembly.

Plan Descriptions

Plan Administration. All employees hired in positions that meet or exceed the prescribed annual hourly
standard must be enrolled in IMRF as participating members. The plan is accounted for on the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Employer and employee contributions
are recognized when earned in the year that the contributions are required, benefits and refunds are
recognized as an expense and liability when due and payable.

21



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) — Continued

Plan Descriptions — Continued

Benefits Provided. IMRF has three benefit plans. The vast majority of IMRF members participate in the
Regular Plan (RP). The Sheriff’s Law Enforcement Personnel (SLEP) plan is for sheriffs, deputy sheriffs,
and selected police chiefs. Counties could adopt the Elected County Official (ECO) plan for officials elected
prior to August 8, 2011 (the ECO plan was closed to new participants after that date).

IMREF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired before January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier
1 benefits. Tier 1 employees are vested for pension benefits when they have at least eight years of
qualifying service credit. Tier 1 employees who retire at age 55 (at reduced benefits) or after age 60 (at
full benefits) with eight years of service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly
for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the first 15 years of service credit,
plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of 75% of their final rate of earnings.
Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any consecutive 48 months within the last 10 years
of service, divided by 48. Under Tier 1, the pension is increased by 3% of the original amount on January
1 every year after retirement.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees,
pension benefits vest after ten years of service. Participating employees who retire at age 62 (at reduced
benefits) or after age 67 (at full benefits) with ten years of service are entitled to an annual retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1-2/3% of the final rate of earnings for the
first 15 years of service credit, plus 2% for each year of service credit after 15 years to a maximum of
75% of their final rate of earnings. Final rate of earnings is the highest total earnings during any 96
consecutive months within the last 10 years of service, divided by 96. Under Tier 2, the pension is
increased on January 1 every year after retirement, upon reaching age 67, by the lesser of:

¢ 3% of the original pension amount, or

e 1/2 of the increase in the Consumer Price Index of the original pension amount.

Plan Membership. As of December 31, 2017, the measurement date, the following employees were
covered by the benefit terms:

Active Plan Members 16

A detailed breakdown of IMRF membership for the Village, Library, and the Authority combined is
available in the Village of Glen Ellyn’s comprehensive annual financial report.

22



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN — Continued
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) — Continued

Plan Descriptions — Continued

Contributions. As set by statute, the Authority’s Regular Plan Members are required to contribute 4.5%
of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in
addition to member contributions, to finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. For the
year-ended December 31, 2017, the Authority’s contribution was 10.44% of covered payroll.

Net Pension Liability. The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017. The
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation

as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed, as
of December 31, 2017, using the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age
Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market

Actuarial Assumptions

Interest Rate 7.50%
Salary Increases 3.39% - 14.25%
Cost of Living Adjustments 2.50%
Inflation 2.50%

For nondisabled retirees, an IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational projection scale
MP-2017 (base year 2015). IMRF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Blue Collar Health
Annuitant Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF experience. For disabled retirees, an
IMREF specific mortality tables was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015).
IMREF specific rates were developed from the RP-2014 Disabled Retirees Mortality Table applying the same
adjustment that were applied for nondisabled lives. For active members, an IMRF specific mortality table
was used with fully generational projection scale MP-2017 (base year 2015). IMRF specific rates were
developed from the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table with adjustments to match current IMRF
experience.

23



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) — Continued

Plan Descriptions — Continued

Actuarial Assumptions — Continued. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates
of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return to the target asset allocation percentage and adding expected
inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Expected Real
Asset Class Target Rate of Return
Fixed Income 27% 3.0%
Domestic Equities 38% 6.9%
International Equities 17% 6.8%
Real Estate 8% 5.8%
Blended 9% 2.65% - 7.35%
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1% 2.3%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%, the same as the prior valuation.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will
be made at the current contribution rate and that Authority contributions will be made at rates equal to the
difference between the actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those
assumptions, the IMRF’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all project future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all period of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity

The following is a sensitivity analysis of the net pension liability/(asset) to changes in the discount rate.
The table below presents the pension liability/(asset) of the Authority calculated using the discount rate

as well as what the Authority’s net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate:

24



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM -~ DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN — Continued

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) — Continued

Discount Rate Sensitivity — Continued

Net Pension Liability/( Asset)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Balances at December 31, 2016

Changes for the Year:
Service Cost
Interest on the Total Pension Liability

Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience of the Total Pension Liability

Changes of Assumptions

Contributions - Employer

Contributions - Employees

Net Investment Income

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Employee Contributions

Other (Net Transfer)

Net Changes

Balances at December 31, 2017

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.50%) (7.50%) (8.50%)
688,864 (297,109) (1,114,050)
Total
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability
(A) (B) A)-(B)
$ 8,896,138 8,227,932 668,206
137,350 - 137,350
615,459 = 615,459
(73,414) - (73,414)
(257,267) - (257,267)
- 135,586 (135,586)
- 58,474 (58,474)
- 1,413,859 (1,413,859)
(431,868) (431,868) -
- (220,476) 220,476
(9,740) 955,575 (965,315)
8,886,398 9,183,507 (297,109)

25



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS — Continued
Illinois Municipal Retirement — Continued

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense of $204,571 At
December 31, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Totals
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience $ - (73,381) (73,381)
Change in Assumptions - (184,280) (184,280)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments 239,180 (667,595) (428,415)

Total Deferred Amounts Related to IMRF 239,180 (925.256) {686,076)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future periods as follows:

Net Deferred
Fiscal (Inflows)
Year of Resources
2018 $ (173,972)
2019 (149,066)
2020 (196,139)
2021 (166,899)
2022 -
Thereafter -
Total (686,076)

26



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

NOTE 4 — OTHER INFORMATION - Continued
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Authority has evaluated its potential other post-employment benefits liability. Former employees who
choose to retain their rights to health insurance through the Authority are required to pay 100% of the
current premium. However, there is minimal participation. As the Authority provides no explicit benefit,
and there is minimal participation, there is no material implicit subsidy to calculate in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. Therefore, the Authority has not recorded a liability as of December 31,
2017.

27



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Employer Contributions

December 31, 2017
Contributions
in Relation to Contributions as
Actuarially the Actuarially Contribution a Percentage of
Fiscal Determined Determined Excess/ Covered Covered
Year Contribution Contribution {Deficiency) Payroll Payroll
2015 $ 128,318 $ 128,318 $ - $ 1,186,197 10.82%
2016 140,036 139,480 (556) 1,294,237 10.78%
2017 134,225 135,586 1,361 1,298,110 10.44%

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

Amortization Method Level % Pay (Closed)

Remaining Amortization Period 26 Years

Asset Valuation Method 5-Year Smoothed Market

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases 3.75% - 14.50%

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%

Retirement Age See the Notes to the Financial Statements

Mortality An IMRF specific mortality table was used with fully generational

projection scale MP-2014 (base year 2012).

Note:

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed
as it becomes available,

28



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS
Ilinois Municipal Retirement Fund
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the Employer's Net Pension Liability
December 31, 2017

2015 2016 2017
Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 123,338 128,961 137,350
Interest 605,696 628,935 615,459
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 97,561 (67,729) (73,414)
Change of Assumptions 9,922 (9,982) (257,267)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (399,698) (434,992) (431,868)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 436,819 245,193 (9,740)
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 8,214,126 8,650,945 8,896,138
Total Pension Liability - Ending 8,650,945 8,896,138 8,886,398
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contributions - Employer $ 128,318 139,480 135,586
Contributions - Members 54,005 59,117 58,474
Net Investment Income 39,822 543,260 1,413,859
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (399,698)  (434,992)  (431,868)
Other (Net Transfer) 45,862 (20,365) (220,476)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (131,691) 286,500 955,575
Plan Net Position - Beginning 8,073,123 7,941,432 8,227,932
Plan Net Position - Ending 7,941,432 8227932 9,183,507
Employer's Net Pension Liability $ 709,513 668,206 (297,109)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 91.80% 92.49% 103.34%
Covered Payroll $ 1,186,197 1,294,237 1,298,110
Employer's Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 59.81% 51.63% (22.89)%
Note:

This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Information for additional years will be displayed

as it becomes available.

29



SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

See Following Page



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

Equipment
Operating Replacement
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets
Restricted Cash and Investments
Working Cash Account $ 1,220,060 - 1,220,060
Equipment Replacement Account - 4,130,035 4,130,035
Accounts Receivable - Net of Allowances
Accounts Receivable - 42,987 42,987
Member Contributions
Village of Lombard - 31,770 31,770
Loans - 385,126 385,126
Prepaids 84,745 25,806 110,551
Inventory - 41,322 41,322
Total Current Assets 1,304,805 4,657,046 5,961,851
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Nondepreciable Capital Assets - 10,599,278 10,599,278
Depreciable Capital Assets - 95,685,895 95,685,895
Accumulated Depreciation - (60,029,884) (60,029,884)
Total Capital Assets - 46,255,289 46,255,289
Other Assets
Net Pension Asset - IMRF 284,957 12,152 297,109
Total Noncurrent Assets 284,957 46,267,441 46,552,398
Total Assets 1,589,762 50,924,487 52,514,249
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Items - IMRF 229,398 9,782 239,180
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,819,160 50,934,269 52,753,429

30



LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Unearned Rental Revenue

Accrued Payroll

Interest Payable

Members Accounts Payable
Village of Glen Ellyn
Village of Lombard

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated Absences
FIP Loan Payable
Digester Loan Payable
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Items - IMRF
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted

Total Net Position

31

Equipment

Operating Replacement

Sub-Fund Sub-fund Totals
112,452 2,064,895 2,177,347
- 22,144 22,144
70,623 - 70,623
- 45,613 45,613
140,157 31,492 171,649
18,305 - 18,305
25,953 532,009 557,962
367,490 2,696,153 3,063,643
103,813 - 103,813
- 7,548,983 7,548,983
- 3,799,773 3,799,773
103,813 11,348,756 11,452,569
471,303 14,044,909 14,516,212
887,413 37,843 925,256
1,358,716 14,082,752 15,441,468
- 34,374,524 34,374,524
460,444 2,476,993 2,937,437
460,444 36,851,517 37,311,961




GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

Operating Revenues
Charges to Villages

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services
IMRF Pension Expense
Contractual Services
Maintenance
Service Charge
Sludge Removal
Utilities
Insurance
Other
Commodities
Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Surplus Contribution
Connection Fees
Leachate Revenues
Fats, Oil & Grease Waste Fees
Cell Tower Revenues
Other Income
Sale of Capital Assets
Grant Revenue
Investment Income
Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Ending

Equipment
Operating Replacement
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals

$ 4,021,656 3,400,000 7,421,656
1,583,225 64,856 1,648,081
68,806 531 69,337
478,057 - 478,057
128,372 - 128,372
179,218 - 179,218
645,708 - 645,708
400,937 3,569 404,506
198,992 . 198,992
424,671 - 424,671

- 481,240 481,240

- 2,549,513 2,549,513
4,107,986 3,099,709 7,207,695
{86,330) 300,291 213,961

- 48,692 48,692

- 290,110 290,110

- 156,100 156,100

- 167,806 167,806

- 52,616 52,616
4915 10,723 15,638

- 13,374 13,374

- 517,390 517,390
12,609 11,936 24,545
- (112,581) (112,581)
17,524 1,156,166 1,173,690
(68,806) 1,456,457 1,387,651
529,250 35,395,060 35,924,310
460,444 36,851,517 37,311,961

32



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Charges to Villages
Payments to Employees
Payments to Suppliers

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities
Purchase of Capital Assets
Issuance of Capital Related Debt
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Payment of Bond Principal

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Investment Income

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Beginning

Ending

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating

Income to Net Income to Net Cash

Provided by (Used In) Operating Activities:
Depreciation Expense
Other Income
(Increase) Decrease in Current Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Current Liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Equipment
Operating Replacement
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Totals
$ 3,928,078 4,236,774 8,164,852
(1,652,031) (65,387) (1,717,418)
(2,154,920) 1,387,585 (767,335)
121,127 5,558,972 5,680,099
- (9,891,031) (9,891,031)
- 7,548,983 7,548,983
- (112,581) (112,581)
- (518,956) (518,956)
- (2,973,585) (2,973,585)
12,609 11,936 24,545
133,736 2,597,323 2,731,059
1,086,324 1,532,712 2,619,036
1,220,060 4,130,035 5,350,095
(86,330) 300,291 213,961
- 2,549,513 2,549,513
4,915 1,256,811 1,261,726
(98,493) (420,037) (518,530)
301,035 1,872,394 2,173,429
121,127 5,558,972 5,680,099

33



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS
Operating Sub-Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017
(with Comparative Information for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Operating Revenues
Charges to Villages $ 4,181,050 4,021,656 (159,394)
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services 1,648,000 1,583,225 (64,775)
IMRF Pension Expense - 68,806 68,806
Contractual Services
Maintenance 655,350 478,057 (177,293)
Service Charge 128,400 128,372 (28)
Sludge Removal 170,000 179,218 9,218
Utilities 422,100 645,708 223,608
Insurance 411,000 400,937 (10,063)
Other 221,800 198,992 (22,808)
Commodities 527,900 424,671 (103,229)
Total Operating Expenses 4,184,550 4,107,986 (76,564)
Operating Income (Loss) (3,500) (86,330) (235,958)
Nonoperating Revenues
Other Income (LLoss) - 4915 12,423
Interest Income 3,500 12,609 23
Total Nonoperating Revenues 3,500 17,524 12,446
Change in Net Position - (68,806) (223,512)
Net Position - Beginning 529,250
Net Position - Ending 460,444

34



For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)

$ 4,174,500 4,125,808 (48,692)
1,619,400 1,592,611 (26,789)

- 113,490 113,490
542,250 451,733 (90,517)
128,400 128,372 (28)
170,000 155,380 (14,620)

905,750 1,015,080 109,330
422,800 408,304 (14,496)

219,300 225,496 6,196
170,100 147,258 (22,842)

4,178,000 4,237,724 59,724

(3,500) (111,916) 11,032

- (3,480) 12,423

3,500 1,906 23

3,500 (1,574) 12,446

- (113,490) 23478

642,740
529,250

35



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS
Equipment Replacement Sub-Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positon - Budget and Actual

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017
(with Comparative Information for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016)

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017

Variance
Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Operating Revenues
Charges to Villages 3,400,000 3,400,000 -
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services 97,000 64,856 32,144
IMRF Pension Expense - 531 (531)
Contractual
Insurance 5,000 3,569 1,431
Maintenance of Capital Facilities and Equipment 13,978,000 481,240 13,496,760
Depreciation - 2,549,513 (2,549,513)
Total Operating Expenses 14,080,000 3,099,709 10,980,291
Operating Income (Loss) (10,680,000) 300,291 10,980,291
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Surplus Contributions - 48,692 48,692
Connection Fees 125,000 290,110 165,110
Leachate Revenues 140,000 156,100 16,100
Fats, Oil & Grease Waste Fees 100,000 167,806 67,806
Enernoc Demand Response - - -
Cell Tower Revenues 49,000 52,616 3,616
Other Income 10,000 10,723 723
Sale of Capital Assets - 13,374 13,374
Grant Revenue 500,000 517,390 17,390
Investment Income (Loss) 20,000 11,936 (8,064)
Interest Expense (131,000) (112,581) 18,419
Debt Issuance 10,334,000 7,548,983 (2,785,017)
Digester Loan Principal (506,000) (518,956) (12,956)
Less Items to Statement of Net Position - (7,030,027) (7,030,027)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 10,641,000 1,156,166 (9,484,834)
Change in Net Position (39,000) 1,456,457 1,495,457
Net Position - Beginning 35,395,060

Net Position - Ending

36,851,517

36



For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016

Variance
Over
Budget Actual {Under)
$ 3,330,000 3,330,000 -
98,000 77,199 20,801
- 15,378 (15,378)
15,000 3,605 11,395
10,385,000 315,710 10,069,290
- 2,624,572 (2,624,572)
10,498,000 3,036,464 7,461,536
(7,168,000) 293,536 7,461,536
- 142,157 142,157
50,000 67,124 17,124
117,000 166,863 49,863
- 35,818 35,818
20,000 25,112 5,112
26,000 27,179 1,179
11,000 3,995 (7,005)
- 12,365 12,365
900,000 383,000 (517,000)
17,000 6,260 (10,740)
(130,780) (125,449) 5,331
8,000,000 - (8,000,000)
(506,222) (506,222) -

- 506,222 506,222
8,503,998 744,424 (7,759,574)
1,335,998 1,037,960 (298,038)

34,357,100
35,395,060

37



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Comparitive Flows - Last Ten Fiscal Years
December 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

Glenbard North Regional Interceptor
Glen Ellyn Lombard Glen Ellyn Lombard
Fiscal Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons

Year (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent (in 000's) Percent

2009 $ 2,371,469 48.39% §$ 2,529,403 51.61% $ 1,102,789 36.32% § 1,933,862 63.68%
2010 2,150,813 47.29% 2,397,365 52.71% 923,648 33.42% 1,840,040 66.58%
2011 2,269,677 47.17% 2,542,361 52.83% 1,022,527 34.17% 1,970,275 65.83%
2012 1,958,098 47.65% 2,151,514 52.35% 861,399 34.81% 1,612,956 65.19%
2013 1,755,400 46.70% 2,003,538 53.30% 792,733 34.97% 1,474,329 65.03%

2014 1,773,595 44.61% 2,201,911 55.39% 759,050 32.07% 1,607,612 67.93%

2014* 1,163,852 45.43% 1,398,187 54.57% N/A N/A N/A N/A
2015 1,939,993 45.25% 2,347,125 54.75% N/A N/A N/A N/A
2016 1,890,348 44.39% 2,368,065 55.61% N/A N/A N/A N/A
2017 1,916,548 42.65% 2,576,590 57.35% N/A N/A N/A N/A

*For the eight months ended December 31, 2014.

N/A - The North Regional Interceptor flows are no longer used in the billing computations in the Schedule of
Allocation of Costs.

38



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Allocation Costs
December 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

The agreement between the Villages of Lombard and Glen Ellyn for the purpose of jointly treating and
processing wastewater requires certain information to accompany the annual financial statements. This
information is from the Operating Sub-Fund. The combined data, including the Equipment Replacement
and Working Cash Accounts, is part of the general purpose financial statements. Such required
information for the year ended December 31, 2017, not included elsewhere in the accompanying financial
statements follows:

1. Total Water Flow

Glenbard Plant
Gallons
Participant (in 000's) Percent
Village of Lombard 2,576,590 57.35%
Village of Glen Ellyn 1,916,548 42.65%
4,493,138 100.00%

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing

A. Operating revenue and expenses, based on wastewater flow, were allocated among the
operating facilities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, as follows:

Operating
Fund
Operating Revenue
Amounts Billed Prior
to Billing Adjustments $ 4,181,050
Other Revenues 17,524
Adjustment (159,394)
Operating Revenue Applicable
to Operating Expenses 4,039,180
Operating Expenses
Personnel Services $ 1,583,225
Contractual Services
Maintenance 478,057
Service Charge 128,372
Sludge Removal 179,218
Utilities 645,708
Insurance 400,937
Other 198,992
Commodities 424,671
Total Operating Expenses 4,039,180

39



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Allocation Costs — Continued
December 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing — Continued

B. The allocation of operating expenses based on the wastewater flow of Glenbard Plant follows:

Participant Amount Percent
Village of Lombard $ 2,316,268 57.35%
Village of Glen Ellyn 1,722,912 42.65%

4,039,180 100.00%

C. The computation of the billing adjustment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017

follows:
Village of Village of
Lombard Glen Ellyn Totals
Charges
Total Operating Expenses (Depreciation Excluded) § 2,316,268 1,722,912 4,039,180
Equipment Replacement Reserve 1,826,913 1,573,087 3,400,000
Total Operating Charges 4,143,181 3,295,999 7,439,180
Amount Billed 4,229,573 3,351,477 7,581,050
Plus: Credit for Other Revenues Received 10,049 7,475 17,524
Revenues Available to Offset
Operating Changes 4,239,622 3,358,952 7,598,574
Amount Due from (to) Villages (96,441) (62,953) (159,394)

40



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY, GLEN ELLYN, ILLINOIS, ILLINOIS

Schedule of Allocation Costs — Continued
December 31, 2017 (Unaudited)

2. Factors and Amounts Used in Computing Final Billing — Continued

D. Amounts due from (to) the Village of Lombard and the Village of Glen Ellyn at December 31,
2017 are as follows:

Village of Village of
Lombard Glen Ellyn Totals
Amounts Due from (to) Villages
Billing Adjustment for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2017 (as shown the prior page) $  (96,441) (62,953) (159,394)
Billing Adjustments:
July 2017 to December 2017 109,906 (109,906) -
Miscellaneous Receivables - 1,210 1,210
Cumulative Balance Due from (to) Villages* 13,465 (171,649) (158,184)

*This balance is the end result of actual expenses compared to actual fiscal flow splits on an
accrual basis after any necessary audit adjustments are made.

3. Total Revenue Billed and Received per Authority:

Receivable  Receivable
(Payable) (Payable)

Amount December 31, December 31, Amount
Participant Billed 2017 2016 Received
Village of Lombard $ 4,229,573 96,441 31,281 4,164,413
Village of Glen Ellyn 3,351,477 62,953 17,411 3,305,935
7,581,050 159,394 48,692 7,470,348

41



SECTION 8.0

CONTRACT APPROVAL
— HVAC REHABILITATION
DESIGN —
ADMINISTRATION
BUILDING



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE

DATE: June 14,2018

RE: Request for Approval
2018 Administration Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design

In February 2018 Authority staff developed and sent out a request for qualifications and
technical proposals to our six shortlisted professional consulting firms for the 2018
Administration Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design. The due date for the proposals was April
6, 2018.

The Authorities present HVAC system/equipment consists primarily of two main air handlers
(one supply, one return), an inline electric duct heater which tempers the fresh air supply and
provide additional heat during colder periods, an outdoor redundant reciprocal chiller package
with interior located glycol cooling coil, variable air volume’s (VAV’s) & electric baseboard
heaters controlled by pneumatic thermostats located in each office, along with numerous exhaust
fans. The existing control system is pneumatic and requires manual intervention for seasonal
changes with no external alarming or control. Outside of the chiller package and duct heater,
which were replaced in 1994, the remainder of the equipment has been in operation since the
1977 plant improvement. Although the HVAC system in place is not in extreme imminent
danger of failing, it is beyond its predicted life and would become an emergency if it fails. This
design work is proposed to be completed this calendar year in preparation for the construction
work to be bid out next calendar year. Any potential incentives or grant funding related to the
project shall be explored as well, as it is suspected many are available.

The Authority received two sets of qualifications and technical proposals in response to the
RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which point staff performed The Authority received two sets of
qualifications and technical proposals in response to the RFQ/RFP that was sent out, at which
point staff performed reviews of the proposals and selected Strand Associates, Inc. to perform
the work. After the selection was made a cost proposal was submitted for $125,000 which staff
was able to negotiate down to a not to exceed price of $99,000. Some modifications were made
to the scope in order for the price to be reduced, however staff feels the essential items related to
design are still incorporated.

During a TAC meeting the Village of Lombard raised concerns about the high cost of design and
mentioned other routes that could be taken, such as considering the other proposal that was
received, or going a different direction and utilizing an architect or HVAC contractor for design.
The other proposal that was received was insufficient, and typically GWA needs to work with an



engineering consulting firm for these types of design projects due to their ability to assist with
not just design, but also researching technology options, writing specifications, researching
manufacturers, SCADA integration, automation, bidding requirements, and other items that we
at the Authority have limited resources and staff for. After further discussion, it was still
recommended to bring forward this proposal for EOC approval.

Therefore, it is recommended the EOC award Strand Associates, Inc. the 2018 Administration
Building HVAC Rehabilitation Design in the amount not to exceed $99,000. This amount will be
taken out of the designated amount in CY2018 Approved Budget, Fund 40 580150 Plant Equipment
Rehabilitation, which is currently budgeted at $75,000.



SECTION 9.0

DECLARATION OF
SURPLUS EQUIPMENT -
CRYO PLANT &
ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE

DATE: June 14,2018

RE: Request for to Declare Surplus Equipment
Cryogenic Plant and Associated Equipment

In April 2017 the Authority shut down it’s 40-year old cryogenic generation plant. The
cryogenic plant created pure oxygen from atmospheric air, which was then used to oxygenate the
wastewater for the activated sludge process. In late 2016 the Authority was able to secure prices
for liquid oxygen to be hauled in at a lower cost than the Authority was paying for electricity,
maintenance, and operation of the cryogenic plant. Therefore, the plant was shut down properly,
in order to preserve the equipment in case of future use.

The Authority has operated over a year now using the new liquid oxygen method, and no longer
intends to use the cryogenic plant, as it is mostly obsolete technology. Several companies in the
cryogenic market were contacted to inquire if there was any interest in the old equipment. After
being told there would most likely be little interest due to the age of the plant and the type of
technology, Ranch Cryogenics, a company that specializes in relocating, operating, and
maintaining cryogenic plants, contacted the Authority with an interested party out of Brazil.

Although nothing has been finalized, the Authority requests the EOC declare the Cryogenic Plant
and Associated Equipment as surplus equipment, which will then allow it to be sold or auctioned
off to the highest bidder. The plant itself has little value remaining and would cost the Authority
approximately $250,000 to demolish if the building and area were needed for future use.

Therefore, it is recommended that the EOC declare the Cryogenic Plant and Associated
Equipment as surplus, allowing the Authority to remove it from its site.



SECTION 10.0

CONTRACT APPROVAL —
NEW SCADA, LAN
SERVERS AND FIREWALL



MEMORANDUM

TO: Matt Streicher — Executive Director
FROM: Rick Freeman — Electrical Superintendent

DATE: Juned4, 2018

RE: SCADA & LAN Systems Server Replacement

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority presently employs and is heavily dependent on the operation of two
distinct computer networks/systems to accomplish its’ mission, the SCADA System and the business Local

Area Network (LAN).

The SCADA (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) System is a computerized network used to
monitor and control plant processes and equipment, provide real-time and historical data, and provide
local/remote alarm notification to staff. This system affords Glenbard the ability to operate the facility with
manned personnel during one shift per day as opposed to the round the clock coverage which was once the
normal practice prior to the SCADA System installation.

The business LAN is the other computer network used to provide typical business functionality such as e-
mail, data storage, word processing, spreadsheet creation/data analysis, CMMS (Computerized
Maintenance Management System), SCADA historical data archiving, WIMS & Ops Works, a wastewater
process database and reporting system, web-based equipment research and purchasing, access of VGE
accounting software for accounts payables, and electronic IEPA Discharge Monitoring Reports.

The major computer equipment that comprises these two distinct systems is as follows:

e SCADA - One primary and one secondary SCADA rack mounted servers, four local
(hardwired) and four mobile client workstations, two remote client workstations, and three laptop
client computers

¢ Business LAN — One rack mounted server hosting five virtual servers, ten workstations, firewall
appliance, Primary & Secondary Internet connectivity, Wireless Access Point, digital backup, and
numerous switches/hubs

The existing servers, last replaced in May 2012, the firewall in August 2011, are presently at the end of
their serviceable life. We are recommending replacement of the existing single LAN server, Primary &
Secondary SCADA servers, and firewall security appliance at this time.

Description of Work to be Performed

The implementation of replacement will be broken down into two distinct phases, that associated with the
LAN Server/Firewall Appliance and that associated with the SCADA Servers, although there is heavy
interdependence between systems.



L AN Server/Firewall Appliance

LAN Server

1.

Provide & install new rack-mounted LAN Server (virtual host), Dell PowerEdge R740,
replacing existing Dell Power Edge R710, running Windows 2016 Server as the
virtualization platform. Virtualization technologies will continue to be utilized and
leveraged to reduce hardware; only one physical LAN server with virtualized disks

2. Migrate all existing virtual servers into the host server. No upgrades will be performed on
the existing virtual servers.

3. Bring new virtual Windows 2016 Server online and install Microsoft Remote Desktop
Services with iFIX 5.9 for Remove Desktop Services (RDS), replacing the existing virtual
server that provides remote access and thin client connections for SCADA viewing (outside
of the Human Machine Interface (HMI) servers in the Electrical Superintendent’s Office)

4. Configure the Virtual Host server for the migration of the following virtual servers:

a. GLEWAAPPO1 — Maximo
b. GLEWADCFIPRO1 — Domain Controller and File / Print Storage
¢. GLEWAEXO01 — Exchange Email Server

5. Bring online new virtual Windows 2016 SCADA Remote Desktop Server (replacement of
GLEWATSO01) with iFIX 5.9 software application for RDS

6. Provide hardware resources adequate for future creation of new VOIP Telephone System
virtual server

7. Provide hardware resources adequate for future creation of new Maximo 7.6 virtual server

8. Test Virtual Host and virtual servers to ensure existing network functionality has been
restored. Test local and offsite data backups (Mozy Pro & Backup Exec)

9. Update logical Microsoft Visio Diagram and provide PDF copy

Firewall

1. Provide & install new Fortinet Firewall, replacing existing Cisco ASA5510 Firewall

2. Review all existing firewall configurations and make needed changes if needed to enhance
security protocols

3. Program firewall to provide the same level of access as the current device, migrate all
firewall rules and remote access capabilities

4. Activate/configure Web-filtering, Antispam, and other core security services

5. Activate Industrial Security Service

6. Test firewall to ensure existing network functionality has been restored

7. Update logical Microsoft Visio Diagram and provide PDF copy



SCADA Servers

1. Provide & install new primary & secondary rack-mounted servers (SCADA 1 & 2), Dell
PowerEdge R330, replacing existing Dell Power Edge R310’s, running Windows 2016
Server as the virtualization platform

2. Configure new Dell PowerEdge R330 Servers with Windows 2016 Server, iFIX 5.9, and
WIN-911 Pro 7.17 to new SCADA HMI servers located in the Electrical Superintendent’s
office

3. Migrate the existing iFIX application to the new version of iFIX (5.9) and load on the new
server and SCADA client. All SCADA graphic functionality to remain as is

4. Migrate existing WIN-911 Alarming Software to new SCADA servers utilizing WIN-911
Interactive w/dual Yeastar VoIP PBX’x connected to existing POTS lines. All existing
alarming will remain as is

5. Migrate RS Logix 500 & 5000 and Studio 5000 PLC Programming Software
6. Migrate i-Historian & Microsoft Office Home & Business 2016 (SCADA 1)

7. Test SCADA servers to ensure existing network functionality has been restored. Test local
and offsite data backups (Mozy Pro & Backup Exec)

8. Update logical Microsoft Visio Diagram and provide PDF copy

Total cost for the above listed work would be $58,585. Below is a summary of costs

Firewall LAN/SCADA Servers

Hardware/Software $1,875 Hardware/Software $26,730

Labor $4.830 Labor $25.150
Sub Total $6,705 Sub Total $51,880

We are recommending utilizing the firm of Concentric Integration, as a sole source provider, and
seeking a Waiver of Bids, in the total amount of $58,585. Funds for this replacement were included in
the FY-2018 Budget Fund 40-580140 Infrastructure Improvement-SCADA & LAN Server,
Firewall Replacement line item in the amount of $80,000.

As per the Glenbard Wastewater Authority’s Guidelines for Contracting Professional Services
Selection Process Part A, this is a continuing relationship engagement due to its unique nature.
Furthermore, these services fall under part of the Village of Glen Ellyn’s Purchasing Policy Sections
C.l.e and f, which allow the waiving of competitive bidding. We have been utilizing the firm of
Concentric Integration (formerly Baxter & Woodman CSI) since 2011 as our SCADA/ IT consultant
and have been extremely pleased with their work history and response time on previous projects/needs.
Concentric Integration possesses intimate knowledge & experience with the operation/configuration of
our IT systems. Staff believes they are the firm best suited to perform this work. Prior to 2011, we
struggled with finding a single firm which had the in-house expertise across the IT/SCADA technology
spectrum. Concentric Integration has this unique combination of SCADA/Information Technology
expertise that we require and continues to provide a great service and value to the Authority. They also
provide similar services for the Downers Grove and Wheaton Sanitary Districts, NW JAWA, and
numerous others; all are extremely satisfied with their work.



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

June 4, 2018

Mr. Rick Freeman

Electric Superintendent
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
945 Bemis Road

Glen Ellyn, IL 60137

Subject: Server Replacement Rev2
Concentric Project Number: 1770931.50
Dear Mr. Freeman:

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority’s (GBWW) servers are reaching the end of their useful
life. They currently provide critical services such as Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition
(SCADA), Virtualization, Maximo, Active Directory, Email Services, and other file-related
services for GBWW. Concentric recommends GBWW consider replacing and upgrading the
following physical servers:

¢ GLEWASCI - Primary SCADA Server with Alarming
¢ GLEWASC?2 - Secondary SCADA Server with Alarming
e GLEWAVSOI - Virtual Host Server

Concentric Integration proposes the following upgrade procedure;

e Replace the two (2) SCADA servers with Dell PowerEdge R330 servers running

Windows 2016 Server, iFIX 5.9, and WIN-911 Interactive.
o Migrate existing Win911 Pro V7 to new Win911 Interactive application.

» Replace the new virtual host server with a Dell PowerEdge R740 and it will run
Windows 2016 Server as the virtualization platform.

e Migrate all existing virtual servers into the host server. No upgrades will be performed
on the existing virtual servers.

¢ Bring a new virtual Windows 2016 Server online and install Microsoft Remote Desktop
Services with iFIX 5.9 for Remote Desktop Services (RDS), replacing the existing virtual
server that provides remote access and thin client connections for SCADA viewing
(outside of the Human Machine Interface (HMI) servers in the Electrical
Superintendent’s Office).

8678 Ridgefield Rd., Crystal Lake, |L 60012 « 815-788-3600 « www.goconcentric.com



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

The following is our Scope of Services:

Scope of Services

Equipment

Concentric will provide the following equipment:

1. Two (2) Dell PowerEdge R330 Servers (or equivalent) with the following:

a.

Qa o o

oo

> @

One (1) Intel® Xeon® E3-1280 v5 3.7GHz, 8M cache, 4C/8T, turbo (80W) Processor
Two (2) 16GB (1x16GB) 2400MT/s DDR4 ECC UDIMM
PERC H730 Integrated RAID Controller, 1GB Cache, for Hot Plug Chassis

RAID 5, Three (3) 480GB Solid State Drive SATA Mix Use MLC 6Gbps 2.5in Hot-
plug Drive, 3.5in HYB CARR, SM863

On-Board LOM 1GBE Dual Port (BCM5720 GBE LOM)
iDRACS Enterprise, integrated Dell Remote Access Controller, Enterprise
Dual, Hot-plug, Redundant Power Supply, 350W

. 5 Year ProSupport and Mission Critical 4HR On-site Service

2. One (1) Dell PowerEdge R740 Server (or equivalent)

a.

Two (2) Gold 6148 2.4G,20C/40T,10.4GT/s, 27M Cache, Turbo, HT (150W) DDR4
2666 processors

Two (2) 32GB RDIMM, 2666MT/s, Dual Rank
PERC H740P RAID Controller, 8GB NV Cache, Minicard

d. RAID1,2x200GB SSD SATA Mix Use 6Gbps 512n 2.5in Hot-plug Drive, Hawk-M4E,3

DWPD,1095 TBW - 200GB for Operating System

RAID 5, 3 x 1.2TB 10K RPM SAS 12Gbps 512n 2.5in Hot-plug Hard Drives - 2.4TB for
Storage

Broadcom 5720 QP 1Gb Network Daughter Card (4 ports)

Broadcom 5719 QP 1Gb Network Interface Card (4 ports)

iDRAC? Enterprise, integrated Dell Remote Access Controller, Enterprise
Dual, Hot-plug, Redundant Power Supply (1+1), 750W

5 Year ProSupport and Mission Critical 4HR On-site Service

Project # 170931.50 Page No. 2



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Project Management

1.

Plan, schedule, and coordinate the activities that must be performed to complete the
Project.

Server Preparation

1.

5.

Configure the Virtual Host server for the migration of the following virtual servers:
a. GLEWAAPPO1 - Maximo

b. GLEWADCFIPRO1 - Domain Controller and File / Print Storage

c. GLEWAEXO1 - Exchange Email Server

Bring online new virtual Windows 2016 SCADA Remote Desktop Server (replacement
GLEWATSO with iFIX 5.9 software application for RDS.

Configure two (2) new Dell PowerEdge R330 Servers with Windows 2016 Server, iFIX
5.9, and WIN-81 Intermedia to be new SCADA HMI servers located in the Electrical
Superintendent’s office.

Substitute two (2) Yeastar VolP PBXs for the dialogic cards. The existing POTS lines
will be connected to the PBX and the WIN-911 software would communicate via a SIP
call to place phone calls, each server will have a separate copy of WIN-911 Interactive
that will communicate to their dedicated PBX device.

Install Microsoft Office on primary SCADA server.

Programming

1

Migrate the existing iFIX application to the new version of iFIX (5.9) and load on the
new server and SCADA client. All SCADA graphic functionality to remain as is.

2. Migrate existing WIN-911 Alarming Software to the new SCADA servers. All existing
alarming will remain as is - it will just be upgraded to the new version.

3. Migrate PLC Programming software from backup SCADA Server to new backup
SCADA Server.

4. Migrate Historian from primary SCADA server to new primary SCADA server.

Server Installation

1. Physically install Dell PowerEdge R330s and Dell PowerEdge R740 in GBWW'’s
server/network cabinet.

2. Test with the Electrical Superintendent to ensure server functionality.

Project # 170931.50 Page No. 3



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Network Diagram Update

1. Update logical Microsoft Visio diagram and provide PDF copy to the Electrical
Superintendent.

Concentric Assumptions / Owner Responsibilities

1. Owner will provide site access for installation, programming, and startup during the
Owner’s normal business hours. Work outside of the Owner's normal business
hours can be agreed upon as needed, provided Concentric can secure the site(s)
upon departure.

2. Owner understands that all existing equipment to remain is assumed to be in good,
working order. In the event that any other equipment does not perform as-
expected, Concentric will work with the Owner to repair, as-needed, under a
separate contract.

3. Owner will dispose of/recycle any removed equipment.

4. Owner understands that warranty on materials will be provided strictly by the
manufacturer. No additional labor or materials warranties are provided by
Concentric.

5. All existing Microsoft, GE, and Specter Licensing is under software assurance or are
up to date from a licensing and maintenance perspective.

Project Schedule
Concentric is available to begin work upon notice to proceed.
Warranty

The warranty listed in the attached Standard Terms & Conditions document (Paragraph 13):

O DOES apply
X DOES NOT apply

Fee

Qur fee for the above scope is a lump sum of $51,880 ($25,150 labor - $26,730 hardware).
This agreement is valid for 90 days from the date of this proposal.

Project # 170931.50 Page No. 4



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Terms & Conditions

Refer to attached Standard Terms & Conditions document.

Acceptance

If this proposal is acceptable, please sign one copy and return to us. Feel free to contact me

if you have any questions.
Sincerely,

CONCENTRIC INTEGRATION, LLC

Lawrence Kravets
Project Manager
LAK

ACCEPTED BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

MidQ D I

Michael D. Klein, PE
Automation Department Manager
MDK

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

Above signature implies acceptance of the attached STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

Project # 170931.50

Page No. 5



=
]

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Standard Terms & Conditions

-

13.

The submitted proposal and these Standard Terms & Conditions constitute and are herein referred to as the Agreement.

Concentric Integration is herein referred to as Concentric, and the party with whom Concentric is entering into this Agreement with is herein referred to as
Owner.

Concentric may submit requests for periodic progress payments for services rendered. Payments shall be due and owing by the Owner upon receipt of
Cancentric's invoice for services, Payments to Concentric after sixty (60) consecutive calendar days from the date of Concentric's invoice for services shall
include an additional late payment charge computed Owner an annual rate of twelve percent (12%) from date of Concentric’s invoice; and Concentric may,
after giving seven (7) days written notice to the Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until Concentric has been paid in full all amounts due for
services, expenses, and late payment charges.

This Agreament may be terminated, in whole or in part, by either party if the other party substantially fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement
through no fault of the terminating party; or the Owner may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for its convenience. However, no such
termination may be effected unless the terminating party gives the other party: (1) not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice by certified mail of
intent to terminate, and (2) an opportunity for a meeting with the terminating party before termination. If this Agreement is terminated by either party,
Concentric shall be paid for services performed to the effective date of termination, inctuding reimbursable expenses. In the event of contract termination,
the Owner shall receive reproducible copies of Drawings, Custom Developed Applications and other documents completed by Concentric.

Caoncentric agrees to hold harmiess and indemnify the Owner and each of its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability claims, losses, or
damages, to the extent that such claims, losses, or damages are caused by Cancentric’s negligence in the performance of the services under this
Agreement, but not including liability that may be due to the sole negligence of the Owner or other consultants, contractors or subcontractors working for
the Owner, or their officers, agents and employees. In the event claims, losses, or damages are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of Congentric
and the Owner they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its negligence.

The Owner acknowledges that Concentric is a Limited Liability Company and not a Professional Service Corporation, and further acknowledges that the
corporate entity, as the party to this contract, expressly avoids contracting for individual responsibility of its officers, directors, or employees.

The Owner and Concentric agree that any claim made by either party arising out of any act of the other party, or any officer, director, or employee of the
other party in the execution or performance of the Agreement, shall be made solely against the other party and not individually or jointly against such
officer, director, or employees.

For the duration of the project, Concentric shall procure and maintaln insurance for protection from claims under worker's compensation acts, claims for
damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, sickness or disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such
employees, and from claims or damages because of injury to or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, alleged to arise from
Concentric's negligence in the performance of services under this Agreement. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured on Concentric’s general
liability insurance policy. The limits of liability for the insurance required by this Subsection are as follows:

Woerkers Compensation:  Statutory Limits Excess Umbrella Liability: $5,000,000 per claim and aggregate
General Liability: $1,000,000 per claim / $2,000,000 aggregate Professional Liability: $5,000,000 per claim
Automobile Liability; $1,000,000 combined single limit $5,000,000 aggregate

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Concentric and
their officers, directors, employees, agents, and any of them, to the Qwner and anyone claiming by, through or under the Owner, for any and all claims,
losses, costs or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to the project or the Agreement from any cause or causes,
including but not limited to the negligence, professiona! errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract or warranty expressed or implied of
Concentric or their officers, directors, employees, agents or any of them, hereafter referred to as the " Owner's Claims”, shall not exceed the total insurance
proceeds available to pay on behalf of or to Concentric by their insurars in settlement or satisfaction of Owner's Claims under the terms and canditions of
Concentric’s insurance policies applicable thereto, including all covered payments made by those insurers for fees, costs and expenses of investigation,
claims adjustment, defense and appeal.

Concentric is responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all Designs, Drawings, Custom Developed Applications
and other services furnished or required under this Agreement, and shall endeavor to perfarm such services with the same skill and judgment which can be
reasonably expected from similarly situated professionals.

The Owner may, at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement in the services to be performed by Concentric. If
such changes cause an increase or decrease in Concentric’s fee or time required for performance of any services under this Agreement, whether or not
changed by any order, an equitable adjustment shall be made and this agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. No service for which an
additional compensation will be charged by Concentric shall be furnished without the written authorization of the Owner.

All Drawings, Custom Developed Applications, and other documents prepared or furnished by Concentric pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of
service in respect to the project, and Cancentric shall retain the right of reuse of said documents and electronic media by and at the discretion of
Concentric whether or not the project is completed. Electronic copies of Concentric’s documents for information and reference in connection with the use
and occupancy of the project by the Owner and others shall be delivered to and become the property of the Owner; however, Concentric’s documents are
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the Owner or others on additions or extensions of the project, or on any other project. Any such
reuse without verification or adaptation by Concentric for the specific purpose intended will be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability or legal
exposure to Concentric, and the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Concentric from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’
fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.

Concentric warrants that the services provided for under this Agreement will be completed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with
applicable codes, ordinances, regulations or other legal Owner. For a period of one (1) year after the Owner receives beneficial use of the installation,
Concentric will provide a limited warranty to the Owner for any defect due to improper materials or workmanship supplied by Concentric. Any such
warranty provided to Owner shall be provided by Concentric without expense to the Owner for the one (1) year period described herein. CONCENTRIC’S
WARRANTY IS A LIMITED WARRANTY FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE OF BENEFICIAL USE OF THE INSTALLATION. This warranty is
limited to only defects in material and workmanship on products purchased and fully instatled by Concentric and excludes defects caused by improper use,
abuse, accident, acts-of-God (including but not limited to lightning), alteration, or other conditions beyond Concentri¢ s control, as determined by
Concentric, and all manufacturer's products or workmanship as covered by their respective warranties. For manufacturer’s products or workmanship,
Concentric will deliver to Owner all manufacturers’ warranties of products. IN CONSIDERATION OF THE LIMITED WARRANTY CONTAINED HEREIN THE
OWNER AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH WARRANTY REPLACES ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Concentric’s warranty is limited to repair or
replacement of a defective product without cost te the Owner. QWNER WAIVES ALL CLAIMS TO INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. This
limited warranty @xtends only to the Owner and not to subsequent buyers/owners. Owner must give written notice of a defect within the one (1) year
warranty period described above. In the event of any dispute between the Owner and Concentric, such dispute shall be resolved in accordarnce with these
Standard Terms & Conditions and the Agreement.

Any provision or part thereof of this Agreement held to be vold or unenforceable under any law shall be deemed stricken, and all remalning provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upon the parties. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision which comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision,

This Agreement contains and embodies the entire and integrated agreement between parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations,
or agreements, either written or oral.



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

May 23, 2018

Mr. Rick Freeman

Electric Superintendent
Glenbard Wastewater Authority
945 Bemis Road

Glen Ellyn, IL 60137

Subject: Firewall Replacement Rev 2
Concentric Project Number: 170989.50
Dear Mr. Freeman:

The Glenbard Wastewater Authority (GBWW) has an aging Cisco ASA5510 firewall that has
served the Authority well, but will no longer be supported by the manufacturer at the end of
2018. Concentric Integration recommends replacing the firewall with a Fortinet FortiGate
80E Network Security/Firewall Appliance with the Enterprise Protection Bundle. The
Enterprise Protection bundle includes NGFW Application Control and IPS, Web Filtering,
FortiCloud Sandbox, Antivirus, Mobile Security, IP Reputation & Antibotnet, Antispam, and
core FortiCare security services.

Under this proposal, Concentric will provide the new firewall equipment and install it for
GBWW. The following is our Scope of Services:

Scope of Services

Equipment Description

e One (1) Fortinet FortiGate 80E Network Security/Firewall Appliance with the
Enterprise Protection Bundle

e One (1) FortiGate-80E FortiGuard Industrial Security Service
e 1 Year 24x7x4 hour support bundle

Project Management

1. Plan, schedule, and coordinate the activities that must be performed to complete the
Project.

8678 Ridgefield Rd,, Crystal Lake, 1. 60012 « 815-788-3600 « www.goconcentric.com



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Firewall Preparation

1. Program the Fortinet firewall to provide the same level of access as the current Cisco
5510, migrating all firewall rules and remote access capabilities.

2. Review existing firewall configurations and make additional changes, if needed, to
enhance security protocols.

Firewall Installation

1. Physically install Fortinet in GBWW'’s server/network cabinet.

2. Test with the Electrical Superintendent to ensure existing network functionality has
been restored.

3. Activate Webfiltering, Antispam, and other core security services.

4. Activate Industrial Security Service.

Network Diagram Update

1. Update logical Microsoft Visio diagram and provide PDF copy to the Electrical
Superintendent.

Concentric Assumptions / Owner Responsibilities

1. Owner will provide site access for installation, programming, and startup during the
Owner’s normal business hours. Work outside of normal business hours can be
agreed upon as needed, provided Concentric can secure the site(s) upon
departure.

2. Owner understands that all existing equipment to remain is assumed to be in good,
working order. In the event that any other equipment does not perform as-
expected, Concentric will work with the Owner to repair, as-needed, under a
separate contract.

3. Owner will dispose of/recycle any removed equipment.

4. Owner understands that warranty on materials will be provided strictly by the
manufacturer. No additional labor or materials warranties are provided by
Concentric.

Annual Support

This project will add additional hardware and software to the Owner, some of which has
support or maintenance associated with it. Concentric recommends the Owner maintain any

Project # 170989.50 Page No. 2



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

applicable support agreements once the initial support/warranty periods expire. On this
project, we have included the following support agreements, that all begin approximately at
the date the product is shipped (not necessarily the date it is onsite) and last for periods
varying from one year to three years.

Following is the recommended support and estimated amounts for renewals each year (this
is provided solely for budgetary purposes and will need to be quoted at the time of renewal):

.- 2018 2019 2020

Description 7 -

| Fortinet FortiCare 24x7 Bundle - 1 Year Extended Included $1,200 $1,300
.Service o

FortiGate-80E FortiGuard Industrial Security Service Included $210 $220

Total $0 $1,210 $1.520

Project Schedule
Concentric is available to begin work upon notice to proceed.
Warranty

The warranty listed in the attached Standard Terms & Conditions document (Paragraph 13):

O DOES apply
X DOES NOT apply

Fee

Our fee for the above scope is a lump sum of $6,705 ($4,830 labor - $1,875 hardware). This
agreement is valid for 20 days from the date of this proposal.

Terms & Conditions

Refer to attached Standard Terms & Conditions document.

Project # 170989.50 Page No. 3



il

CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Acceptance

If this proposal is acceptable, please sign one copy and return to us. Feel free to contact me
if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

CONCENTRIC INTEGRATION, LLC

- MidQ D 1N

Lawrence Kravets Michael D. Klein, PE
Project Manager Automation Department Manager
LAK MDK

GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

ACCEPTED BY:

TITLE:

DATE:

Above signature implies acceptance of the attached STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS.

Project #170989.50 Page No. 4



CONCENTRIC

INTEGRATION

Standard Terms & Conditions

-

The submitted proposal and these Standard Terms & Conditions constitute and are herein referred to as the Agreement.

Concentric Integration is herein referred to as Concentric, and the party with whom Concentric is entering into this Agreement with is herein referred to as
Owner.

Concentric may submit requests for periodic progress payments for services rendered. Payments shall be due and owing by the Owner upon receipt of
Concentric’s invoice for services, Payments to Concentric after sixty (60) consecutive calendar days from the date of Concentric’s invoice for services shall
include an additional late payment charge computed Owner an annual rate of twelve percent (12%) from date of Concentric's invoice; and Concentric may.
after giving seven (7) days written notice to the Owner, suspend services under this Agreement until Concentric has been paid in full alt amounts due for
services, expenses, and late payment charges,

This Agreement may be terminated, in whole or in part, by either party if the other party substantially fails to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement
through no fault of the terminating party; or the Owner may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, for its convenience. However, no such
termination may be effected unless the terminating party gives the other party: (1) not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice by certified mail of
intent to terminate, and (2) an opportunity for a meeting with the terminating party before termination. If this Agreement is terminated by either party,
Concentric shall be paid for services performed to the effective date of termination, including reimbursable expenses. In the event of contract termination,
the Owner shall receive reproducible copies of Drawings, Custom Developed Applications and other documents completed by Concentric.

Concentric agrees to hold harmless and indemnify the Owner and each of its officers, agents and employees from any and all liability claims, losses, or
damages. to the extent that such claims, losses, or damages are caused by Concentric’'s negligence in the performance of the services under this
Agreement, but not including liability that may be due to the sole negligence of the Owner or other ¢consultants, contractors or subcontractors working for
the Owner, or their officers, agents and employees. In the event claims, losses, or damages are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of Cancentric
and the Owner they shall be borne by each party in proportion to its negligence.

The Owner acknowledges that Concentric is a Limited Liability Company and not a Professional Service Corporation, and further acknowledges that the
corporate entity, as the party to this contract, expressly avoids contracting for individual responsibility of its officers, directors, or employees.

The Owner and Concentric agree that any claim made by either party arising out of any act of the other party, or any officer, director, or employee of the
other party in the execution or performance of the Agreement, shall be made solely against the other party and not individually or jointly against such
officer, director, or employees.

For the duration of the project, Concentric shall pracure and maintain insurance for protection from claims under worket's compensation acts, claims for
damages because of bodily injury including personal injury, sickness ar disease or death of any and all employees or of any person other than such
employees, and from claims or damages because of injury to or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, alleged to arise from
Concentric’s negligence in the performance of services under this Agreement. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured on Concentric’s general
liability insurance policy. The timits of liability for the insurance required by this Subsection are as follows:

Workers Compensation:  Statutory Limits Excess Umbrella Liability: $5,000,000 per claim and aggregate
General Liability: $1,000.000 per claim / $2,000,000 aggregate Professional Liability: $5,000,000 per claim
Automohbile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit $5,000,000 aggregate

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Concentric and
their officers, directors, employees, agents, and any of them, to the Owner and anyone claiming by, through or under the Owner, for any and all claims,
losses, costs or damages whatsoever arising out of, resulting from or in any way related to the project or the Agreement from any cause or causes,
including but not limited to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability or breach of contract or warranty expressed or implied of
Concentric or their officers, directors, employees, agents or any of them, hereafter referred to as the “ Owner's Claims”, shall not exceed the total insurance
proceeds available to pay on behalf of ar to Concentric by their insurers In settlement or satisfaction of Owner's Claims under the terms and conditions of
Concentric's insurance policies applicable thereto, including all covered payments made by those insurers for fees, costs and expenses of investigation,
claims adjustment, defense and appeal.

Concentric is responsible for the quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coardination of all Designs, Drawings, Custom Developed Applications
and other services furnished or required under this Agreement, and shall endeavar to perform such services with the same skill and judgment which can be
reasonably expected from similarly situated professionals.

The Owner may, at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement in the services to be performed by Concentric. If
such changes cause an increase or decrease in Concentric's fee or time required for performance of any services under this Agreement, whether or not
changed by any order, an equitable adjustment shall be made and this agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. No service for which an
additional compensation will be charged by Concentric shall be furnished without the written authorization of the Owner.

All Drawings, Custom Developed Applications, and other documents prepared or furnished by Concentric pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of
service in respect to the project, and Concentric shall retain the right of reuse of said documents and electronic media by and at the discretion of
Concentric whether or not the project is completed. Electronic copies of Concentric's dacuments for information and reference in connection with the use
and occupancy of the project by the Owner and others shall be delivered to and become the property of the Owner; however, Concentric’'s documents are
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by the Owner or others on additions or extensions of the project, or on any other project. Any such
reuse without verification or adaptation by Concentric for the specific purpose intended will be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability or legai
exposure to Concentric, and the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmtess Concentric from all claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorneys’
fees arising out of or resulting therefrom.

Concentric warrants that the services provided for under this Agreement will be completed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with
applicable codes, ordinances, regulations or other legal Owner. For a period of one (1) year after the Owner receives beneficial use of the installation,
Concentric will provide a limited warranty to the Owner for any defect due to improper materials or workmanship supplied by Concentric. Any such
warranty provided to Owner shall be provided by Concentric without expense to the Owner for the one (1) year period described herein. CONCENTRIC'S
WARRANTY IS A LIMITED WARRANTY FOR A PERIOD OF ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE OF BENEFICIAL USE OF THE INSTALLATION. This warranty is
limited to only defects in material and workmanship on products purchased and fully installed by Cancentric and excludes defects caused by improper use,
abuse, accident, acts-of-God (including but not limited to lightning), alteration, or other conditions beyond Concentric 's control, as determined by
Concentric, and all manufacturer’'s products or workmanship as covered by their respective warranties. For manufacturer's products or workmanship,
Concentric will deliver to Owner all manufacturers' warranties of praducts. IN CONSIDERATION OF THE LIMITED WARRANTY CONTAINED HEREIN THE
OWNER AGREES AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT SUCH WARRANTY REPLACES ALL OTHER WARRANTIES EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED INCLUDING BUT
NOT LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. Concentric's warranty is limited to repair or
replacement of a defective product without cost to the Owner, OWNER WAIVES ALL CLAIMS TQO INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. This
limited warranty extends only to the Owner and not to subsequent buyers/owners. Owner must give written notice of a defect within the one (1) year
warranty period described above. In the event of any dispute between the Owner and Concentric, such dispute shall be resolved in accordance with these
Standard Terms & Conditions and the Agreement.

Any provision or part thereof of this Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under any law shall be deemed stricken, and alt remaining provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upon the parties. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision which comes as close as possible ta expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

This Agreement contains and embodies the entire and integrated agreement between parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations,
or agreements, either written or oral.



SECTION 11.0

FORMALIZE TECHNICAL
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
RESOLUTION



MEMORANDUM

TO: Executive Oversight Committee
FROM: Matt Streicher, P.E. BCEE

DATE: June 14, 2018

RE: Formalize Resolution Establishing the Technical Advisory
Committee

The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) was formed based off a request made by the Village
Managers in order to provide recommendations to the Executive Oversight Committee on
matters pertaining to projects, budgets, operations and other duties assigned by the Executive
Oversight Committee. The TAC consists of three members; the Directors of Public Works from
each Village and the Executive Director of the Authority and meets on a monthly basis or more
frequently as required.

Due to the TAC’s role in recommending items being brought forward to the EOC, the
Authority’s legal consul recommended formalizing a resolution establishing the TAC.
Therefore, attached is a formal resolution prepared by the TAC, and reviewed by the Authority’s
legal consul.

It is recommended the EOC adopt the resolution formalizing the TAC to make recommendations
to the EOC on the operations of GWA.



GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
Executive Oversight Committee

RESOLUTION NO. 001-18
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISING THE TECHNICAL ADVISOR COMMITTEE TO

MAKE RECOMMENDATIONS TO THE EXECUTIVE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE
ON THE OPERATIONS OF THE GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE EXECUTIVE OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE OF
THE GLENBARD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY as follows:

SECTION 1: The Villages of Glen Ellyn and Lombard (The “Villages”) have
entered into an intergovernmental agreement in regard to the establishment and operation
of the Glenbard Wastewater Authority (“Authority”) for the purpose of providing safe
and efficient wastewater treatment to the properties located within the Authority’s
Facility Planning Area (FPA) established by the Illinois Environmental Protection
Agency.

SECTION 2: Pursuant to the intergovernmental agreement, day-to-day
management of the Authority is conducted by its Executive Director who reports to the
Executive Oversight Committee of the Authority (“EOC”).

SECTION 3: The EOC has determined that additional oversight, review and
consideration of the plans, operations and activities of the Authority would be in the best
interest of the Villages and that said oversight should be conducted through the
establishment of a Technical Advisory Committee that reports to the EOC.

The following criteria shall apply to the Technical Advisory Committee (“TAC”):

A. Membership: The TAC shall consist of three (3) members: the Directors of
Public Works of the Villages and the Executive Director of the Authority.

B. Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson: The Chairperson of the TAC shall be the
Executive Director of the Authority.

C. Responsibilities: The TAC shall provide recommendations to the EOC on
matters pertaining to the Authority’s projects, budgets, and operations, as well as
other duties assigned by the EOC. The TAC shall be responsible for making
recommendations to the EOC regarding retention of consultants for Authority
projects or on-going operations. Neither the TAC nor the Executive Director may
independently engage or appoint a consulting firm for an Authority project or its
“short list” of approved firms.

D. Meetings: The Technical Advisory Committee shall meet on a monthly basis
or more frequently as determined by the Executive Director of the Authority.



SECTION 4: This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
adoption and approval as required by law.

Adopted this day of , 2018.

Ayes:

Nays:

Absent:

Approved this day of , 2018.

Keith Giagnorio
Executive Oversight Committee
Chairperson

ATTEST:

Gayle Lendabarker
Secretary to EOC

GSRNH/GLD 1297016.2



SECTION 12.0

CUSSION

S
e

D



SECTION 12.1

FACILITY IMPROVEMENT
PROJECT



SSI801J QY e
uonjenunuo)) surystur Surpymg L] e
3uneaN DO IXaN 03 1011 paredUY JIOM e
(uonualay 89'870‘SLg$ +) Tz 60L‘gTL$ Surploy [[1IS e
'0Q'12Q‘TeS I$ = (OT JO) @# U3NOoIy [, syuswike pased[dy e
uoneuLIojuy 10J s3sanbay ot
sfenrwgng 65z o
Surd8ig SYH
spuy 9soo07T/dnues|) Suip[ing 1931 e
suone[[eisuf Juey, ALIOTYd20dAl] o
UOT]LI0)SIY 9IIG/312I0U0)) o
UOI]RI0)ISIY JUSUIdAR] o
uoneI01say adedspue e

3unaa\ DO IseT 20ulg pa3d[duwio)) IO e







€2S :(6107/61/11) uonPdwo)) [eur] [Mun Surureway ske(y

[{ERIEE| 21e(] O], PAIOAU] JudaIng 3](] O], PA2TOAU] JUNOLY (] 0] PadiOAU] JUIDID ] 2B O], PIDIOAU] JUNOUIY/ s UIUOJA] ST PA2IOAL] 1UNOTUY

gi-ady  gi-depy gi- nv;._ gr-ue[ L= 3: L1-a0N h_-.uc Li-dog  Li-Sny  Lign| Lrun{ Li-fepyy  Leady Leaepy Liegay Lrug[ 9133 9-AON

e e : s " 1 i ' . . F 4 e ul
_ _F 000 0001y
” OO0 O00°TS
_ _ ooo'0oo'ty

0oa'ooo'Fs
000'000'Ss
00e'0009Y

QO0'000'Ls

Gn._;.v.....ﬂ_.u.x.m

Qo non‘'oby

OO0 000" 0%

suppes], did




SUIR Q-q9f  gr-ue[ Li-daq  Lr-aoN  LidQ  Li-deg  Li-8ny L Ziun[  Li-fepy  Lr-ady Li-rely  [1-q3  Lr-ue[  g-03( Ql-AON  9I-13(Q)  9t-dag
- - - - - - - - - . - - - B - - - || 00°0

00°0S

00°001
00'0S1L
00°007
00'0ST
00°'00¢

00'05¢E

o0o'oo¥

00'0SP

00°'00§

23e(J O], SINOH HY VML) e SINOH Y VMO I

gunjoel] 3¥ YWD di4




SECTION 12.2

PRETREATMENT
ORDINANCE STATUS



SECTION 12.3

PERSONNEL UPDATE



SECTION 13.0

OTHER BUSINESS



SECTION 13.1

TECHNICAL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE UPDATES



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

GWA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting Agenda
April 19, 2018 9:30 am
1. FIP Update
a. Filter Construction Update
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that the East side filters have been operational since just prior to
the April 1 deadline, and that their performance has been satisfactory. Mr. Streicher also
informed the TAC that during high flow it seems apparent that all 6 of the new filters cannot
handle peak flows, and that the existing bypass channel that was scheduled to be demolished will
need to remain. While we may see a small credit from the contractor for the elimination of the
demolition, we do need to relocate a gate valve that controls the flow through the channel.
There will be more to follow on this item as GWA discusses it with the Engineer and Contractor.
b. Change Order No. 4 Update
i. Cost Reductions
1. Transformer Sequencing Work ($187k down to $155.5k) - Revisions Continue

No updates

2. Filter Building Lighting Conduit ($25.4k down to $21.5k) - Revisions Continue
No updates

3.  MCC Revisions ($27.5k down to $18k) — Revisions Continue
No updates

¢. ERS Submittals
The ERS has been submitted and approved, and the contractor has begun preliminary work.
While the schedule stated the work was to start by mid-April, Mr. Streicher expects it to actually
start closer to June.

d. Construction Engineering Contract
Mr. Streicher wanted to make the TAC aware that out of the original $706k contract with the
Engineer (Black & Veatch), only about $100k remains, and construction is expected to last
another 18 months. GWA will most likely need an amendment to the construction engineering
contract, however it will attempt to use all remaining funds first and get a better estimate of
what will be remaining.

2. Grease Trap Improvement Grant Discussion (Frieders)
The Village of Lombard had brought forth an idea that GWA would set aside funds to offer to
establishments that needed improvements on their grease traps in order to bring them up to code. While
the TAC applauded this effort, both Villages agreed the funding would not be able to come from GWA, as
they have no funding mechanisms in place — or to be able to put in place. This is more of a Village issue
that each PW Director will have to look into further.

3.  Admin Building HVAC RFQ/RFP — May EOC Award
Mr. Streicher advised the TAC that staff was reviewing the two proposals submitted and would be ready to
recommend an award at the May EOC meeting. The TAC declined to review the submittals themselves but
agreed that GWA would select an appropriate firm.

4. Formalize TAC Resolution by EOC per legal recommendation
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that GWA’s legal consul recommended that the EOC formally adopt a
policy recognizing what role the TAC plays within GWA. Director Goldsmith stated that the Village of
Lombard may have similar policies in place that he could share with GWA to sue as a template. This is not
a priority project but will be worked on over time in order to bring a formal policy to the EOC.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



5. Other Business

d.

Televising Contract
GWA participated in the Village of Lombard’s RFP process that is due at the end of April. Results
will be reported upon at a later date.
Vacant Positions
i. Project Engineer
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC a background check was being run on the last candidate
interviewed. Based on results of the check an offer will be made to the leading
candidate interviewed. Mr. Streicher is to discuss the terms of the offer with the Village
Manager and HR Staff.
ii. Maintenance |
The application period for this position ends April 27.
Process to remove Hexa-something or another-chromium from Pre-Treatment Ordinance
(Frieders)
ERC Frieders informed the TAC that GWA would like to remove one of the local limit standards
from the pre-treatment ordinance since it is never present and can cost industries unnecessary
money to sample for. Ms. Frieders advised that the she will inquire with the USEPA to make sure
they approve prior to the Village’s adopting any pre-treatment ordinance.

6. Old Business

a.

b.

Facility Plan Project
This project is still yet to kick off
Digester Cleaning Update
The contractor completed the work the last week of March, and the project ended up over budget
due to excess amount of material than what was expected.
Electrical Grid Project
This project had a kickoff meeting April 17 and design is expected to completed in November 2018
Pretreatment Ordinance Status
Ms. Frieders indicated that the ordinance was still under review at USEPA
Forest Preserve County of DuPage Easement Leases
Director Goldsmith indicated that the easement purchase for the lagoon property at CSO is
completed, and that he would forward on the recorded documents to GWA for their records.
Director Hansen had no update to the progress of the easement for the NRI along St. Charles
Road/Churchill woods.
Phone System
Mr. Streicher expects the phone system to go to the EOC in either May or June.
Demand Load Response Program
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that the equipment needed to comply with the IEPA Tier 4 air
emissions has been installed, and the generators are ready for the program.
High Strength Waste Progress
Mr. Streicher and Ms. Frieders updated the TAC that no waste has been accepted to date, but
conversations continue with haulers. At this point in time, while GWA is seeking haulers to come
in, they are not doing so aggressively due to staff absences. The goal will be to have the first
delivery no later than the first week in May.
€SO Vandalism
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that Electrical Superintendent Freeman has been in contact with
the Village of Lombard Police Department to relay on costs associated with the vandalism
damages. Mr. Streicher is inquiring with the Village of Glen Ellyn’s Finance department on how to
properly follow the purchasing policy to replace the equipment due to vandalism.
Discussion pertaining to future development of IGA Language for
GWA Interceptor vs Village’s Collection Systems start and stop points.
i. VGE — Chidester vs St. Charles Rd. Lift Station

iil. VOL—L22 vs Junction Chamber

iii. CSO Regulators and lines between the regulators to the facility

iv. Any others that can be added



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

No Updates. Mr. Streicher met with the Village of Lombard’s GIS Technician, and Director
Goldsmith believes maps have been created, but will need to follow up. Mr. Streicher and
Director Hansen confirmed that the Village will be inspecting the West Glen Ellyn Interceptor.

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Hlinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

GWA Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting Agenda
May 17, 2018
Meeting Start Time: 934am
1. FIP Update
a. Change Order No. 4 Update
i. Cost Reductions
1. Transformer Sequencing Work ($187k down to $155.5k)
2. Filter Building Lighting Conduit {$25.4k down to $21.5k) - Revisions Continue
3. MCC Revisions ($27.5k down to $18k)
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that final prices were agreed upon for the Transformer Sequencing
change and the MCC revisions for a total price reduction of around 541,000, bringing the prices for
those two items down from a total of 5215,000 to $183,000. Since the EOC approved a total not to
exceed amount for a number of changes, Mr. Streicher had the authority to sign a “Change Order
004.1” which included those items along with some other items that the prices were not changed, in
order to take advantage of the price reductions before the offers expired. This information was run
past the Authority’s attorney and was advised to take it before any prices escalated further. The
Authority is still waiting on the final pricing for the filter building lighting conduit, along with RFB 011B
(MCC Revisions part 2}, and then Mr. Streicher will have the authority to sign a “Change Order 004.2”
that will include the remaining items the EOC has already approved a not to exceed amount for.
b. ERS Progress
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that none of the ERS work has physically begun, but items are
being fabricated, so it appears that it will start in the next couple of weeks. The schedule the
contractor has laid out has them completing the work on time, providing they stick to the
schedule.

2.  New Sludge Hauling Update
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that beginning May 1, 2018 the Authority’s new biosolids contract that the
EOC approved took effect. Therefore, Synagro will now be hauling sludge out of the facility daily. Since
sludge had been stockpiled over the winter, and there was no daily hauling, it had been contemplated to
notify adjacent residents of the increased truck traffic, however since they had already been notified in the
past that GWA would haul daily when we had the ability to, it was decided to not bring further attention
to it. Director Goldsmith suggested at least posting something on the website, to which Mr. Streicher took
consideration to, but did not feel necessary since it is posted to some measure.

3. Professional Services —SCADA & LAN Server Replacement (Rick Freeman)
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that Superintendent Freeman was beginning to gather proposals for the
new SCADA and LAN servers that are scheduled to be replaced this year. Due to the unique nature of the
combination of SCADA and IT work, the Authority intends to utilize the professional services policy and
solely select Concentric Integration (formally B&W CSl) for this work. Director Goldsmith agreed that this
work is highly technical in nature, and that the Village of Lombard also does not go through the RFP
process for this, and instead uses a single professional service. The TAC was in agreement with the
Authority’s approach. Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that when formal proposals are received, they will
be brought to the TAC prior to going to the EOC,

4. Cryogenic Plant Scrapping
Since shutting down the cryogenic plant in April 2017, GWA has sent out requests to companies involved in
the cryogenic business to see if there is any interest, to which there had been none up until recently. The

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



companies we had contacted said that there likely would be little interest, as our cryogenic plant is old,
and somewhat obsolete considering the newer technology out there. Recently Ranch Cryogenics, one of
the companies we had contacted and worked with in the past, contacted us with an interested customer
from Brazil. The plant fits the needs they have, and would be ideal for their situation, providing the price is
right. Although no offer has been made at this time, it was stated that they would remove the cryogenic
plant from our facility and make the building/grounds suitable for future use at no cost to us — if we
provide the cryogenic plant to them at no cost. Mr. Streicher felt this was a good opportunity, as the
chances of somebody else even taking the plant, let alone purchasing it, were not likely. If the plant were
to remain in place until the building/grounds were needed for future uses, the cost to demolish it would be
the burden of the Authority — and likely significant. The TAC was in general agreement with the approach,
however they did feel the EOC would need to declare the equipment a surplus and would make the final
decision on whether or not it should go to public auction in order to avoid any perception of perforation.
The TAC also suggested Mr. Streicher obtain a rough cost to demolish the plant in order to demonstrate
the Authority would benefit by giving the plant away in exchange for removing it from the site for free.

Admin Building HVAC RFQ/RFP — Contract Negotiations

Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that after the RFQ/RFP process, Strand Associates was the selected firm for
this design work. After notifying them of our selection, a cost proposal was provided in the amount of
$125,000. Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that only 575,000 was budgeted for this design work, and that
Strand stated there were several factors leading to the increase in cost; they included expanded
investigations into different types of technology and what would be most suitable/feasible at GWA, and
they also included a structural evaluation/analysis if a separate rooftop unit would be included for the
laboratory HVAC. The TAC felt this cost proposal was too high for this scope of work. Director Goldsmith
stated that Lombard had an architect design an entire building, HVAC included, at a much lower cost. The
TAC suggested GWA send out RFP’s to HVAC contractors that may be able to come up with a design, as
well as construction, all at lower cost. Mr. Streicher had concerns about this, as there are some unique
challenges with HVAC at our facility, although he did agree that more firms than the ones on GWA’s
shortlist are qualified to do such work. The TAC also asked if this work could be tabled to a further date, to
which Mr. Streicher believed it could, but would have to double check with Superintendent Freeman. It
was agreed that this approach would be discussed at a later date, and that GWA would not move forward
with Strand’s proposal.

Other Business
a. Televising Contract
Mr. Streicher asked Director Goldsmith if they had attempted to send the results of the Televising
RFP that GWA and Lombard combined on. Mr. Goldsmith was able to send the information over
during the TAC meeting. Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that this item would be brought forward
to the June EOC meeting.
b. 1EPA Annual Inspection —June 7, 2018
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that our annual IEPA inspection would be occurring. The TAC
asked if GWA receives any sort of “report card,” to which Mr. Streicher was unsure of. Mr.
Streicher believes that the IEPA inspector simply relays onto her superiors that GWA is
satisfactory.
¢. Roof Replacements
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that we had engaged in design and specification work for the
replacement of two roofs that were budgeted for and are in need of replacement. Quotes had
been requested for the design/bidding assistance, whereas typically a company called Hinois
Roofing Consultants Associates had been used, Superintendent Braga found a similar company
for a better price — and that is more local. The company has laid out a schedule for the work to
be bid and is currently working on design and specifications for the work. It’s estimated that the
cost of the work will be around $80,000.
d. Vacant Positions
i. Assistant Director/Engineer
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that the new advertisement for the position was posted
late last week/early this week, and that we had already received one applicant. Mr.
Streicher brought Director Goldsmith up to speed on what had occurred with the original
“Project Engineer” position, and how it’s developed to now be an Assistant



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

945 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Director/Engineer position. The TAC advised Mr. Streicher to include this update on the
next EOC packet, to which he replied he already has.

ii. Maintenance!
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that GWA was starting interviews for this position today
and would be continuing with first round interviews tomorrow. The hopes were to
narrow it down to 1-3 candidates to bring in for second interviews.

e. Not on the agenda — Mr. Streicher informed the TAC of a new USEPA regulation he recently
learned of while at an IAWA conference involving hauled wastes to our facility. USEPA will now
be mandating that we send manifests for each delivery of hauled waste to our facility, and that a
$4-520 fee be associated with each manifest sent. This was slipped in under the radar and is of
concern to many facilities since it includes leachate, and possibly even FOG. GWA takes several
loads of leachate a day and has also recently started taking in FOG and other high strength
wastes. IAWA appears to be forming a group to protest this decision, or at least modify it not to
include leachate, however nothing may able to be done prior to the June 2018 beginning of
enforcement. Mr. Streicher is going to continue to work with IAWA and other WWTP’s to make
sure GWA fulfills its requirements.

f. Not on the agenda — Director Hansen had done some exploring around the GWA property
boundaries and noticed some areas could use some landscape cleanup; overgrown buckthorn
removal, dead tree removal, etc. Mr. Streicher had not walked the area yet, but indicated he
would, and would budget appropriately to address the areas next year. Director Goldsmith had
asked if we had received any complaints, which GWA has not, so he advised to be weary on how
much is removed — we do not want to clear the area too much, but agreed we should remove any
hazards such has dead trees that have the potential to fall.

g. Noton the agenda — Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that the Glen Oak Lift Station Flow Meter is
scheduled to begin installation the week of 5/28.

7. Old Business

a. Formalize TAC Resolution by EOC per legal recommendation
Director Goldsmith had prepared a draft resolution to bring to the EOC for approval. The TAC was
in agreement with the format and content. Directors Goldsmith and Hansen stated they would
send the draft to their respective Village Managers for review and instructed Mr. Streicher to
share the draft with GWA’s legal consul for comments.

b. Pretreatment Ordinance Status
The ordinance is still under review by the USEPA

c. Forest Preserve County of DuPage Easement Leases
Director Hansen stated that the Village of Glen Ellyn received survey information back regarding
the interceptor located on St. Charles Road/Churchill woods, and that Village Engineers were
reviewing it. When review was complete, Glen Ellyn would share the survey information with the
Forest Preserve in order to begin moving the process forward.

d. Phone System
Mr. Streicher informed the TAC that Superintendent Freeman has tabled this item for a short
period time since much had been put on his plate. He does intend to bring this to the EOC for
approval within the next several months and will bring it before the TAC prior to doing so. The
proposal will most likely be from an approved Joint Purchasing agreement.

e. Discussion pertaining to future development of IGA Language for
GWA Interceptor vs Village’s Collection Systems start and stop points.

i. VGE — Chidester vs St. Charles Rd. Lift Station

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



ii. VOL-L22 vs Junction Chamber
ili. CSO Regulators and lines between the regulators to the facility
iv. Any others that can be added

No updates given

8. Adjourn — Meeting adjourned at 10:48am



SECITON 13.2

PENDING AGENDA ITEMS



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

21W551 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

2018 Pending EOC Agenda Items

Electrical Service $250,000 March STARTED
Distribution System
Design Engineering
Facility Plan/Odor $150,000 April STARTED
Control Study
Roof Rehabilitation $75,000 September

Telephone System $40,000 July
Replacement
UV Building AHU $40,000 April (Under COMPLETED
Replacement $20,000, No EOC
Approval Needed)
SCADA & LAN Server, $80,000 June PROPOSED
Firewall Replacement
Plant Fiber Testing & $30,000 On Hold
Repairs
HSW Improvements $25,000 TBD
Modifications

PROPOSED
Admin. Chiller, Coil, $75,000 June
Air Handler, & Duct
Design
Digester Cleaning $65,000 March COMPLETED
CHP Siloxane and $75,000 July
Hydrogen Sulfide
Media Replacement
Moyno Pumps (10) $25,000 As Needed
Spare Parts
Televising & Cleaning $100,000 June PROPOSED
NRI & SRI

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



Glenbard Wastewater Authority

21W551 Bemis Road Glen Ellyn, Illinois 60137
Telephone: 630-790-1901 — Fax: 630-858-8119

Gravity Thickener

Bridge & Mechanism $40,000 August/September
Painting
CSO Grit Chamber $30,000 August
Rehabilitation
SRI Pump Station $50,000 TBD
Concrete Linini
*Godwin 4” Trailer

Mounted Pump

$24,000 June PROPOSED

Forest Preserve Land $150,000 March COMPLETED
Swap & Surveying
Costs
Pretreatment | - July Under
Ordinance USEPA
Recommendation

Protecting the Environment for Tomorrow



SECTION 14.0
NEXT EOC MEETING
THURSDAY
JULY 12, 2018

AT 8:00 A.M.



